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Every place on Earth is measured in
terms of its distance east or west of
an imaginary line called the Prime
Meridian. The line runs from the
North Pole to the South Pole straight
through the main telescope of the
Royal Observatory in Greenwich,
England. Hence the term Greenwich
Mean Time from which all world
time zones are based. The Prime
Meridian provides a constant and
common point of reference from

which maps are drawn, seas are

navigated, and skies are traversed.
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Welcome o Sterling Bank

2003 was one of the most eventful years in Sterling Bank’s 30-
year history. Overall, the year was dominated by strategic
actions to concentrate our entire resources on providing high-
quality banking services to owner-operated businesses.

The most dynamic move was the strategic divestiture of
Sterling Capital Mortgage Company in September. Although it
provided an excellent return on our investment, owning a mort-
gage company was never consistent with our strategic intent.
Further, the timing was right to achieve the best value possible
for our shareholders. The final sales price was approximately
$102.5 million with an after-tax net gain of $22.1 million,
which is being reinvested to build our commercial banking fran-
chise in Houston, Dallas, and San Antonio. In addition, the cap-
ital previously utilized to fund the mortgage warehouse line was
J. Downey Bridgwater freed up and is being re-directed, using our core competencies
President and Chief Executive Officer to produce internal growth, build new locations, and make
strategic acquisitions.

George Martinez

Chairman of the Board o
: During the second quarter of 2003 we issued $50 million in

subordinated notes at the bank level to further bolster our capi-
tal position.

We also sold several rural banking offices that were not consis-
tent with our strategy of focusing on major metropolitan mar-
kets. These offices were acquired as parts of previous acquisi-
tions and included offices in Eagle Pass, Pearsall, Crystal City,
Carrizo Springs, and Highlands, Texas. In addition, we merged
two offices in Houston, Pineloch in 2003 and Greenway Plaza
in early 2004, into other existing offices.
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As a first step in utilizing the excess capital derived from the
sale of the mortgage company, we acquired Plaza Bank of San
Antonio. The three former Plaza banking offices are expected to
be accretive to earnings per share during 2004, and represent an
excellent strategic and cultural fit within our service-oriented
organization. We are also expanding in Dallas. Our third loca-
tion, the Uptown Office, will open in the spring of 2004, and we
are proceeding with plans to open a new office in Garland. This
will give us four banking offices in the Dallas metropolitan
area. We are continuing to attract and recruit experienced,
skilled bankers in Dallas, San Antonio, and Houston to assure
that we maintain a strong local network of Sterling Bankers.

In Nepal it's known as Sagarmatha

or goddess of the sky. InTibet, it's

Chomolungma—mother goddess of

the universe. In English it's known as . ..
2003 saw the creation of both new and enhanced strategic ini-

tiatives that strengthen our core market niche. Our Energy
Lending Group, launched in late 2002, has attained nearly $100
million in loan commitments. Our expanded Treasury
Management Solutions department utilizes sophisticated high-
volume Internet-based distribution channels. Late in the year
we launched a new small-ticket equipment leasing division,
SilverMark Capital, which will expand to serve owner-operated

Mount Everest and the tallest mountain
on the Earth, reaching 29,035 feet to the
sky. Mount Everest was formed by the
collision of the India landmass with the
continent of EuroAsia 60 million years
age. In 1865, Sir George Everest, the

British Surveyor-General of India, first

recorded its height and location. Eight businesses in our markets and beyond. We also launched a new
decades passed before Sir Edmund small business Wholesale Real Estate Group. These groups join
Hillary and his team reached its peak. our existing Wealth Management and International Banking
It is a constant symbol of the highest groups, and SBA and Capital Markets departments to comple-
possible achievement. ment our existing core banking operations.
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The Great Pyramid of Giza is the oldest
and only survi.ving Ancient Wonder of
the World. Believed to have been built
over a 20-year period, the Great
Pyramid was 481 feet high when com-
pleted around 2560 BC. For more than
43 centuries, it was the tallest man-
made structuré on Earth. The structure
contains 2 million blocks of stone and
each side is oriented to one of the car-
dinal points of the compass. The Great
Pyramid of Giza covers an area that
can hold St. Peter’s Basilica in Rome;
the cathedrals in Florence, Milan and
Westminster; and St. Paul's in
London—combined. The Great Pyramid
of Giza remains a constant source of
wonder to those who gaze upon its

precise construction.

Our greatest asset continues to be our people, who consistently
go out of their way to make sure our customers have a positive
banking experience. In early 2004, for the second consecutive
year, FORTUNE Magazine named Sterling Bank to its list
of the 100 Best Companies to Work For. We were the highest
ranked of any Houston company. Also, the bank was recognized
with a “Best” Award from the American Society for Training &
Development.

We are entering 2004 with a clean strategy, great people, and
well-defined processes and systems that will serve our cus-
tomers in the growing local economies in Houston, Dallas, and
San Antonio, the nation’s fourth, ninth, and tenth largest cities,
respectively. We are focused on producing profitable, quality
growth for our bank by serving four constituencies equally
well: shareholders, customers, employees, and the communities
in which we do business. Like the Prime Meridian,
Mount Everest, or the Great Pyramid of Giza, our busi-
ness model remains constant: providing high-quality banking
services to owner-operated businesses.

We’ve never been better positioned for growth nor more excit-
ed about the future of Sterling Bank. Thanks for being a part of
that future.

Respectfully,
I By

J. Downey Bridgwater
President and

Chief Executive Officer

George Martinez
Chairman of the Board
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Financial Righlights

(dollars in thousands except per share data)

INCOME STATEMENT 2003 p1117] 2001
Net Income $ 49,110 $ 36,551 $ 30,401
Income from Continuing Operations 28,354 33,183 21,308

Earnings Per Share (Diluted)

Total $ 1.10 $ 0.82 $ 071
Continuing Operations 0.64 0.74 0.50
Book Value at Year End 6.55 5.65 4,96

(EY PERFORMANCE RATIOS

Return on Average Assets

Total 1.48% 1.21% 1.24%

Continuing Operations 0.86% 1.10% 0.87%
Return on Average Common Equity

Total 18.18% 15.48% 16.62%

Continuing Operations 10.50% 14.06% 11.65%
Net Interest Margin 4.89% 5.55% 5.69%

BALANCE SHEET

Total Assets $ 3,204,405 $ 3,582,745 $ 2,778,090
Loans 2,157,039 2,644,862 1,928,293
Deposits 2,418,369 2,673,072 2,268,980
Shareholders’ Equity 292,596 249,327 217,369
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George Martinez
Chairman of the Board
Sterling Bancshares, Inc. and Sterling Bank

J. Downey Bridgwater
President and Chief Executive Officer
Sterling Bancshares, Inc. and Sterling Bank

George Beatty, Jr.

Retired President

Chamber of Commerce Division—Greater Houston
Partnership

Anat Bird
President and Chief Executive Officer
SCB Forums, Ltd.

John H. Buck
Of Counsel
Buck, Keenan & Gage, L.L.P.

James D. Calaway
President and Chief Executive Officer
Center for Houston’s Future

Bruce J. Harper
Certified Public Accountant and Consultant
Bruce J. Harper, CPA

David L. Hatcher
President
KMG Chemicals, Inc.

Glenn H. Johnson
President
Johnson & Wurzer, P.C.

James J. Kearney
Senior Vice President
Morgan Keegan & Co. Incorporated

Paul Michael Mann, M.D.
Mann Eye Center

Thomas McDade*

Personal Investments and Consulting

G. Edward Powell

Partner
Mills and Stowell

Thomas A. Reiser
Chairman
0il and Gas Division, Brown & Brown, Inc.

Steven F. Retzloff
President
Retzloff Industries, Inc.

Raimundo Riojas E.

President and Chief Executive Officer, DUWEST Inc.

a joint venture with E. I..Dupont de Nemours..- - - .

Howard T. Tellepsen
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Tellepsen Corporation

P. Michael Wells*

President
Houston Livestock Show and Rodeo

* Advisory Director



George Martinez
Chairman of the Board

J. Downey Bridgwater
President and Chief Executive Officer

Daryl'D. Bohls
Executive Vice President and Chief Credit Officer

Bambi L. McCullough

Executiyve Vice President and Chief Service Officer

Stephen C. Raffaele, CFA

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Glenn W. Rust

Executive Vice President and Chief Operations Officer

Wanda S. Dalton

Senior Vice President, Director of Human Resources

James W. Goolsby, Jr.

Senior Vice President, General Counsel, and Secretary

Graham B. Painter, APR

Senior Vice President, Corporate Communications

Danny L. Buck
Regional CEO; San Antonio Region

Clint(;n Dunn

Regional CEO; Dallas Region and Southwest Region, Houston

Travis Jaggers
Regional CEQ; West and Southeast Regions, Houston

Mike Skowronek
Regional CEO; North and City Regions, Houston

Chris Reid

Vice President, Investor Relations and Mergers & Acquisitions




Invastor Information

Stock Market Price Range and Dividends on Common Stock

2003 2003 2003 2003 2003
For the Quarter 1st 2nd 3rd 4th Year
High $12.89 $13.14 $14.00 $13.73 $14.00
Low 11.44 11.28 11.30 11.12 11.12
Dividend 0.045 0.045 0.045 0.045 0.18
Stock Listings Corporate Headquarters  Analysts
Sterling Bancshares, Inc. Sterling Bancshares, Inc. The following analysts follow
common stock is traded 2550 North Loop West Sterling Bancshares stock:
through the Nasdaq National Suite 600 Advest Inc.; FTN Midwest

Market System under the
symbol SBIB. In newspaper
listings, Sterling Banchshares
stock is frequently listed as
Sterling Bcesh or StrlBnc.

Registrar and
Transfer Agent
American Stock Transfer
& Trust Company
Shareholder Services

59 Maiden Lane

New York, NY 10038

Shareholders who have
questions regarding their
ownership of Sterling
Banchshares stock should
contact the Registrar

at 800-937-5449 or
www.amstock.com.

Dividend Calendar
Dividends on Sterling
Banchshares common
stock are payable quarterly

P.O. Box 40333
Houston, TX 77240-0333
713-466-8300

Independent Auditors
Deloitte & Touche, LLP
333 Clay Street, Suite 2300
Houston, TX 77002

SEC Reports and
Additional Information
Analysts, investors, and others
seeking copies of Sterling
Bancshares Annual Report
(Form 10-K) and Quarterly
Reports (Form 10-Q) to the
Securities and Exchange
Commission, or additional
financial information about
Sterling Bancshares, Inc., may
visit www.banksterling.com.

Research; Hibernia Southcoast
Capital; Hoefer & Arnett;
Howe Barnes; Keefe, Bruyette
& Woods, Inc.; Legg Mason
Wood Walker; Morgan Keegan;
Piper Jaffray; RBC Capital
Markets; SAMCO Capital
Markets; Stifel Nicolaus; and
Sun Trust Robinson Humphrey.

Annual Meeting

The Annual Meeting of
Shareholders will be held

on Monday, April 26, 2004,
at 1:30 p.m. at the
DoubleTree Hotel-Post Oak,
2001 Post Oak Boulevard,
Houston, TX 77056.

during February, May, August,
and November.
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UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K
(Mark One)

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For fiscal year ended December 31, 2003
OR
[ ] TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from to

Commission File Number 0-20750

- STERLING BANCSHARES, INC.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Texas 74-2175590
(State or other jurisdiction of (LR.S. employer
incorporation or organization) identification number)
2550 North Loop West, Suite 600
Houston, Texas "+ 77092
(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code)

Registrant’s telephone number, including area code: (713) 466-8300

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act: NONE

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act:

Common Stock, $1.00 par value
(Title of Class)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required
to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days: Yes [X| No O

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K (17 CFR 229.405) is
not contained herein, and will not be contained, to the best of the registrant’s knowledge, in definitive proxy or information
statements incorporated by reference in Part ITI of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K. []

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is an accelerated filer (as defined by Rule 12b-2 of the Act).
Yes No []

The aggregate market value of the registrant’s Common Stock held by non-affiliates as of June 30, 2003, the last
business day of the most recently completed second fiscal quarter, was $523,189,189 based on the closing sales price of
$12.99 on such date. For purposes of this calculation, affiliates are defined as all directors and executive officers.

As of February 27, 2004, registrant had outstanding 44,696,542 shares of Common Stock, $1.00 par value.

Documents incorporated by reference: Portions of Sterling Bancshares, Inc.’s definitive proxy statement relating to
the registrant’s 2004 Annual Meeting of Shareholders, which proxy statement will be filed under the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934 within 120 days of the end of the registrant’s fiscal year ended December 31, 2003, are incorporated by
reference into Part TH of this Form 10-K.
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PART—I
ITEM 1—BUSINESS
Overview

For almost 30 years, Sterling Bancshares, Inc. and Sterling Bank have been committed to serving small to
mid-sized businesses. We provide a broad array of financial services to Texas businesses and consumers through
37 banking offices in the greater metropolitan areas of Houston, Dallas and San Antonio, Texas. These cities are
the 4th, 8th and 9th largest in the United States.

Sterling Bancshares was incorporated under the laws of the State of Texas in 1980 and became the parent
bank holding company of Sterling Bank in 1981. Sterling Bank was chartered in 1974 under the laws of the State
of Texas. Our principal executive offices are located at 2550 North Loop West, Suite 600, Houston, Texas,
77092 and our telephone number is (713) 466-8300.

In this filing, we may refer to Sterling Bancshares, Inc., on a parent-only basis, as “Sterling Bancshares” and
to Sterling Bank and Plaza Bank as the “Bank” or the “Banks.” Sterling Bancshares, the Bank and other
subsidiaries of both may be collectively referred to as the “Company.”

At December 31, 2003, the Company had consolidated total assets of $3.2 billion, deposits of $2.4 billion,
and shareholders’ equity of $292.6 million.

During the fourth quarter of 2003, we completed the acquisition of South Texas Capital Group, Inc., a
privately held bank holding company that operated three banking offices in San Antonio, Texas under the name
of Plaza'Bank. Because systems consolidation efforts were still underway, we closed 2003 having two state-
banking charters (Sterling Bank and Plaza Bank). The operational integration was completed in January 2004 and
we now operate these acquired offices under the name of Sterling Bank.

On September 30, 2003, we sold our 80% interest in Sterling Capital Mortgage Company (“SCMC”).
SCMC provided mortgage-banking services to consumers through 110 production offices in Texas and 15 other
states. Since acquiring our initial interest in 1996, SCMC grew substantially. We decided to sell SCMC because
its operations were not a part of our fundamental business strategy and its size placed us at significant risk to
adverse changes in the mortgage industry caused by interest rate fluctuations. This sale allows us to focus on our
core business strategy of providing commercial banking services to small and mid-sized owner operated
businesses.

SCMC’s operations were reported previously as the Company’s mortgage banking segment. Following the
sale of SCMC, the Company operates a single segment engaged in the commercial banking business. The results
of SCMC have been segregated from continuing operations and are reported as discontinued operations in the
Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements.

Commercial Banking

We provide a wide range of commercial and consumer banking services, including demand, savings and
time deposits; commercial, real estate and consumer loans; merchant credit card services; letters of credit; and
cash and asset management services. In addition, we facilitate sales of brokerage, mutual fund, alternative
financing and insurance products through third party vendors. Deposits of the Banks are insured up to applicable
limits by the Bank Insurance Fund (“BIF”) of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”).

Our primary lending focus is providing commercial loans and owner-occupied real estate loans to local
businesses with annual sales ranging from $300,000 to $30 million. Typically, these customers have financing

requirements between $50,000 and $3 million. We seldom make loans over $5 million, thereby limiting our
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exposure to any single customer. Sterling Bank’s credit range, while well below its legal lending limit of

$20 million, allows for greater diversity in the loan portfolio, less competition from large banks, and better
pricing opportunities. At December 31, 2003, we had more than 21 thousand loans and our average commercial
loan size was approximately $101 thousand.

Business Banking Strategy. Under our business banking strategy, we focus on offering a broad line of
financial products and services to small and mid-sized businesses through full service banking offices. Each
banking office has senior management with extensive lending experience. These managers exercise substantial
authority over credit and pricing decisions, subject to loan committee approval for larger credits. This
decentralized decision-making structure, coupled with continuity of service by the same staff members, enables
us to develop long-term customer relationships, maintain high quality service and respond quickly to customer
needs. We believe that our emphasis on local relationship banking, together with a conservative approach to
lending, are important factors in our success and growth.

We have maintained a strong community orientation by, among other things, supporting the active
participation of our officers and employees in local charitable, civic, school, religious and community
development activities. Each banking office may also appoint selected customers to a business development
board that assists in introducing prospective customers to us and in developing or improving products and
services to meet customer needs. Our lending and investing activities are funded primarily by core deposits
through the development of broad banking relationships with customers and because of the convenience and
service customers receive at our 37 banking offices. Over one-third of our total deposits are noninterest-bearing
demand deposits.

Operational and support functions that are transparent to customers are centralized to achieve consistency
and cost efficiencies in the delivery of products and services by each banking office. The central office provides
services such as data processing, bookkeeping, accounting and finance, loan administration, loan review,
compliance, risk management and internal auditing. Credit policy and administration, strategic planning,
marketing, and other administrative services also are provided centrally. Our banking offices work closely with
our operational and support functions to develop new products and services and to introduce enhancements to
existing products and services.

Company Growth Strategy

Our growth strategy has been concentrated on increasing our banking presence in the greater Houston,
Dallas and San Antonio market areas. We have grown through a combination of internal growth, mergers and
acquisitions and the opening of new banking offices. We regularly evaluate opportunities to acquire banks and
other financial services companies that complement our existing business, expand our market coverage and
enhance our product offerings.

De Novo Offices. De novo offices are new banking offices that we build or lease. Since 1999, we have
opened five new banking offices. Three of the new offices expanded our Houston presence. In December 2000,
we opened a new banking office in Dallas. This was our first office outside the Houston market. Additionally, we
opened a new banking office in San Antonio in 2001.

In many cases, we issue a separate series of convertible preferred stock to local business owners and others
who may assist most in the business development efforts of the new banking office. These preferred shares
typically are convertible into common shares after three years at ratios based on the performance of the new
banking office. Refer to Note 16 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for more discussion of these preferred
stock issuances. Strategically, this practice is not designed to raise capital, but rather to replicate the formation of
a new community bank thereby attracting and retaining new relationships to the new office such that it reaches
profitability in a shorter period of time.




Mergers and Acquisitions. Acquisitions have been important to our growth. Our acquisitions since 1999 are
listed in the following table:

Total Assets at Total Loans at  Total Deposits at

Acquired Entity Acquisition Date Acquisition Date  Acquisition Date  Acquisition Date
South Texas Capital Group, Inc. ...... October 31, 2003 $ 83 million $ 65 million § 68 million
ENB Bankshares, Inc. .............. September 13, 2002 71 million 64 million 58 million
Community Bancshares, Inc. ......... December 17, 2001 118 million 80 million 115 million
Lone Star Bancorporation, Inc. (1) .. ... August 23, 2001 165 million 126 million 153 million
CaminoReal Bancshares of Texas,
Inc. ... March 22, 2001 284 million 146 million 248 million
B.O.A. Bancshares, Inc. (1) .......... June 1, 1999 115 million 93 million 103 million

(1) Accounted for using the pooling-of-interests method.

Refer to Note 2 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for more information regarding recent mergers and
acquisitions. We continue to seek acquisitions and new office opportunities as they become available and prove
to be aligned with our business banking philosophy.

Strategic Divestitures of Banking Offices. During 2003, the Bank sold five rural banking offices that were
not consistent with our focus on large urban centers. These banking offices were acquired as parts of previous
acquisitions and included the banking offices in Eagle Pass, Pearsall, Crystal City, Carrizo Springs, and
Highlands, Texas. In the aggregate, assets of $37.8 million, loans of $34.0 million and deposits of $150.9 million
were sold in three transactions for an aggregate pre-tax net gain of $3.5 million.

Competition

The financial services industry is highly competitive. We experience significant competition in attracting
and retaining deposits and making loans, as well as in providing other financial services in each of our market
areas. In addition, product pricing, customer convenience and service capabilities, and breadth of product lines
are significant competitive factors.

Our most direct competition for loans comes from other banks. Our most direct competition for deposits
comes from other banks, savings institutions and credit unions doing business in our market areas. As with all
banking organizations, we have also experienced competition from nonbanking sources, including mutual funds,
corporate and governmental debt securities and other investment alternatives offered within and outside of our
primary market areas. Many of our competitors are much larger in total assets and capitalization, have greater
access to capital markets and offer a broader range of financial products and services.

SUPERVISION AND REGULATION

Bank holding companies and banks are extensively regulated under federal and state laws. This regulation is
intended primarily for the protection of depositors and the deposit insurance fund and not for the benefit of
shareholders. Set forth below is a summary description of the material laws and regulations that relate to our
operations. The following descriptions do not purport to be complete and are qualified in their entirety by
reference to such statutes and regulations.

Sterling Bancshares

Sterling Bancshares and its second tier holding company, Sterling Bancorporation, Inc., are bank holding
companies registered under the Bank Holding Company Act of 1956, as amended (“BHCA”), and are subject to
supervision and regulation by the Federal Reserve Board. Federal laws subject bank holding companies to
particular restrictions on the types of activities in which they may engage, and to a range of supervisory
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requirements and activities, including regulatory enforcement actions for violations of laws and policies. In
addition, Texas law authorizes the Texas Department of Banking to supervise and regulate a holding company
controlling a state bank. Further, our securities are registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission
(“SEC”) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”). As such, we are subject
to the information, proxy solicitation, insider trading and other requirements and restrictions of the Exchange
Act,

Permissible Activities. As a bank holding company, Sterling Bancshares’ activities, as well as the activities
of entities which it controls or in which it owns 5% or more of the voting securities, are limited by the BHCA to
banking, management and control of banks, furnishing or performing services for its subsidiaries, or any other
activity which the Federal Reserve Board determines to be incidental or closely related to banking or managing
or controlling banks. The Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act enacted in 2000 amended the BHCA and granted certain
expanded powers to bank holding companies as discussed below. In approving acquisitions of entities engaged in
banking-related activities, the Federal Reserve Board considers a number of factors, including the expected
benefits to the public, such as greater convenience and increased competition or gains in efficiency, which are
weighted against the risks of possible adverse effects, such as an attempt to monopolize the business of banking,
undue concentration of resources, decreased or unfair competition, conflicts of interest, or unsound banking
practices.

Non-Banking Activities. The BHCA sets forth exceptions to its general prohibition against bank holding
company ownership of voting shares in any company engaged in non-banking activities. The exceptions include
certain activities exempt based upon the type of activity and those determined by the Federal Reserve Board to be
closely related to banking or managing or controlling banks.

Gramm-Leach-Bliley. The Gramm-Leach-Bliley (“G-L-B”) Act, which became effective in 2000,
authorizes affiliations between banking, securities and insurance firms and authorizes bank holding companies
and state banks, if permitted by state law, to engage in a variety of new financial activities. Bank holding
companies may also elect to become financial holding companies if they meet certain requirements relating to
capitalization and management and have filed a declaration with the Federal Reserve Board electing to be a
financial holding company. Among the new activities that will be permitted by bank holding companies are
securities and insurance brokerage, securities underwriting, insurance underwriting and merchant banking. The
Federal Reserve Board, in consultation with the Department of Treasury, may approve additional financial
activities.

The Company has not filed an election to be a financial holding company. The G-L-B Act is intended to
grant to community banks certain powers as a matter of right that larger institutions have accumulated on an ad
hoc basis. Nevertheless, this act has resulted in significant consolidation in the financial industry which has
increased competition from larger institutions and other types of companies offering financial products, many of
which may have substantially more financial resources than we do.

USA Patriot Act. The Uniting and Strengthening America by Providing Appropriate Tools Required to
Intercept and Obstruct Terrorism Act of 2001 (the “USA Patriot Act”) is intended to strengthen U.S. law
enforcement’s and the intelligence communities’ ability to work cohesively to combat terrorism on a variety of
fronts. Its impact is significant and wide-ranging. The regulations adopted by the U.S. Department of Treasury
mandate or will require financial institutions to implement additional policies and procedures with respect to, or
additional measures, including additional due diligence and record keeping, designed to address, any or all of the
following matters: money laundering; suspicious activities and currency transaction reporting; and currency
crimes. We have implemented and will continue to implement the provisions of the USA Patriot Act as such
provisions become effective. We maintain policies and procedures designed to comply with the USA Patriot Act
requirements. At this time, we do not expect that the USA Patriot Act will have a significant impact on the
financial position of the Company.




Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. The Sarbanes-Oxley Act is intended to increase corporate responsibility, to
provide for enhanced penalties for accounting and auditing improprieties at publicly traded companies and to
protect investors by improving the accuracy and reliability of corporate disciosures pursuant to securities laws.

The Sarbanes-Oxley Act is the most far-reaching U.S. securities legislation enacted in some time. It
generally applies to all companies, both U.S. and non-U.S., that file or are required to file periodic reports with
the SEC under the Exchange Act.

The Sarbanes-Oxley Act includes additional disclosure requirements and new corporate governance rules,
requires the SEC and securities exchanges to adopt extensive additional disclosure, corporate governance and
other related rules and mandates further studies of certain issues by the SEC. The Sarbanes-Oxley Act represents
significant federal involvement in matters traditionally left to state regulatory systems, such as the regulation of
the accounting profession, and to state corporate law, such as the relationship between a board of directors and
management and between a board of directors and its committees.

The Sarbanes-Oxley Act addresses, among other matters:
* audit committees for all reporting companies;

+ - certification of financial statements by the chief executive officer and the chief financial officer;

*  the forfeiture of bonuses or other incentive-based compensation and profits from the sale of an issuer’s
securities by directors and senior officers in the twelve month period following initial publication of any
financial statements that later require restatement due to material noncompliance of the issuer or
misconduct;

* aprohibition on insider trading during pension plan black-out periods;

¢ disclosure of off-balance sheet transactions;

* aprohibition on personal loans to directors and officers;

» expedited filing requirements for Form 4’s;

« disclosure of a code of ethics, if applicable, and filing a Form 8-K for a change or waiver of such code;

»  “real time” filing of periodic reports;

* the formation of a public accounting oversight board;

* auditor independence; and

* increased criminal penalties for violations of securities laws.

Safety and Soundness Standards. The Financial Institutions Reform, Recovery and Enforcement Act of
1989 (“FIRREA”) expanded the Federal Reserve Board’s authority to prohibit activities of bank holding
companies and their non-banking subsidiaries which represent unsafe and unsound banking practices or which
constitute violations of laws or regulations. Notably, FIRREA increased the amount of civil monetary penalties
that the Federal Reserve Board can assess for certain activities conducted on a knowing and reckless basis, if

those activities cause a substantial loss to a depository institution. The penalties can be as high as $1 million per
day. FIRREA also expanded the scope of individuals and entities against which such penalties may be assessed.

In 1995, the federal agencies that regulate banks and savings associations jointly issued guidelines for safe
and sound banking operations as required by Section 132 of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation
Improvement Act (“FDICIA”). The guidelines identify the fundamental standards that the four agencies follow
when evaluating the operational and managerial controls at insured institutions. An institution’s performance will
be evaluated against these standards during the regulators’ periodic on-site examinations.
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Dividend Restrictions. It is the policy of the Federal Reserve Board that bank holding companies should pay
cash dividends on common stock only out of income available over the past year and only if prospective earnings
retention is consistent with the organization’s expected future needs and financial condition. This policy provides
that bank holding companies should not maintain a level of cash dividends that undermines the bank holding
company’s ability to serve as a source of strength to its banking subsidiaries.

Under Federal Reserve Board policy, a bank holding company is expected to act as a source of financial
strength to each of its banking subsidiaries and commit resources to their support. Such support may be required
at times when, absent this Federal Reserve Board policy, a bank holding company may not be inclined to provide
it.

Capital Adequacy Requirements. The Federal Reserve Board monitors the capital adequacy of bank
holding companies and has adopted a system using risk-based capital adequacy guidelines to evaluate their
capital adequacy. Under the risk-based capital guidelines, different categories of assets are assigned different risk
weights, based generally on the perceived credit risk of the asset. These risk weights are multiplied by
corresponding asset balances to determine a “risk-weighted” asset base. Certain off-balance sheet items are
added to the risk-weighted asset base by converting them to a balance sheet equivalent and assigning to them the
appropriate risk weight. In addition, the guidelines define each of the capital components. Total capital is defined
as the sum of “core capital elements” (“Tier 1”) and “supplemental capital elements” (“Tier 2”), with “Tier 2”
being limited to 100% of “Tier 1.” For bank holding companies, “Tier 1” capital includes, with certain
restrictions, common shareholders’ equity, perpetual preferred stock, and minority interest in consolidated
subsidiaries less goodwill, most intangible assets and certain other assets. “Tier 2” capital includes, with certain
limitations, certain forms of perpetual preferred stock, as well as maturing capital instruments and the reserve for
credit losses. The guidelines require achievement of a minimum ratio of total capitai-io-risk-weighted assets of
8.0% (of which at least 4.0% is required to be comprised of “Tier 1” capital elements). At December 31, 2003,
the Company’s ratios of “Tier 1” and “Total” capital-to-risk-weighted assets were 12.30%, and 15.40%,
respectively.

In addition to the risk-based capital guidelines, the Federal Reserve Board and the FDIC have adopted the
use of a minimum “Tier 1” leverage ratio as an additional tool to evaluate the capital adequacy of banks and bank
holding companies. The banking organization’s “Tier 1” leverage ratio is defined to be its “Tier 1” capital
divided by its average total consolidated assets. Certain highly rated bank holding companies may maintain a
minimum leverage ratio of 3.0% “Tier 1” capital to total average assets but other bank holding companies are
required to maintain a leverage ratio of 4.0% to 5.0%. The Company’s leverage ratio at December 31, 2003 of
10.38% significantly exceeded the regulatory minimum.

Imposition of Liability for Undercapitalized Subsidiaries. A bank holding company that fails to meet the
applicable risk-based capital standards will be at a disadvantage. For example, Federal Reserve Board policy
discourages the payment of dividends by a bank holding company from borrowed funds as well as payments that
would adversely affect capital adequacy. Failure to meet the capital guidelines may result in the issuance of
supervisory or enforcement actions by the Federal Reserve Board. FDICIA requires bank regulators to take
“prompt corrective action” to resolve problems associated with insured depository institutions whose capital
declines below certain levels.

Acquisitions by Bank Holding Companies. The BHCA requires a bank holding company to obtain the prior
approval of the Federal Reserve Board before it acquires all or substantially all of the assets of any bank, or
ownership or control of any voting shares of any bank, if after such acquisition it would own or control, directly
or indirectly, more than 5% of the voting shares of such bank. In approving bank acquisitions, the Federal
Reserve Board considers the financial and managerial resources and future prospects of the bank holding
company and the banks concerned, the convenience and needs of the communities to be served, and various
competitive factors. The Attorney General of the United States may, within 30 days after approval of an
acquisition by the Federal Reserve Board, bring an action challenging sach acquisition under the federal antitrust
laws, in which case the effectiveness of such approval 1s stayed pending a final ruling by the courts.
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Community Reinvestment Act. The Community Reinvestment Act of 1977 (“CRA”) and the regulations
promulgated by the FDIC to implement CRA are intended to ensure that banks meet the credit needs of their
service area, including low and moderate income communities and individuals, consistent with safe and sound
banking practices. The CRA regulations also require the banking regulatory authorities to evaluate a bank’s
record in meeting the needs of its service area when considering applications to establish new offices or
consummate any merger or acquisition transaction. Under FIRREA, the federal banking agencies are required to
rate each insured institution’s performance under CRA and to make such information publicly available. In the
case of an acquisition by a bank holding company, the CRA performance records of the banks involved in the
transaction are reviewed as part of the processing of the acquisition application. A CRA rating other than
‘outstanding’ or ‘satisfactory’ can substantially delay or block a transaction. Based upon most recent
examinations, Sterling Bank has a satisfactory CRA rating.

Interstate Banking. The Riegle-Neal Interstate Banking and Branching Efficiency Act of 1994 (the
“Interstate Branching Act”) increased the ease and likelihood of interstate branching throughout much of the
United States. The Interstate Branching Act removes state law barriers to acquisitions in all states and allows
multi-state banking operations to merge into a single bank with interstate branches. Interstate banking and
branching authority is subject to certain conditions and restrictions, such as capital adequacy, management and
CRA compliance. The Interstate Branching Act preempts existing barriers that restrict entry into all states, such
as regional compacts and reciprocal agreements, thus creating opportunities for expansion into markets that were
previously closed. Under the Interstate Branching Act, bank holding companies are now able to acquire banks in
any state, subject to certain conditions. Banks acquired pursuant to this authority may subsequently be converted
to branches. Interstate branching is permitted by allowing banks to merge across state lines to form a single
institution. Interstate merger transactions can be used to consolidate existing raulti-state operations or to acquire
new branches. A bank may establish a new branch as its initial entry into a state only if the state has authorized
de novo branching. In addition, out-of-state banks may merge with a single branch of a bank if the state has
authorized such a transaction. The Federal Reserve Board, however, will only allow the acquisition by a bank
holding company of an interest in any bank located in another state if the statutory laws of the state in which the
target bank is located expressly authorize such acquisitions. Texas elected to “opt out” of the Interstate
Branching Act. Despite having opted out of the Interstate Branching Act, the Texas Banking Act permits, in
certain circumstances, out-of-state bank holding companies to acquire certain existing banks and bank holding
companies in Texas.

Sterling Bank and Plaza Bank .

Sterling Bank is a Texas-chartered banking association and its deposits are insured, up to applicable limits,
by the Bank Insurance Fund of the FDIC. Sterling Bank is subject to supervision and regulation by both the
Texas Department of Banking and the FDIC and may be subject to special restrictions, supervisory requirements
and potential enforcement actions. Sterling Bank is not a member of the Federal Reserve System; however, the
Federal Reserve Board also has supervisory authority that indirectly affects the Bank. Sterling Bank is a member
of the Federal Home Loan Bank and, therefore, is subject also to compliance with its requirements.

Prior to its merger into Sterling Bank, Plaza Bank was a Texas-chartered banking association whose
deposits were insured up to applicable limits, by the Bank Insurance Fund of the FDIC. Plaza Bank was subject
to supervision and regulation by both the Texas Department of Banking and the FDIC and was a member of the
Federal Reserve System; therefore subject to the direct supervision and regulation of the Federal Reserve Board.
Plaza Bank was also a member of the Federal Home Loan Bank and also subject to compliance with its
requirements.

Permissible Activities for State-Chartered Institutions. The Texas Constitution provides that a Texas-
chartered bank has the same rights and privileges that are granted to national banks domiciled in Texas. On the
other hand, FDICIA provides that no state bank or subsidiary thereof may engage as principal in any activity not
permitted for national banks, unless the institution complies with applicable capital requirements and the FDIC
determines that the activity poses no significant risk to the Bank Insurance Fund (“BIF”).
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Branching. Texas law provides that a Texas-chartered bank can establish a branch anywhere in Texas
provided that the branch is approved in advance by the Commissioner of the Texas Department of Banking (the
“Commissioner”). The branch must also be approved by the FDIC, which considers a number of factors,
including financial history, capital adequacy, earnings prospects, character of management, needs of the
community, and consistency with corporate powers. There are no federal limitations on the ability of insured
non-member state banks to branch across state lines; however, such branching would be subject to applicable
state law restrictions.

Restrictions on Transactions with Affiliates and Insiders. Transactions between the Bank and its
nonbanking affiliates, including Sterling Bancshares, are subject to Section 23A of the Federal Reserve Act. In
general, Section 23A imposes limits on the amount of such transactions, and also requires certain levels of
collateral for loans to affiliated parties. It also limits the amount of advances to third parties that are collateralized
by the securities or obligations of the holding company or its subsidiaries.

Affiliate transactions are also subject to Section 23B of the Federal Reserve Act which generally requires
that certain transactions between the Bank and its affiliates be on terms substantially the same, or at least as
favorable to the Bank, as those prevailing at that time for comparable transactions with or involving other non-
affiliated persons.

The restrictions on loans to directors, executive officers, principal shareholders and their related interests
(collectively, the “insiders”) contained in the Federal Reserve Act and Regulation O apply to all insured
institutions and their subsidiaries and holding companies. These restrictions include limits on loans to one
borrower and conditions that must be met before such a loan can be made. There is also an aggregate limitation
on all Toans to insiders and their related interests. These loans cannot exceed the institution’s total unimpaired
capital and surplus, and the FDIC may determine that a lesser amount is appropriate. Insiders are subject to
enforcement actions for knowingly accepting loans in violation of applicable restrictions.

Capital Adequacy Requirements. Banks are subject to capital adequacy requirements promulgated by the
FDIC and the Texas Department of Banking. The FDIC may establish higher minimum requirements if, for
example, a bank has previously received special attention or has a high susceptibility to interest rate risk.

The FDIC’s risk-based capital guidelines generally require state banks to have a minimum ratio of Tier 1
capital to total risk-weighted assets of 4.0% and a ratio of total capital to total risk-weighted assets of 8.0%. As of
December 31, 2003, Sterling Bank’s ratio of Tier 1 capital to total risk-weighted assets was 12.25% and its ratio
of total capital to total risk-weighted assets was 15.41%. Plaza Bank’s ratio of Tier 1 capital to total risk-
weighted assets was 7.04% and its ratio of total capital to total risk-weighted assets was 8.08% as of
December 31, 2003. See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Result of
Operations—Financial Condition—Capital Resources.”

The FDIC’s leverage guidelines require state banks to maintain Tier 1 capital of not less than 4.0% of
average total assets, except in the case of certain highly rated banks for which the requirement is 3.0% of average
total assets. The Texas Banking Department has issued a policy which generally requires state chartered banks to
maintain a leverage ratio (defined in accordance with federal capital guidelines) of 6.0%. As of December 31,
2003, Sterling Bank’s and Plaza Bank’s ratios of Tier 1 capital to average total assets (leverage ratio) were
10.25% and 7.97%, respectively.

Corrective Measures for Capital Deficiencies. The federal banking regulators are required to take “prompt
corrective action” with respect to capital-deficient institutions. Agency regulations define, for each capital
category, the levels at which institutions are “well capitalized,” “adequately capitalized,” “undercapitalized,”
“significantly undercapitalized” and “critically undercapitalized.” A “well capitalized” bank has a total risk-
based capital ratio of 10.0% or higher; a Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio of 6.0% or higher, a leverage ratio of 5.0%
or higher; and is not subject to any written agreement, order or directive requiring it to maintain a specific capital
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ratio for any capital measure. An “adequately capitalized” bank has a total risk-based capital ratio of 8.0% or
higher; a Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio of 4.0% or higher; a leverage ratio of 4.0% or higher (3.0% or higher if
the bank was rated a composite 1 in its most recent examination report and is not experiencing significant
growth). A bank is “undercapitalized” if it fails to meet any one of the ratios required to be adequately
capitalized. As of December 31, 2003, Sterling Bank was classified as “well capitalized™ and Plaza Bank was
classified as “adequately capitalized” for purposes of the FDIC’s prompt corrective action regulations.

In addition to requiring undercapitalized institutions to submit a capital restoration plan, agency regulations
contain broad restrictions on certain activities of undercapitalized institutions including asset growth, acquisition,
branch establishment and expansion into new lines of business. With certain exceptions, an insured depository
institution is prohibited from making capital distributions, including dividends, and is prohibited from paying
management fees to control persons if the institution would be undercapitalized after any such distribution or
payment.

As an institution’s capital decreases, the FDIC’s enforcement powers become more severe. A significantly
undercapitalized institution is subject to mandated capital raising activities, restrictions on interest rates paid and
transactions with affiliates, removal of management and other restrictions. The FDIC has only very limited
discretion in dealing with a critically undercapitalized institution and is virtually required to appoint a receiver or
conservator.

Banks with risk-based capital and leverage ratios below the required minimums may also be subject to
certain administrative actions, including the termination of deposit insurance upon notice and hearing, or a
temporary suspension of insurance without a hearing in the event the institutiont has no tangible capital.

Brokered Deposit Restrictions. FIRREA and FDICIA generally limit institutions that are not well
capitalized from accepting brokered deposits. In general, undercapitalized institutions may not solicit, accept or
renew brokered deposits. Adequately capitalized institutions may not solicit, accept or renew brokered deposits
unless they obtain a waiver from the FDIC. Even in that event, the institution must comply with rate limitations
imposed by the Federal Deposit Insurance Act.

Restrictions on Subsidiary Banks. Dividends paid by Sterling Bank provided substantially all of Sterling
Bancshares’ cash flow during 2003 and will continue to do so in the foreseeable future. Under federal law, a bank
may not pay a dividend that results in an “undercapitalized” situation. At December 31, 2003, there was an
aggregate of approximately $45.3 million available for the payment of dividends by Sterling Bank to Sterling
Bancshares.

Other requirements in Texas law affecting the operation of subsidiary banks include requirements relating to
maintenance of reserves against deposits, restrictions on the nature and amount of loans that may be made and
the interest that may be charged thereon and limitations relating to investments and other activities,

Examinations. The FDIC periodically examines and evaluates insured banks. FDIC examinations are
conducted every 12 months. The FDIC may, however, accept the result of a Texas Department of Banking
examination in lieu of conducting an independent examination. FDICIA authorizes the FDIC to assess the
institution for its costs of conducting the examinations.

The Texas Banking Commissioner also conducts examinations annually, unless additional examinations are
deemed necessary to safeguard the interests of shareholders, depositors and creditors. The Commissioner may
accept the results of a federal examination in lieu of conducting an independent examination. However, since
Sterling Bank’s total assets exceed $1 billion, the FDIC and the Texas Department of Banking conduct a joint
examination on an annual basis.

Audit Reports. Insured institutions with total assets of $500 million or mere must submit annual audit
reports prepared by independent auditors to federal and state regulators. In some instances, the audit report of the
institution’s holding company can be used to satisfy this requirement. In addition, financial statements prepared
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in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, management’s certifications concerning
responsibility for the financial statements, internal controls and compliance with legal requirements designated
by the FDIC, and an attestation by the anditor regarding the statements of management relating to the internal
controls must be submitted. For certain institutions with total assets of more than $3 billion, independent auditors
may be required to review quarterly financial statements. FDICIA requires that independent audit committees be
formed, consisting solely of outside directors. Committees must include members with experience in banking or
financial management, must have access to outside counsel, and must not include representatives of large
customers. Our audit committee is comprised solely of outside directors with at least one certified public
accountant designated as a financial expert.

Deposit Insurance Assessments. The FDIC assesses deposit insurance premiums on all banks in order to
adequately fund the BIF so as to resolve any insured institution that is declared insolvent by its primary regulator.
The FDIC has established a risk-based deposit insurance premium system to calculate a depository institution’s
semi-annual deposit insurance assessment. The FDIC’s semi-annual assessment is based upon the designated
reserve ratio for the BIF and the probability and extent to which the BIF will incur a loss with respect to the
institution. In addition, the FDIC can impose special assessments to cover the cost of borrowings from the U.S.
Treasury, the Federal Financing Bank, and BIF member banks.

The FDIC may adjust the assessment rate schedule twice a year without seeking prior public comment, but
only within a range of five cents per $100 above or below the premium schedule adopted. The FDIC can make
changes in the rate schedule outside the five-cent range above or below the current schedule only after a full
rulemaking with opportunity for public comment.

Expanding Enforcement Authority. One of the major additional impacts imposed by FDICIA is the
increased ability of banking regulators to monitor the activities of banks and their holding companies. The
Federal Reserve Board and FDIC have extensive authority to police unsafe or unsound practices and violations of
applicable laws and regulations by depository institutions and their holding companies. For example, the FDIC
may terminate the deposit insurance of any institution that it determines has engaged in an unsafe or unsound
practice. The agencies can also assess civil money penalties, issue cease and desist or removal orders, seek
injunctions, and publicly disclose such actions. FDICIA, FIRREA and other laws have expanded the agencies’
authority in recent years, and the agencies have not yet fully tested the limits of their powers.

Effect on Economic Environment. The policies of regulatory authorities, including the monetary policy of
the Federal Reserve Board, have a significant effect on the operating results of bank holding companies and their
subsidiaries. Among the means available to the Federal Reserve Board to affect the money supply are open
market operations in U.S. government securities, changes in the discount rate on member bank borrowings and
changes in reserve requirements against member bank deposits. These means are used in varying combinations to
influence overall growth and distribution of bank loans, investments and deposits, and their use may affect
interest rates charged on loans or paid for deposits.

Federal Reserve Board monetary policies have materially affected the operating results of commercial banks
in the past and are expected to continue to do so in the future. The nature of future monetary policies and the
effect of such policies on the Company’s business and earnings cannot be predicted.

Consumer Laws and Regulations. Banks are also subject to certain consumer laws and regulations that are
designed to protect consumers in transactions with banks. Among the more prominent of such laws and
regulations are the Truth in Lending Act, the Truth in Savings Act, the Electronic Funds Transfer Act, the
Expedited Funds Availability Act, the Equal Credit Opportunity Act, the Fair Credit Reporting Act, the Fair
Housing Act and consumer privacy protection provisions of the Gramm-Leach-Bliley. These laws and
regulations mandate certain disclosure requirements and regulate the manner in which financial institutions must
deal with customers when taking deposits or making loans to such customers. We must comply with the
applicable provisions of these consumer protection laws and regulations as part of our ongoing customer
relations.
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Employees.-Sterling Bancshares had 1,036 full time equivalent employees as of December 31, 2003. None
of the Company’s employees are represented by collective bargaining agreements and the Company considers its
employee relations to be good. In 2003, Sterling Bancshares was named as one of the top 100 companies to work
for by Fortune magazine.

Available Information. Under the Exchange Act, Sterling Bancshares is required to file annual, quarterly
and current reports, proxy statements and other information with the SEC. You may read a copy of any document
we file with the SEC at the SEC’s Public Reference Room at 450 Fifth Street, N.-W., Washington, D.C. 20549.
Please call the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330 for further information about the Public Reference Room. The SEC
maintains a web site at http://www.sec.gov that contains reports, proxy and information statements, and other
information we file electronically with the SEC.

We make available, free of charge through our web site, our reports on Forms 10-K, 10-Q and 8-K, and
amendments to those reports, as soon as reasonably practicable after such reports are filed with the SEC.
Additionally, we have adopted and posted on our web site a Code of Ethics for Senior Financial Officers that
applies to our principal executive officer, principal financial officer and principal accounting officer. Our web
site also includes the charters for our Audit Committee and Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee.
The address for our web site is http://www.banksterling.com. We will also provide a printed copy of any of these
aforementioned documents upon request.

ITEM 2—PROPERTIES

Our principal executive offices are located at 2550 North Loop West, Suite 600, Houston, Texas, 77092, in
space leased by the Company. In addition to our principal office, we operate the following locations:

Owned Leased Total

Banking offices in the Houston metropolitan area . ............ 15 i1 26
Banking offices in the San Antonio metropolitan area ......... 5 3 8
Banking offices in the Dallas metropolitanarea .............. — 3 3
Central department offices ............... .. ... i, 1 3 4

Total .« 21 20 41

The Company has options to renew leases at most locations.

ITEM 3—LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

From time to time, the Company is a party to various legal proceedings incident to its business. Currently,
neither Sterling Bancshares nor any of its subsidiaries is involved in any material legal proceedings.

ITEM 4—SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

No matters were submitted to a vote of security holders during the fourth quarter of 2003.
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PART—II

ITEM 5—MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON STOCK AND RELATED SHAREHOLDER
MATTERS

COMMON STOCK MARKET PRICES AND DIVIDENDS

Our stock trades through The Nasdag National Market under the symbol “SBIB.” The following table sets
forth the high and low closing stock prices of Sterling Bancshares’ common stock and the dividends paid thereon
for each quarter of the last two years.

Sales Price Per Share

2003 High Low Dividend
FAESt QUAITET . .\ vttt e e e $12.89 $11.44  $0.045
Secondquarter ...............chiiiiiineiii, 13.14 11.28 0.045
Thirdquarter ..ottt 14.00 11.30 0.045
Fourthquarter ......... ... ... i, 13.73 11.12 0.045

2002
Firstquarter ....... ...t $14.41 $12.36  $0.040
Second quarter ...........c.c.iiiiiiiiii 15.09 12.69 0.040
Third qUarter . .......oviirie i 15.29 12.65 0.040
Fourthquarter ...........c.. i, 13.50 10.60 0.040

On January 27, 2004, the Board of Directors declared a quarterly cash dividend of $0.05 per share payable
on February 20, 2004, to shareholders of record on February 6, 2004. We intend to continue to pay a dividend at
a minimum rate of $0.05 per share quarterly throughout 2004,

As of February 6, 2004, the Company estimates that there were 1,056 shareholders of record of common
stock. The number of beneficial shareholders is unknown to the Company at this time.

For information on the ability of Sterling Bank to pay dividends and make loans to Sterling Bancshares, see
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Financial
Condition—Interest Rate Sensitivity and Liquidity” and Note 20 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN INFORMATION

The following table provides information as of December 31, 2003 regarding compensation plans (including
individual compensation arrangements) under which equity securities are authorized for issuance:

Number of securities
remaining available
for future issuance

Number of securities Weighted-average under equity
to be issued upon exercise price of compensation plans
exercise of outstanding (excluding securities
outstanding options, options, warrants shown in the first
Plan category warrants and rights and rights column)
Equity compensation plans approved by
shareholders (1) .................. 2,080,959 $10.03 1,892,275
Equity compensation plans not approved
by shareholders .................. — —
Total ... .o 2,080,959 1,892,275
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(1) Consists of shares of our common stock issued or remaining available for issuance under our 2003 Stock
Incentive and Compensation Plan, 1994 Stock Incentive Plan (as amended and restated), 1994 Employee
Stock Purchase Plan, and 1995 Non-Employee Director Stock Compensation Plan.

(2) The table above does not include information regarding the proposed Sterling Bancshares, Inc. 2004
Employee Stock Purchase Plan to voted upon by the Company’s shareholders at the annual meeting in
April 2004.

RECENT SALES OF UNREGISTERED SECURITIES

As of April 3, 2003, we issued an aggregate of 64,350 shares of our common stock upon the conversion of
39,000 shares of our Series H Convertible Preferred Stock. The holders of the Series H Convertible Preferred
Stock previously acquired such shares from us in a private transaction in 2000. No additional consideration was
due from or paid by the holders of the Series H Convertible Preferred Stock. The common shares issued upon
such conversion were not registered under the Securities Act of 1933 because the exchange of the Series H
Convertible Preferred Stock for the shares of common stock was exempt from registration under the Securities
Act of 1933 pursuant to Section 3(a)(9) thereunder.
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ITEM 6—SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following selected financial data is derived from the Company’s audited financial statements. During
the periods indicated, the Company completed six acquisitions of bank holding companies and/or banks. With
respect to the two acquisitions completed during the reported periods which were accounted for using the
“pooling of interest” method, all financial data has been restated to include the acquired entities’ balance sheet
data and historical results of operation. On September 30, 2003, we sold our 80% interest in SCMC.
Accordingly, the operating results of SCMC are now reported together with the net gain realized on the sale as

discontinued operations.

INCOME STATEMENT DATA:

Net interest inCome . ... ...vetuti et iiene et
Provision for creditlosses .............. e
NODINTErESt INCOME . ..ottt e e et e et e iaaa e in e
NONINtETESt EXPENSE . . o oottt ettt ettt
Income from continuing operations before income taxes ...........
Income from continuing operations ............ ..o i
Income from discontinued operations ..........................
NELINCOME . .ottt e et e iean s

BALANCE SHEET DATA (at period-end):
Total ASS8ES . . oot e e
Total Joans ... ..o e e
Allowance for credit1osses ............iiiiiiininiiiinaenn
Total SECUTILES . . o vttt ettt e it e i e
Total deposits . ... v e e
Otherborrowed funds .......... .. oot
Notespayable .. ...t e
Subordinated debt ....... ... . ...
Company-obligated mandatorily redeemable trust preferred

SECUTIIIES . ottt e et ittt et e e
Shareholders’ equity ................ ... ... o i

COMMON SHARE DATA:
Earnings per share from continuing operations
Basic.... ...
Diluted . ...
Eamings per share from discontinued operations
Basic . ... .

Earnings per share

Basic ... ...

Diluted ...
Cash dividends paid per commonshare .. .......................
Book value per share at period-end ............. ... .. ...l
Tangible book value per share at period-end .. ......... ... ...
Shares used in computing earnings per common share

Basic......o e

SELECTED PERFORMANCE RATIOS:
Return on average assets .
Total ... o
ContinuIng .. ... oo
Return on average common equity
Total ...
Continuing .....ovvivii e
Common stock dividend payoutratio ..........................
NetintereSt margin . ... ..ottt ieeeeiniiireeeiines e
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Year Ended December 31,
2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
{dollars in thousands)
$ 144614 $ 147095 $ 122,547 § 103,699 § 91,821
17,698 11,700 11,684 9,668 9,236
33,078 29,611 24,650 19,846 17,047
117,603 116,106 104,075 78,783 70,737
42,391 48,500 31,438 35,094 28,895
28,354 33,183 21,308 24,534 20,205
20,756 3,368 9,093 3,006 1,431
49,110 36,551 30,401 27,540 21,636
$3,204,405 $3,582,745 $2,778,090 $2,077,214 $2,060,112
2,157,039 2,644,862 1,928,293 1,484,990 1,261,273
30,722 27,248 22,927 16,862 13,998
565,093 313,054 329,416 295,392 528,743
2,418,369 2,673,072 2268980 1,718,822 1,508,789
324,160 509,590 180,298 140,364 362,332
— 21,430 20,879 1,600 —
46,533 — — — —
80,000 80,000 57,500 28,750 28,750
292,596 249,327 217,369 166,825 141,070
$ 064 $ 076 $ 051 §% 059 % 0.49
0.64 0.74 0.50 0.58 0.48
0.47 0.08 0.22 0.07 0.03
0.46 0.08 0.21 0.07 0.03
1.11 0.83 0.72 0.66 0.52
1.10 0.82 0.71 0.65 0.51
0.18 0.16 0.15 0.13 0.12
6.55 5.65 4.96 3.98 3.40
5.09 4.34 377 3.96 3.37
44,180 43,872 42,180 41,596 41,422
44,648 44,756 43,044 42,212 42,218
1.48% 1.21% 1.24% 1.32% 1.26%
0.86% 1.10% 0.87% 1.18% 1.18%
18.18% 15.48% 16.62% 17.94% 16.60%
10.50% 14.06% 11.65% 15.98% 15.50%
16.19% 19.21% 19.41% 18.99% 20.77%
4.89% 5.55% 5.69% 5.53% 5.96%



Year Ended December 31,
2003 2002 2001 2000 1999

ASSET QUALITY RATIOS:
Nonperforming assets to period-end loans, real estate acquired by forclosure and other

TEPOSSESSEA ASSELS .+ . v oo vt ettt ettt e e e e 1.68% 0.87% 085% 0.77% 0.61%
Period-end nonperforming loans to period-end 1oans .. ....... ... oo 1.57% 0.74% 0.74% 0.65% 048%
Period-end nonperforming assets to period-end assets .. .......... i i 1.13% 0.64% 058% 055% 037%
Period-end allowance for credit losses to nonperforming loans ..................... ... 90.66% 138.64% 161.51% 175.74% 229.89%
Period-end allowance for credit losses to period-end loans ............................ 142% 1.03% 1.19% 1.14% 1.11%
Net charge-offs to average 10ans . . . ... .. ottt i s 0.60% 037% 049% 051% 0.59%

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RATIOS:

Average loans to average deposits . ... ... .. i 99.91% 92.74% 84.28% 83.34% 77.70%
Period-end shareholders’ equity to total assets ........cooviii i 9.13% 69%6% 782% 8.03% 6.85%
Average shareholders’ equity to average assets ... .............uiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiia 817% 783% 750% 741% 7.70%
Tier 1 capital to risk weighted assets . ... ... .ot 12.30% 8.41% 9.64% 10.51% 10.82%
Total capital to risk weighted assets ........... ... ... i 15.40% 9.29% 10.66% 11.26% 11.74%
Tier 1 leverage ratio (Tier 1 capital to total average assets) ...............covvvvvainnn. 10.38% 7.81% 840% 9.10% 8.21%

ITEM 7—MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This report may contain certain statements relating to the future results of the Company based upon
information currently available. These “forward-looking statements” (as defined in Section 27A of the Securities
Act of 1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the Exchange Act) are typically identified by words such as
“expects,” “anticipates,” “intends,” “plans,” “believes,” “seeks,” “estimates,” or words of similar meaning, or
future or conditional verbs such as “will,” “would,” “should,” “could,” or “may.”

3 ¢ EEINY 2y ¢

Forward-looking statements provide our expectation or predictions of future conditions, events or results.
Forward-looking statements involve risks and uncertainties that may cause actual results to differ materially from
those in such statements. These risks and uncertainties include, but are not limited to, the following:

» general business and economic conditions in the markets we serve may be less favorable than
anticipated which could decrease the demand for loan, deposit and other financial services and increase
loan delinquencies and defaults;

* changes in market rates and prices may adversely impact the value of sccurities, loans, deposits and
other financial instruments;

* our liquidity requirements could be adversely affected by changes in our assets and liabilities;

» the effect of legislative or regulatory developments including changes in laws concerning taxes,
banking, securities, insurance and other aspects of the financial securities industry;

* competitive factors, including product and pricing pressures among financial services organizations,
may increase;

» the effect of changes in accounting policies and practices, as may be adopted by regulatory agencies, as
well as the Financial Accounting Standards Board and other accounting regulatory agencies; and

+ the effect of fiscal and governmental policies of the United States federal government.
Forward-looking statements speak only as of the date they are made. We do not undertake to update
forward-looking statements to reflect circumstances or events that occur after the date the forward-looking

statements are made or to reflect the occutrence of unanticipated events, such as market deterioration that
adversely affects credit quality and asset values.
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INTRODUCTION

“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” analyzes major
elements of our consolidated financial statements and provides insight into important areas of management’s
focus. This introduction highlights selected information in this report and may not contain all of the information
that is important to you. For a more complete understanding of trends, events, commitments, liquidity, capital
resources and critical accounting estimates, you should carefully read this entire report.

Our success is highly dependent on economic conditions and market interest rates. Because we operate
primarily in Houston, and to a lesser extent, in the Dallas and San Antonio metropolitan areas, the local
economic conditions of these areas are particularly important.

During the course of 2003, we experienced the impact of the recent economic downturn in our asset quality
measures. This lag is expected in any economic downturn, as business customers who have struggled to survive
the effects of recession become unsuccessful in doing so. We expect that asset quality measures will improve in
2004 as the national and local economies improve.

Steep declines in market interest rates over the past few years have dramatically affected our earnings. At
December 31, 2003, interest rates are near 40-year lows. While lower interest rates are designed to stimulate the
economy, they can have a significant impact on bank earnings. We realize income primarily from the difference
between interest earned on loans and investments and the interest paid on deposits and borrowings. Each of these
financial instruments reacts differently to interest rates.

During the last few years of declining interest rates, our net interest margin has dropped from 5.96% in 1999
to 4.89% for 2003. This significantly reduced our earnings. We have noted a slowdown in the rate of decrease in
the margin during the latter part of 2003 and, based on these trends, expect the margin will stabilize in 2004. The
Company’s balance sheet is positioned to benefit from a rising rate environment.

There are several factors impacting comparisons of our financial statements for 2003 to earlier years. These
factors should be kept in mind when considering our future prospects as well:

» Sale of SCMC
¢ Divestitures of banking offices
¢ Acquisition of Plaza Bank

2003 was a year of transition for Sterling Bancshares and Sterling Bank. We made several key decisions
designed to more clearly align our operations with our long term vision and strategy.

The strategic divestiture of SCMC was made to better position the Company to serve small and mid-sized
businesses. We plan to use the net proceeds of the sale to support our ongoing internal growth and to make
strategic acquisitions within our target market areas. SCMC’s operations were reported previously as the
Company’s mortgage-banking segment; which is now reported together with the net gain on sale as discontinued
operations. Other areas of our financial statements affected by the sale of SCMC are not as easily highlighted. As
a banking operation, Sterling Bank benefited by providing SCMC with a warehouse line of credit which financed
mortgage loans held for sale. Additionally, SCMC maintained operating and escrow deposits with Sterling Bank
reducing Sterling Bank’s other borrowing needs. Due to decisions made by the buyer of SCMC, Sterling Bank
lost the benefit of these loan and deposit balances shortly after completing the sale of SCMC in September 2003.

Also in 2003, we sold five banking offices acquired as part of recent acquisitions. These banking offices
were located in Eagle Pass, Pearsall, Crystal City, Carrizo Springs and Highlands, Texas and were sold because
their operations and growth potential did not align with our business banking strategy of serving small and mid-
sized businesses in the major metropolitan areas.
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Finally, acquisitions we make will not only affect comparisons with previous periods, but also our future
prospects. During the fourth quarter of 2003, we completed the acquisition of South Texas Capital Group, Inc. of
San Antonio and its subsidiary bank, Plaza Bank.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The Company’s accounting policies are important to understanding the results reported. Accounting policies
are described in detail in Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements in this annual report.

Allowance for credit losses —~ The allowance for credit losses is a valuation allowance for probable losses
incurred on loans and binding loan commitments. Loans are charged to the allowance when the loss actually
occurs or when a determination is made that a probable loss has occurred. Recoveries are credited to the
allowance at the time of recovery. Throughout the year, management estimates the probable level of losses to
determine whether the allowance for credit losses is adequate to absorb losses in the existing portfolio. Based on
these estimates, an amount is charged to the provision for credit losses and credited to the allowance for credit
losses in order to adjust the allowance to a level determined to be adequate to absorb losses. Management’s
judgment as to the level of probable losses on existing loans involves the consideration of current economic
conditions and their estimated effects on specific borrowers; an evaluation of the existing relationships among
loans, potential credit losses and the present level of the allowance; results of examinations of the loan portfolio
by regulatory agencies; and management’s internal review of the loan portfolio. In determining the collectibility
of certain loans, management also considers the fair value of any underlying collateral. The amount ultimately
realized may differ from the carrying value of these assets because of economic, operating or other conditions
beyond the Company’s control. Please refer to the subsequent discussion of “Allowance for Credit Losses”
below as well as in Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for additional insight into management’s
approach and methodology in estimating the allowance for credit losses.

Stock-based Compensation — The Company accounts for stock-based employee compensation plans using
the intrinsic value-based method. Because the exercise price of the Company’s employee stock options equals the
market price of the underlying stock on the date of grant, no compensation expense is recognized on options
granted. Compensation expense for restricted stock awards is based on the market price of the stock on the date
of grant and is recognized ratably over the vesting period of the award. We make pro forma disclosures of net
income and earnings per share assuming the fair value-based accounting method in Note 1 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

The Financial Accounting Standards Board (the “FASB”) is currently working on a project to address issues
related to equity-based compensation. The objective of the project is to achieve convergence with international
standards setting bodies on one single, global accounting standard for equity-based compensation. In the project,
the FASB wishes to resolve whether compensation paid in the form of equity instruments should be recognized
in the financial statements and how this compensation should be measured.

The FASB has tentatively determined that all equity-based compensation should be recognized in the
financial statements beginning in 2005. Deliberations as to how equity-based compensation should be measured
are ongoing. The FASB is scheduled to issue an exposure draft in the first quarter of 2004 and has set a goal of
issuing a final accounting standard in the second half of 2004.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Performance Summary

Net income for 2003 was $49.1 million compared with $36.6 million in 2002, an increase of 34.4%. Diluted
earnings per common share were $1.10 in 2003 and $0.82 in 2002, an increase of 34.1%. An after-tax net gain on
the sale of SCMC of $22.1 million in 2003 and after-tax net gains on the sale of five banking offices of $2.3
million are included in net income for 2003. As discussed above, the operations and net gain on sale of SCMC
are presented as discontinued operations, whereas the operations and net gain on the sale of the banking offices
are presented as continuing operations.
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On a continuing operations basis, diluted earnings per share were $0.64 in 2003 compared with $0.74 in
2002. The decrease in earnings per share for 2003 was caused principally by a decline in our net interest income
and an increase in the provision for credit losses.

Net income for 2002 was $36.6 million compared with $30.4 million in 2001, an increase of 20.2%. Diluted
earnings per share were $0.82 in 2002 and $0.71 in 2001, an increase of 15.5%. Included in these prior year net
income amounts are after-tax acquisition related charges of $534 thousand in 2002 and $2.1 million in 2001. The
Company incurred non-cash expenses of $1.4 million in 2002 related to the prepayment of its 9.28% Trust
Preferred Securities.

Two commonly used industry measures of a banking institution’s performance are return on average assets
and return on average common equity. Return on average assets (“ROA’) measures net earnings in relation to
average total assets and is an indicator of a company’s ability to employ its resources profitably. For 2003, our
ROA (from continuing operations) was 0.86%, as compared to 1.10% and 0.87% for 2002 and 2001,
respectively.

Return on average common equity (“ROE”) measures net income in relation to average common equity and

is an indicator of a company’s return to its owners. For 2003, the Company’s ROE (from continuing operations)
was 10.50% compared to 14.06% and 11.65% for 2002 and 2001, respectively.
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Net Interest Income

Net interest income represents the amount by which interest income on interest earning assets, including
securities and loans, exceeds interest paid on interest bearing liabilities, including deposits and other borrowed
funds. Net interest income is our principal source of earnings. Interest rate fluctuations, as well as changes in the
amount and type of earning assets and liabilities, combine to affect net interest income.

Certain average balances, together with the total dollar amounts of interest income and expense and the
average interest rates, were as follows (dollars in thousands):

Interest earning assets:
Deposits in financial institutions
Federal funds sold and securities
purchased under agreements to
resell
Trading assets
Securities (taxable)
Securities (non-taxable)
Loans held for sale (taxable) (1)
Loans held for investment
(taxable) (1)
Loans held for investment
(non-taxable)

Total interest earning assets
Noninterest earning assets:
Cash and due from banks
Premises and equipment, net
Other assets
Allowance for credit losses
Assets related to discontinued

operations

Total noninterest earning assets . . ..

Total assets

Interest bearing liabilities:

Demand and savings deposits
Certificates and other time deposits . . .
Other borrowed funds
Notes payable
Subordinated debt

Total interest bearing liabilities . ...
Noninterest bearing liabilities:
Demand deposits
Other liabilities
Liabilities related to discontinued

operations

Total noninterest bearing
liabilities
Trust preferred securities
Shareholders’ equity

Total liabilities and shareholders’
equity

Net interest income and margin (2) ...

Year Ended December 31,
2003 2002 2001
Average Average Average
Average Yield/ Average Yield/ Average Yield/
Balance Interest Rate Balance Interest Rate Balance Interest Rate
$ 1392 % 69 496% 3 1960 3 106 541% $ 1235 $ 79 6.40%
17,763 176  0.99% 25,326 463  1.83% 74,229 3,578  4.82%
125,722 3,567 2.84% 114,752 4,540 3.96% 49,352 2,787  5.65%
293,198 10947 3.73% 242,004 13,957  577% 265,064 16,667 6.29%
51,560 2266  4.39% 66,509 2,890 435% 70,814 3304 4.67%
441,377 23965 543% 407,055 27,660 6.80% 179,627 13,459 7.49%
2,019,903 130,102 644% 1,785490 128,935 7.22% 1,510,000 132440 8.77%
4,558 291  6.38% 5,330 307 5.76% 4,240 285 6.72%
2,955,473 171,383  5.80% 2,648,426 178,858 6.75% 2,154,561 172,599 8.01%
99,902 97,404 88,773
48,163 51,879 51,968
202,215 205,193 146,008
(30,584) (25,056) (20,296)
35,636 44,315 24,754
355,332 373,735 291,207
$3,310,805 $3,022,161 $2,445,768
$ 898,377 $ 4,752 0.53% $ 887,544 $ 8541 096% $ 784,054 $ 16915 2.16%
664,923 14608 2.20% 638,048 17479 2.74% 547,600 26,141 477%
392,548 4921 1.25% 284,965 4946 1.74% 175,106 6,861 3.92%
18,667 585  3.13% 20,985 797  3.80% 3,369 135 4.01%
34,649 1,903 5.49% — — — — — —
2,009,164 26,769 1.33% 1,831,542 31,763 1.73% 1,510,129 50,052 3.31%
904,711 844,401 678,134
21,167 15,355 10,972
25,342 24,574 10,358
951,220 884,330 699,464
80,000 69,620 52,853
270,421 236,669 183,322
$3,310,805 $3,022,161 $2,445,768
4.89% 5.69%

$144,614
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(1) Loan origination fees are reported together with interest income on loans. These fees aggregated
$5.3 million, $5.1 million and $2.8 million for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001,
respectively. Related loan origination costs are not separately allocated to loans, but are charged to non-
interest expense. For the purpose of calculating loan yields, average loan balances include nonaccrual loans
with no related interest income.

(2) The net interest margin is equal to net interest income divided by average total interest earning assets.
The following rate/volume analysis shows the portions of the net change in interest income due to changes

in volume or rate. The changes in interest income due to both rate and volume in the analysis have been allocated
proportionately to the volume or rate changes (in thousands):

2003 vs. 2002 2002 vs. 2001
Increase (Decrease) Increase (Decrease)
Due to Changes in: Due to Changes in:
Yolume Rate Total Volume Rate Total
Interest-earning assets:
Deposits in financial institutions ............ $ @B 3 ©® $ BGNHS$ 46 $ (19 $ 27
Federal funds sold and securities purchased -
under agreements toresell ........... e {(138) 149y --@287) (2,357 - (758 — (3 115y
Trading assets . ............. e 434 (1,407). - -(973)..- -3,693. (1,940 - 1,753 -—--
Securities (taxable) ...................... 2,952 (5,962) (3,010) (1,450) (1,260) (2,710)
Securities (non-taxable) ................... (650) 26 (624) (201) 213) (414)
Loans held for sale (taxable) ............... 2,332 (6,027) (3,695) 17,041 (2,840) 14,201
Loans held for investment (taxable) ......... 16,928 (15,761) 1,167 24,163 (27,668)  (3,505)
Loans held for investment (non-taxable) ... ... (44) 28 (16) 73 5D 22
Total interest income ............coovvennn. 21,783  (29,258) (7,475) 41,008 (34,749) 6,259
Interest-bearing liabilities:
Demand and savings deposits .............. 104 (3,893) (3,789) 2,233 (10,607) (8,374)
Certificates and other time deposits .......... 736 3,607y (2,871 4318 (12,980) (8,662)
Other borrowed funds .................... 1,867 (1,892) 25) 4,304 (6,219)  (1,915)
Notespayable ........................... (88) (124) (212) 706 44) 662
Subordinated debt ....................... 1,903 — 1,903 — — —
Total interest expense .................... 4,522 9,516) (4,994) 11,561 (29,850) (18,289)
Net interest INCOME .o oo vin e, $17,261 $(19,742) $(2,481) $29,447 $ (4,899) $ 24,548

Net interest income for 2003 was $144.6 million, down $2.5 million or 1.7% from $147.1 million for 2002.
The decrease in net interest income is attributable primarily to the decrease in yields on the Bank’s loans,
securities and deposits offset by the increased volumes of loans and securities. The average yield on interest-
earning assets decreased 95 basis points from 6.75% in 2002 to 5.80% in 2003.

In November 2002 and June 2003, the Federal Reserve Bank decreased the discount rate 50 basis points and
25 basis points, respectively. Since our balance sheet is asset sensitive, our interest-earning assets generally
reprice more quickly than the interest-bearing liabilities. Average interest-earning assets increased $307.0 million
or 11.6% during 2003 offsetting much of the impact of lower yields. Additionally, competitive pressures often
limit our ability to reduce rates on deposits by the same amounts as we do on loans during periods of declining
rates.

Average interest-bearing liabilities for 2003 were $2.0 billion, an increase of $177.6 million or 9.7%. The
cost of interest-bearing liabilities decreased 40 basis points from 1.73% for 2002 to 1.33% for 2003.
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Overall, the Company’s net interest margin of 4.89% in 2003 decreased 66 basis points from the 5.55% net
interest margin during 2002. Because we are asset-sensitive, our net interest margin and net interest income
generally tends to increase during periods of rising interest rates and decrease during periods of declining interest
rates.

Net interest income for 2002 was $147.1 million, up $24.5 million or 20.0% from $122.5 million for 2001.
The growth in net interest income is attributable primarily to a 29.8% increase in average loans during 2002
partially offset by decreasing interest rates. Loan growth related to acquisitions made during this period was
5.1%.

The Federal Reserve Bank decreased the discount rate in the aggregate by 475 basis points in 2001 and
50 basis points in November of 2002. Consequently, our yields on interest-earning assets decreased in 2001 and
2002 as a result of the Bank lowering its prime rate in relation to the Federal Reserve decreases and as maturing
fixed-rate loans and securities were redeployed into new instruments having lower yields.

Average interest-bearing liabilities for 2002 were $1.8 billion, an increase of $321.4 million or 21.2% from
the 2001 average. Average interest-bearing deposits increased 14.6%. The increase in average interest-bearing
deposits related to acquisitions during this period was 7.8%. The cost of interest-bearing liabilities decreased
158 basis points from 3.31% in 2001 to 1.73% in 2002. Overall, the Company’s net interest margin of 5.55% for
2002 decreased 14 basis points from 5.69% for 2001.

Noninterest Income

Noninterest income consisted of the following (in thousands):

2003 2002 2001

CUSHOIET SETVICE TEES . . v v e e e ettt e e e 516,214  $16,893  $14,834
Net gain on the sale of banking offices .................... ... 3,517 — —

Bank-owned life insurance income ............... ... 0., 2,010 2,084 2,049
Debitcardfees ... .. i e 1,451 1,327 877
Net gain on the sale of trading assets . ........................ 1,186 1,018 298
Net gain on the sale of securities ............................ 905 110 157
Other . .. 7,795 8,179 6,435
Total .. $33,078 $29.611  $24,650

Noninterest income for 2003 totaled $33.1 million, an increase of $3.5 million or 11.7% over the
$29.6 million in 2002. Included in noninterest income for 2003 is $3.5 million of pre-tax net gain on the sale of
the banking offices in Eagle Pass, Pearsall, Carrizo Springs, Crystal City and Highlands. These offices were sold
because their operations and growth potential did not fit with our business banking strategy.

For 2002, noninterest income was $29.6 million, as compared to $24.7 million for 2001, an increase of
$5.0 million or 20.1%. During 2002, customer service fees increased $2.1 million or 13.9%, primarily as a result
of acquisitions during these periods and other internal growth in deposit transaction accounts. The increased gain
on trading assets occurred due to the trading department being established in the second quarter of 2001. In 2002,
the Bank began selling the guaranteed portion of SBA loans resulting in a premium of $312 thousand being
recognized in 2002. Also in 2002, the Bank began selling fixed and variable annuity products and recorded
income totaling $300 thousand in 2002.
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Noninterest Expense

The following table shows the detail of noninterest expense (in thousands):

2003 2002 2001

Salaries and employee benefits .......... ... ... ... ... ... $ 65525 $ 63430 $ 55,115
Occupancy EXPEnSES . ....vvveiein it 15,364 15,181 13,964
Technology . ... 5,170 5,046 5,053
Professional fees . ... ... i i 4,624 4,205 2,966
Postage and deliverycharges ........... ... .. ... ... ... 2,173 2,289 2,049
SUpPHes ... e 1,301 1,401 1,512
Net losses and carrying costs of real estate acquired by

foreclosure ........ ... . i (541) 481 176
FDIC @SSESSMENL . ..ottt et ia e e 406 390 470
Minority interest expense—company obligated mandatorily

reedmable trust preferred securities of subsidiary trust ... ... 6,188 5,916 4,716
Acquisition-related expenses . ......... . ol 66 822 3,181
Amortization of core depositintangible . . .......... ... .. .. 465 426 —
Other .. ... e 16,862 16,519 14,873
Total .. $117,603 $116,106  $104,075

Salaries and employee benefits for 2003 were $65.5 million, as compared to $63.4 million for 2002, an
increase of $2.1 million or 3.3%. The increase was primarily related to merit increases and increased hospital and
medical insurance expenses. At December 31, 2003, we had 1,036 full-time equivalent employees compared with
1,065 at December 31, 2002.

Salaries and employee benefits for 2002 totaled $63.4 million, an increase of $8.3 million or 15.1% over
$55.1 million for 2001. Increased salaries and employee benefits expenses related to acquisitions completed
during these periods were $2.3 million. Also salaries increased because of the new banking office opened in San
Antonio in June 2002, the new energy lending division established during the first quarter of 2002 and the trading
department established in the second quarter of 2001. In all, the number of full-time equivalent employees
increased by 51 to 1,065 at December 31, 2002 as compared with December 31, 2001.

Professional fees in 2003 totaled $4.6 million, an increase of $419 thousand or 10.0% from $4.2 million in
2002. The increase during 2003 was due primarily to consulting of $759 thousand related to various analysis and
operations overviews of SCMC prior to the announced sale. Professional fees in 2002 totaled $4.2 million, an
increase of $1.2 million or 41.8% from $3.0 million in 2001. The 2002 increase was due primarily to
$906 thousand of computer software consulting fees related to the trustee deposits held by the Bank.

Minority interest expense increased $272 thousand or 4.6% during 2003 and $1.2 million or 25.4% during
2002. These increases are primarily related to the net effect of the redemption of trust preferred securities in
November 2002 and issuance of trust preferred securities in September 2002, August 2002 and March 2001.
Refer to the subsequent discussion of “Company-Obligated Mandatorily Redeemable Trust Preferred Securities”
for additional details.

In 2002, the Company recorded $822 thousand in acquisition-related expenses incurred in connection with
the acquisition of ENB Bankshares. Acquisition-related expenses related to the three acquisitions in 2001 totaled
$3.2 million. Acquisition-related expenses include employee retention and severance expenses as well as data
processing costs related to the conversions of the acquired banks’ systems.

Other noninterest expenses totaled $16.9 million for 2003, an increase of $421 thousand or 2.6% from 2002.
We increased our marketing and branding efforts through increased television, print and radio advertising. As a
result, marketing expenses increased $924 thousand from 2002. Other expenses totaled $16.5 million in 2002, an
increase of $1.6 million or 10.8%, from $14.9 million in 2001. In 2002, the Company recorded $1.4 million of
non-cash expenses related to the early redemption of trust preferred securities in November 2002.
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Income Taxes

The Company provided $39.1 million for federal income taxes for 2003, $18.1 miilion for 2002 and
$16.4 million for 2001. The effective tax rates for 2003, 2002, and 2001 were 44.3%, 33.1%, and 35.1%,
respectively. Our provision for taxes and our effective tax rate increased during 2003 principally because of a tax
election made pursuant to Section 338(h)(10) of the Internal Revenue Code as part of the sale of SCMC.

On a continuing operations basis, our effective tax rates for 2003, 2002, and 2001 were 33.1%, 32.1%, and

32.2%, respectively.

FINANCIAL CONDITION

Loans Held for Investment

The following table summarizes our loan portfolio by type as of December 31 of the year indicated,

excluding loans held for sale (dollars in thousands):

2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
Amount % Amount % Amount % Amount % Amount %
Commercial, financial and
industrial:
US addressees ... .... $ 658,881 30.9% $ 585,685 30.1% $ 506,272 304% $ 472,392 35.1% $ 436,518 36.7%
Non-US addressees . . . 7,886 0.4% 7,207 0.4% 7,594 0.5% 4,807 04% 5,917 0.5%
Real estate mortgage:
Commercial .......... 756,163  355% 626,132  32.2% 530,076 31.8% 449,007 334% 360,092 30.2%
Residential ........... 201,279 9.5% 201,238 104% 186,527 112% 155,796 11.5% 141,661 11.9%
Real estate construction .. . 401,578 18.8% 371,207 19.1% 282,304 16.9% 134,482 10.0% 115,761 9.7%
Consumer .............. 104,944 49% 152,092 78% 154,015 92% 129,358 9.6% 130,920 11.0%
Total .................. $2,130,731 100.0% $1,943,561 100.0% $1,666,788 100.0% $1,345,842 100.0% $1,190,869 100.0%

At December 31, 2003, loans held for investment were $2.1 billion, an increase of $187.2 million or
9.6% over loans at December 31, 2002 of $1.9 billion. Much of this increase was due to internal loan growth.
Loans acquired in the acquisition of Plaza Bank in October 2003 totaled $65.9 million. We sold $34 million of
loans associated with the five banking offices divested in 2003.

Loans held for investment were 88.1% of deposits and 66.5% of total assets at December 31, 2003. At
December 31, 2002, loans held for investment were 72.7% of deposits and 54.2% of total assets.

Our primary lending focus is on commercial loans and owner-occupied real estate loans to local businesses
with annual sales ranging from $300 thousand to $30 million. Typically, our customers have financing
requirements between $50 thousand and $3 million. Sterling Bank’s legal lending limit was $20 million at
December 31, 2003 and was not exceeded by any single relationship.

We make commercial loans primarily to small and mid-sized businesses and to professionals. Our
commercial loan products include revolving lines of credit, letters of credit, working capital loans, and loans to
finance accounts receivable, inventory and equipment. Typically, commercial loans have floating rates of
interest, are for varying terms (generally not exceeding three years), are personally guaranteed by the business
owner and are secured by accounts receivable, inventory and/or other business assets. In addition to the
commercial loans secured solely by non-real estate business assets, we make commercial loans that are secured
by owner-occupied real estate, as well as other business assets.

Commercial mortgage loans are secured generally by first liens on real estate, typically have floating
interest rates, and are most often amortized over a 15-year period with balloon payments due at the end of three

years. In underwriting commercial mortgage loans, consideration is given to the property’s operating history,
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future operating projections, current and projected occupancy, location and physical condition. The underwriting
analysis also includes credit checks, appraisals, and a review of the financial condition of the borrower.

We also make loans to finance the construction of residential and, to a lesser extent, nonresidential
properties, such as churches. Generally, construction loans are secured by first liens on real estate and have
floating interest rates. The Bank conducts periodic inspections, either directly or through an architect or other
agent, prior to approval of periodic draws on these loans. Underwriting guidelines similar to those described
above are also used in our construction lending activities.

The Bank makes automobile, boat, home improvement and other loans to consumers. These loans are
primarily made to customers who have other business relationships with us.

Loan maturities and rate sensitivity of the total loan portfolio excluding real estate-mortgage and consumer
loans at December 31, 2003 were as follows (in thousands):

Due After
One Year
Due in One Through Due After
Year or Less Five Years Five Years Total

Commercial, financial and industrial ......... $ 528,713 .$126,259 §$ 6,919 - -$ 661,891
Real estate—commercial .................. 507,576 221,294 31,991 760,861
Real estate—construction ................. 332,502 57,702 11,309 401,513
Foreignloans ........................... 5,027 2,860 577 8,464
Totalloans ........... ... ... ... .. $1,373,818  $408,115 $50,796 $1,832,729
Loans with a fixed interestrate ............. $ 205,583 $396,139  $49,858 $ 651,580
Loans with a floating interestrate ........... 1,168,335 11,976 938 1,181,249
Totalloans ............... ... iinon... $1,373,918  $408,115 $50,796 $1,832,829

As of December 31, 2003, there was no concentration of loans to any one type of industry exceeding 10% of
total loans nor were there any loans classified as highly leveraged transactions. The Bank had no material foreign
loans outstanding for the years ended December 31, 1999 through 2003.

Loans Held for Sale

Loans held for sale totaled $26.3 million at December 31, 2003, as compared with $701.3 million at
December 31, 2002. Loans held for sale as of December 31, 2002 included $695.6 million of loans funded by the
Bank through a mortgage warehouse line to SCMC. Shortly after the sale of SCMC on September 30, 2003, this
mortgage warehouse line was repaid in full at the discretion of the buyer. Loans held for sale at December 31,
2003 included certain purchased commercial real estate loans and the guaranteed portion of SBA loans originated
by the Bank. Due to the timing of the sales of these loans to investors, the balance of loans held for sale at any
given time may be somewhat volatile.
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Securities

The carrying amount of securities we held at December 31 are shown below (dollars in thousands).

2003 2002 2001
Amount % Amount % Amount %

U.S. Treasury securities and obligations of U.S.

government agencies .. ............ ... $ 86,108 152% $ 39,388 12.6% $ 28,937 8.8%
Obligations of states and political subdivisions ... 42,769 7.6% 60,823 19.4% 74,985 22.8%
Mortgage-backed securities and collateralized

mortgage obligations ......... ... ... ... ... 402,595 71.2% 189,560 60.6% 220,355 66.9%
Other securities .............c.c.vuiiueennnn.. 33,621 6.0% 23,283 7.4% 5,139 1.5%
Total ..o $565,093 100.0% $313,054 100.0% $329,416 100.0%

At December 31, 2003, total securities of $565.1 million increased $209.9 million from $313.1 million at
December 31, 2002. These securities represented 23.4% and 11.7% of total deposits and 16.3% and 8.7% of total
assets as of December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. During the fourth quarter of 2003, we significantly
increased the size of the security portfolio in an effort to rebalance liquidity and redeploy earning assets
subsequent to the sale of SCMC.

The carrying amount of securities at December 31, 2003, by contractual maturity is shown below (dollars in
thousands):

Due <1 Year Due 1-5 Years Due 5-10 Years Due > 10 Years
Amount Yield Amount Yield Amount Yield Amount Yield Total
Obligations of U.S.
government agencies .... $ 55,199 1.25%§ 30,909 2.22%% — — $§ — — § 86,108
Obligations of states and
political subdivisions . . . . 5474 6.38% 26,373 6.62% 10,517 6.79% 405 8.02% 42,769

Mortgage-backed securities

and collateralized

mortgage obligations . . . . 9,973 1.72% 222,127 3.01% 78,632 4.39% 91,863 4.22% 402,595
Other securities .......... 33,621 4._36% - = —_ - 33,621

$104,267 2.57% $279,409 3.26% $89,149  4.67% $92,268 4.24% $565,093

Rl

&

The yield on the Bank’s securities portfolio at December 31, 2003 was 3.78%. The weighted-average life of
the portfolio was approximately 5.3 years and the modified duration was approximately 3.2 years. The yield on
the securities portfolio at December 31, 2002 was 4.7%. At December 31, 2002, the weighted-average life of the
portfolioc was approximately 2.3 years and the modified duration was approximately 1.7 years.

The Company did not own any securities of any one issuer (other than the U.S. government and its
agencies) of which aggregate adjusted cost exceeds 10% of the consolidated shareholders’ equity at December
31, 2003.

Deposits

Our lending and investing activities are funded primarily by deposits, approximately 82% of which were
core deposits at December 31, 2003. Core deposits exclude brokered deposits and time deposits over $100,000.
These “jumbo” deposits are characteristically more sensitive to changes in interest rates and, thus, are not
considered a part of our core funding.

Noninterest bearing deposits at December 31, 2003 were $834.3 million as compared to $1.0 billion at
December 31, 2002, a decrease of $182.6 million or 17.9%. Approximately $151 million of deposits were
transferred as part of the sales of five banking offices in 2003. Also, $148 million of SCMC operating funds and
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escrow balances on deposit with the Bank were withdrawn shortly after the sale of SCMC. Approximately 34.5%
of deposits at December 31, 2003 were noninterest bearing.

The average balances and weighted average rates paid on deposits for each of the years ended December 31,
2003, 2002, and 2001 are presented below (dollars in thousands):

2003 2002 2001

Average Average Average Average Average Average

Balance Rate Balance Rate Balance Rate
Noninterest bearing demand deposits . . . .. $ 904,711 $ 844,401 $ 678,134
Interest bearing demand and savings

deposits . ........ .. i, 898,377 0.53% 887,544 0.96% 784,054 2.16%

Time deposits ....................... 664923  220% 638,048 274% _ 547.600 4.77%
Total ... ... ... . $2,468,011 &% $2,369,993 _1.2% $2,009,788 }_2%

During 2003, average total deposits increased $98.0 million or 4.1% as compared with the 2002 average
balances. Average total deposits for 2002 were $2.4 billion, which was $360.2 million or 17.9% over average
total deposits during 2001 of $2.0 billion. The 2003 and 2002 increases are primarily attributable to internal
deposit growth and the acquisitions completed during the period.

Average brokered certificates of deposit totaled $87.6 million in 2003 and $34.9 million in 2002.

The maturities of time deposits of $100 thousand or more at December 31, 2003 is shown below (in
thousands):

Three MONthS OF 1888 . . oottt e et e e e e e e e e e e $236,344
Over three through six months . ... ... e e 90,088
Oversix through twelvemonths ... ... ... . i i e 57,889
Thereafter . ..o e e 57,359
$441,680

Other Borrowed Funds

Deposits are the primary source of funds for the Bank’s lending and investment activities and for its general
business purposes. Federal Home Loan Bank (“FHLB”) advances are available to the Bank under a security and
pledge agreement. At December 31, 2003, we had $356.6 million available under this agreement. Further, the
Bank had other credit facilities at December 31, 2003 through various correspondent banking relationships.
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Details of other borrowed funds follows (dollars in thousands):

For the Year Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001

Federal Home Loan Bank advances

Balance outstanding at period-end .................... $311,735  $490,790  $146,000

- Weighted average interest rate at period-end . ........... 1.06% 1.30% 1.95%

Maximum outstanding at any month-end .............. $642,500  $490,790  $230,000

Daily average balance ............... ... ... ..... 365,390 251,410 147,803

Weighted average interest rate for the period ........... 1.24% 1.77% 4.00%
Federal funds purchased

Balance outstanding at period-end . ................... $ 12425 $ 18800 $ 16,050

Weighted average interest rate at period-end ............ 1.31% 1.75% 234%

Maximum outstanding at any month-end .............. $ 45,800 $ 18800 $ 17,100

Daily average balance .................. .. ........ 27,158 19,996 12,229

Weighted average interest rate for the period ........... 1.61% 2.10% 4.37%
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase

- Balance outstanding-at period-end .................... $ — % — $ 18,248

Weighted average interest rate at period-end . ........... — — 1.16%

Maximum outstanding at any month-end .............. $ - $ 19,796 § 18,248

Daily average balance .............. ... ... .. . — 13,559 15,074

Weighted average interest rate for the period ........... — 0.96% 2.67%

Notes Payable

As of December 31, 2002, Sterling Bancshares had outstanding borrowings totaling $20 million with Wells
Fargo Bank. Other notes totaling $1.4 million, assumed in acquisitions, were outstanding at December 31, 2002.
All outstanding notes payable were fully repaid during 2003.

Subordinated Debt

During April 2003, the Bank raised approximately $50 million through a private offering of subordinated
notes. These subordinated notes bear interest at a fixed rate of 7.375% and mature on April 15, 2013. Interest
payments are due semi-annually. The subordinated notes may not be redeemed or called prior to their maturity.
In June 2003, we entered into an interest rate swap agreement in which the Bank swapped the fixed rate to a
floating rate. Under the terms of the swap agreement, we receive a fixed coupon rate of 7.375% and pay a
variable interest rate equal to the three-month LIBOR that is reset on a quarterly basis, plus 3.62%. This swap is
designated as a fair-value hedge. Changes in the fair value of both the swap and the hedged subordinated debt are
reflected in the statements of income. However, the impact of these fully offset because of the hedge’s
effectiveness. The swap’s floating rate on December 31, 2003 was 4.77%.
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Company-Obligated Mandatorily Redeemable Trust Preferred Securities

At December 31, 2003, we had three issues of company-obligated mandatorily redeemable trust preferred
securities (“trust preferred securities”) outstanding totaling $30 million as follows (dollars in thousands):

Trust Junior
Preferred Subordinated
Securities Debt Owed
Description Issuance Date Qutstanding Interest Rate To Trusts Final Maturity Date
Capital Trust 1T ... .. September 26,2002 $ 31,250 8.30% Fixed $ 32,217 September 26, 2032
Statutory Trust One ... August 30, 2002 20,000 3-month LIBOR 20,619 August 30, 2032
plus 3.45%

Capital TrustII . ... .. March 21, 2001 28,750 9.20% Fixed 29,639 March 21, 2031
Total .............. $80,000 $82,475

Each of the trusts is a statutory business trust organized for the sole purpose of issuing trust securities and
investing the proceeds thereof in junior subordinated debentures of Sterling Bancshares, the sole asset of each
trust. The preferred trust securities of each trust represent preferred beneficial interests in the assets of the
respective trusts and are subject to mandatory redemption upon payment of the junior subordinated debentures
held by the trust. The common securities of each trust are wholly-owned by Sterling Bancshares. Each trust’s
ability to pay amounts due on the trust preferred securities is solely dependent upon Sterling Bancshares making
payment on the related junior subordinated debentures. Sterling Bancshares’ obligations under the junior
subordinated debentures and other relevant trust agreements, in aggregate, constitute a full and unconditional
guarantee by Sterling Bancshares of each respective trust’s obligations under the trust securities issued by each
respective trust.

In late-2003, the FASB issued FIN 46R. FIN 46R requires that trust preferred securities be deconsolidated
from our consolidated financial statements. We will adopt FIN 46R on January 1, 2004, After adoption, the trust
preferred securities will no longer be shown in our consolidated financial statements. Instead, the junior
subordinated debentures will be shown as liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets and interest expense
associated with the junior subordinated debentures will be shown in the consolidated statements of income.

Currently, trust preferred securities are considered in calculating Tier 1 capital ratios. However, the banking
regulators may disallow this practice. It is unclear whether existing issues of trust preferred securities will be
“grandfathered” (permitting their continued inclusion in the calculation of Tier 1 capital) or not. This
reconsideration of trust preferred securities was caused by the issuance of FIN 46R. Refer to Note 20 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements for a discussion of the impact of this possible change on our regulatory capital
ratios.

After completing our latest issuance of trust preferred securities in 2002, we used the proceeds to prepay the
9.28% Junior Subordinated Debentures issued in June 1997. Upon the prepayment, the 9.28% Trust Preferred
Securities outstanding were mandatorily redeemed. This effectively lowered our overall borrowing costs. We
recorded a $1.4 million non-cash charge associated with the early redemption of these securities.

ASSET QUALITY
Risk Elements

Nonperforming and past due loans are fully or substantially secured by assets, with any excess of loan
balances over collateral values specifically allocated in the allowance for credit losses. The Bank receives, on an
ongoing basis, updated appraisals on loans secured by real estate, particularly those categorized as
nonperforming loans and potential problem loans. In those instances where updated appraisals reflect reduced
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collateral values, an evaluation of the borrower’s overall financial condition is made to determine the need, if
any, for possible write-downs or appropriate additions to the allowance for credit losses.

Potential problem loans are those loans not classified as nonperforming, but where information known by
management indicates serious doubt that the borrower will be able to comply with the present payment terms.

Management identifies these loans through its ongoing loan review process.

Nonperforming assets and potential problem loans consisted of the following (dollars in thousands):

2003 2002 2001 2000 1999

Nonaccrual loans .............. $ 33887 $ 19654 $ 14,179 § 8297 $ 5871
Restructured loans . ............ —_ —_— 16 1,298 218
Total nonperforming loans ...... 33,887 19,654 14,195 9,595 6,089
Real estate acquired by

foreclosure ................. 2,124 3,358 1,837 1,702 1,323
Other repossessed assets ........ 169 66 127 192 264
Total nonperforming assets ... ... $ 36,180 $ 23,078 $ 16,159 $ 11,489 $ 7,676
Nonperforming loans to total :

loans ..................... 1.57% 0.74% 0.74% 0.65% 0.48%
Nonperforming assets to total

ASSBLS .+ vt 1.13% 0.64% 0.58% 0.55% 0.37%
Potential problem loans . ........ $§ 66482 $ 62,189 $ 51456 $ 38,753 $ 25,565
Accruing loans past due 90 days or

01703 ¢ S 35 § 984 § 1,360 626 351
Totalloans ................... $2,157,039 $2,644,862 $1,928,293 51,484,990 $1,261,273
Totalassets .................. $3,204,405 $3,582,745 $2,778,090 $2,077,214 $2,060,112

Nonperforming assets were $36.2 million at December 31, 2003, up from $23.1 million at year-end 2002.
Much of this increase can be attributed to three problem loan relationships placed on nonaccrual status during the
second half of 2003. These relationships individually were larger than $3 million. Management implemented
more stringent credit approval standards for relationships of this size in the fourth quarter of 2003.

The overall level of nonperforming assets has been impacted negatively by the weak economic conditions of
the past few years. We expect some improvement in asset quality during late 2004 and early 2005 as the local
and national economies strengthen.

Allowance for Credit Losses

The provision for credit losses increased during 2003 to $17.7 million as compared with $11.7 million for
2002. During 2003, net charge-offs of $14.7 million or 0.60% of average loans were incurred. These increases
are attributable principally to the impact of the economic downturn of the past few years.

The provision for credit losses and net charge-offs for 2003 were impacted also by the partial charge-off of
one of the three problem loan relationships discussed above. A total of $2.0 million was charged-off during the
fourth quarter of 2003 in conjunction with this relationship. The remaining balance of this relationship was
classified as nonperforming at December 31, 2003.

The allowance for credit losses is a reserve established through charges to earnings in the form of a
provision for credit losses. Based on an evaluation of the loan portfolio, management presents a quarterly review
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of the allowance for credit losses to the Bank’s Board of Directors, indicating any changes in the allowance since
the last review and any recommendations as to adjustments in the allowance. In making our evaluation, we
consider the industry diversification of the commercial loan portfolio and the effect of changes in the local real
estate market on collateral values. We also consider the results of recent regulatory examinations.

We continually monitor economic conditions in our local market areas and the probable impact on
borrowers, on past-due amounts, on related collateral values, on the number and size of non-performing loans
and on the resulting amount of charge-offs for the period.

‘We have several systems and procedures in place to assist in managing the overall quality of the loan
portfolio. In addition to established underwriting guidelines and approval processes, we monitor delinquency
levels for any negative or adverse trends. We also perform reviews of the loan portfolios on a regular basis to
identify troubled loans and to assess their overall collection probability.

Ongoing portfolio reviews are conducted by our internal loan review department under an established loan
review program. Under this program, we particularly monitor working capital credits having a total exposure of
$300,000 or more. Annually, we target a loan review penetration of at least 50% of the total commercial and real
estate loan portfolios.

Through the loan review process, we maintain an internally classified loan list, which, along with the
delinquency list of loans, helps us assess the overall quality of the loan portfolios and the adequacy of the
allowance for credit losses. Loans on this listing are classified as substandard, doubtful or loss based on the
severity of credit probability of repayment, collateral valuation and related collectibility.

Loans classified as “substandard” have clear and defined weaknesses such as highly leveraged positions,
unfavorable financial ratios, uncertain repayment sources or poor financial condition, which may jeopardize the
loan’s recoverability. Loans classified as “doubtful” have characteristics similar to substandard loans but with an
increased risk that a loss may occur, or at least a portion of the loan may require a charge-off if liquidated at
present. Although loans classified as substandard do not duplicate loans classified as doubtful, both substandard
and doubtful loans include some loans that are delinquent at least 30 days or on nonaccrual status. Loans
classified as “loss” are those loans that are in the process of being charged off.

At December 31, 2003, substandard loans totaled $95.8 million, of which $33.2 million were loans
designated as delinquent or nonaccrual; and doubtful loans totaled $4.5 million of which $4.3 million were
designated as delinquent or nonaccrual.

In addition to the internally classified loan list and delinquency list of loans, we maintain a separate “watch
list” which further aids in monitoring the loan portfolios. Watch list loans show warning elements or more
deficiencies that require attention in the short run or where pertinent ratios of the loan account have weakened to
a point where more frequent monitoring is warranted. These loans do not have all the characteristics of a
classified loan (substandard or doubtful) but do show weakened elements as compared with those of a
satisfactory credit. We review these loans in assessing the adequacy of the allowance for credit losses. As of
December 31, 2003, watch list loans totaled $183.0 million.

Management assigns loan grades by loan and allocations are made within each loan grade so that double
allocations are avoided. Loans are assigned a grade according to payment history, collateral values, and financial
condition of the borrower.

The Bank maintains an adequate allowance for credit losses through its watchlist classifications, allocating
an increasing reserve amount as the severity of a problem loan increases. The Bank maintains an unallocated
reserve for satisfactory non-classified credits based, in part, on the average of the last three year’s actual net
charge-offs.
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The following table presents an analysis of the allowance for credit losses and other related data (dollars in

thousands):
Year Ended December 31,
2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
Average loans outstanding . ......... .. ...l i $2,465,838 $2,197,875 $1,693,867 $1,331,282 $1,122,834
Loans outstanding atperiod-end . . ......... .. ... i $2,157,039 $2,644,862 $1,928293 $1,484,990 $1,261,273
Allowance for credit losses atJanuary 1 ......... ... .. ... .. .. ... $ 27248 $ 22927 $ 16862 & 13998 $ 11,352
Charge-offs:
Commercial, financial, and industral .. ....................... 10,597 7,384 6,969 7,061 5,485
Real estate, mortgage and construction . . ............ ... ....... 4,486 1,249 1,057 643 162
COMSUMET . . ottt ettt et ettt et e e 1,590 1,122 1,797 63 1,925
Total charge-offs . ....... ..o 16,673 9,755 9,823 7,767 7,572
Recoveries:
Commercial, financial, and industrial . ............. ... ........ 1,447 1,400 871 861 750
Real estate, mortgage and construction . . ........... ... ... .. 157 75 111 33 42
CONSUITIET . . ittt et ettt e e i ie e 343 245 464 69 190
TOtal TECOVETIES .« . v v vttt e e e et e 1,947 1,720 1,446 963 982
Netcharge-offs ... . 14,726 8,035 8,377 6,804 6,590
Acquired allowance for creditlosses .............. ... ... ... ... 855 656 2,758 — —
Allowance for credit losses sold with divestiture .................... 353 — — — —
Provision for credit 108Ses . ... oot 17,698 11,700 11,684 9,668 9,236
Allowance for credit losses at December 31 . ........... ... ... ..... $ 30,722 $ 27,248 $§ 22927 $ 16862 $ 13,998
Ratios:
Allowance to average loans . ............c...iiiiiinniiiina, 1.25% 1.24% 1.35% 1.27% 1.25%
Allowance to periodend loans ............... ... ... ... .. ... 1.42% 1.03% 1.19% 1.14% 1.11%
Net charge-offs to average 10ans . . .. ........oovuruivennnnr... 0.60% 0.37% 0.49% 0.51% 0.59%
38.64% 161.51% 175.74% 229.89%

Allowance to period-end nonperforming loans ................. 90.66% 1

The following table shows the allocation of the allowance for credit losses among various categories of
loans (dollars in thousands). The allocation is made for analytical purposes and is not necessarily indicative of
the categories in which future loan losses may occur. The total allowance is available to absorb losses from any

category of loans.

December 31,
2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
% of % of % of % of % of
Category Category Category Category Category
to Loans to Loans to Loans to Loans to Loans
Held for Held for Held for Held for Held for
Amount Investment Amount Investment Amount Investment Amount Investment Amount Investment
Balance of allowance
for credit losses at
end of period
applicable to:
Commercial, financial
and industrial ...... $11,844 31% $ 9,188 30% $ 8,361 31% % 7,521 35% $ 5461 37%
Real estate, mortgage
and construction . . .. 8,855 64% 7,738 62% 5,538 60% 3,348 55% 3,014 52%
Consumer ........... 1,009 5% 1,323 8% 868 9% 1,073 10% 909 11%
Unallocated .. ........ 9,014 N/A 8,999 N/A 8,160 N/A 4,920 N/A 4,614 N/A
$16,862 100%  $13,998 100%

$30,722 100%  $27,248 100%  $22,927 100%
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INTEREST RATE SENSITIVITY AND LIQUIDITY

We manage interest rate risk by positioning the balance sheet to maximize net interest income while
maintaining an acceptable level of risk to changes in market interest rates. This process requires a balance
between profitability, liquidity, and interest rate risk.

To effectively measure and manage interest rate risk, the Company uses simulation analysis to determine the
impact on net interest income of changes in interest rates under various interest rate scenarios, balance sheet
trends, and strategies. From these simulations, interest rate risk is quantified and appropriate strategies are
developed and implemented. The overall interest rate risk position and strategies are reviewed by senior
management, the Asset/Liability Management Committee and the Company’s Board of Directors on an ongoing
basis.

An interest rate sensitive asset or liability is one that experiences a measurable change in value as a direct
result of changes in market interest rates. Interest rate risk is measured by analyzing the maturity and repricing
relationships between interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities at specific points in time (“GAP”)
and by analyzing the effects of interest rate changes on net interest income over specific periods of time by
projecting the performance of the mix of assets and liabilities in varied interest rate environments. Interest rate
sensitivity reflects the potential effect on net interest income of a movement in interest rates. A bank is
considered asset sensitive, or having a positive GAP, when the amount of its interest-earning assets maturing or
repricing within a given period exceeds the amount of its interest-bearing liabilities also maturing or repricing
within that time period. Conversely, a bank is considered liability sensitive, or having a negative GAP, when the
amount of its interest-bearing liabilities maturing or repricing within a given period exceeds the amount of its
interest-earning assets also maturing or repricing within that time period. During a period of rising interest rates,
a negative GAP would tend to adversely affect net interest income, while a positive GAP would tend to result in
an increase in net interest income. During a period of falling interest rates, a negative GAP would tend to result
in an increase in net interest income, while a positive GAP would tend to affect net interest income adversely.
When analyzing its GAP pesition, the Company emphasizes the next twelve-month period.

We are positioned to benefit from rising rates because the Company has an asset sensitive position. Also, we
would likely benefit from an increase in short-term interest rates as this might signify that economic conditions
are improving.

As mentioned, we utilize simulation models to estimate the impact on net interest income and present value
of equity due to changes in interest rates under various scenarios. This analysis estimates a percentage of change
in these metrics from the stable rate base scenario versus alternative scenarios of rising and falling market
interest rates by instantaneously shocking the balance sheet. The following table summarizes the simulated
change over a 12-month period as of December 31, 2003 and 2002 (dollars in thousands):

Increase (Decrease) in

Changes in

Interest Rates Net Interest Present Value
(Basis Points) Income of Equity
December 31, 2003

200 . e 6.03% -7.00%
+100 . e 3.14% -2.72%
Base ... 0.00% 0.00%
A -3.80% 0.62%
S200 -13.17% 3.25%
December 31, 2002

200 L e 9.74% 6.87%
H100 L e 5.05% 4.12%
Base ... e 0.00% 0.00%
S100 L e e e -5.11% -4.90%
200 L e e e -14.89% -9.61%
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These sensitivities are all within the thresholds set by our Asset/Liability Committee. Each rate scenario
reflects unique prepayment and repricing assumptions. Since there are limitations inherent in any methodology
used to estimate the exposure to changes in market interest rates, this analysis is not intended to be a forecast of
the actual effect of a change in market interest rates. The interest rate sensitivity analysis includes assumptions
that (i) the composition of our interest sensitive assets and liabilities existing at year end will remain constant
over the measurement period; and (ii) that changes in market rates are parallel and instantaneous across the yield
curve regardless of duration or repricing characteristics of specific assets or liabilities. Further, the analysis does
not contemplate any actions that we might undertake in response to changes in market interest rates.
Accordingly, this analysis is not intended to and does not provide a precise forecast of the effect actual changes
in market rates will have on the Company.

The following table sets forth the expected maturity and repricing characteristics of the Company’s interest-
earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities as of December 31, 2003:

0-90 90-365 1-3 3.5 Over
Days Days Years Years 5 Years Total

(In thousands, except for data expressed in percentages)
Interest-earning assets:

Cash and cash equivalents . ........ $ 16970 § — $ — 5 — $ — % 16970
Deposits in other financial
institutions ................... 468 597 99 99 95 1,358
Trading assets .................. 172,825 — — —_ — 172,825
Securities . .........oiiiini... 59,501 32,511 47,070 36,322 389,689 565,093
Loans ..........cciiii.. 1,374,052 162,863 272,608 276,360 71,156 2,157,039
Total interest-earning assets . .. 1,623,816 195,971 319,777 312,781 460,940 2,913,285
Interest-bearing liabilities:
Demand and savings deposits ... ... 929,577 — — — — 929,577
Certificates of deposit and other time
deposits .......... ... 275,284 258,382 85,812 34,951 50 654,479
Other borrowed funds . ........... 324,160 — — — — 324,160
Subordinated debt ............... —_ — — — 46,533 46,533
Total interest-bearing
liabilities ................ 1,529,021 258,382 85,812 34,951 46,583 1,954,749
GAP before effect of interest rate
SWAD « it 94,795  (62,411) 233,965 277,830 414,357 958,536
Effect of interest rate swap — pay »
floating ..................... 46,533 — — — (46,533) ——
Period GAP .................... 48,262  (62,411) 233965 277,830 460,890 958,536
Cumulative GAP ................ $ 48262 $(14,149) 3$219,816 3$497,646 $958,536
Period GAP to total assets .. ....... 1.51% (1.95%) 7.30% 8.67% 14.38%
Cumulative GAP to total assets . . . .. 1.51% (0.44)% 6.86% 15.53% 29.91%

Shortcomings are inherent in any GAP analysis since certain assets and liabilities may not reprice
proportionally as interest rates change. Management utilizes the interest rate risk simulation model to monitor
and forecast the effect of various interest rate environments on earnings and the Company’s net capital position.
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The objectives of the Company’s liquidity management is to maintain our ability to meet day-to-day deposit
withdrawals and other payment obligations, to raise funds to support asset growth, to maintain reserve
requirements and otherwise operate the Company on an ongoing basis. We strive to manage a liquidity position
sufficient to meet operating requirements while maintaining an appropriate balance between assets and liabilities
to meet the expectations of our shareholders. In recent years, our liquidity needs have primarily been met by
growth in core deposits. In addition to core deposits, we have access to funds from correspondent banks and from
the Federal Home Loan Bank, supplemented by amortizing securities and loan portfolios. The Bank also accepts
brokered certificates of deposit.

Sterling Bancshares must provide for its own liquidity and fund its own obligations. The primary source of
Sterling Bancshares’ revenues is from dividends declared by the Bank. There are statutory and regulatory
provisions that could limit the ability of the Bank to pay dividends to Sterling Bancshares. At December 31,
2003, the Bank had approximately $45.3 million in the aggregate available to be paid as dividends to Sterling
Bancshares. It is not anticipated that such restrictions will have an impact on the ability of Sterling Bancshares to
meet its ongoing cash obligations. As of December 31, 2003, we did not have any material commitments for
capital expenditures.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements, Guarantees and Contractual Obligations

The Company’s future contractual cash payments are as follows (in thousands):

Less than 1-3 3.5 Over
One Year Years Years 5 Years Total
Operatingleases ............ ..., $ 3,987 $ 5264 $ 3,893 $ 5649 $ 18,793
Certificates and other time deposits ................. 552,034 69,942 32,453 50 654,479
Subordinateddebt . .......... ... .. .. ... .. — —_ — 50,000 50,000
Trust preferred securities ................co.. ... — — —_ 80,000 80,000
Total ... . $556,021 $75,206 $36,346 $135,699 $803,272

The amount reflected above for subordinated debt represents our contractual obligation. The subordinated
debt is reflected in the consolidated balance sheet at its fair value. The Bank entered into an interest rate swap
designated as a fair-value hedge of the subordinated debt. Refer to Note 12 in the Consolidated Financial
Statements for further information.

The Company’s potential obligations associated with commitments to extend credit, outstanding letters of
credit and mortgages sold with recourse as of December 31, 2003 are summarized below (in thousands). Since
commitments associated with letters of credit and lending and financing arrangements may expire unused, the
amounts shown do not necessarily reflect the actual future cash funding requirements.

Less than 1-3 3.5 Over
One Year Years Years 5 Years Total
Commitments toextendcredit ...................... $339.948 $53,361 $44,171 $45,566 $483,046
Standby letters of credit ............ ... ... ... . ... 21,766 2,654 35 —_— 24,455
Total ... $361,714 $56,015 $44,206 $45,566 $507,501

See Note 19 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for additional discussion of financial instruments with
off-balance sheet risk, including a discussion of the nature, business purpose and importance of off-balance sheet
arrangements.
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Capital Resources

At December 31, 2003, shareholders’ equity totaled $292.6 million or 9.1% of total assets, as compared to
$249.3 million or 7.0% of total assets at December 31, 2002. Our risk-based capital ratios together with the
minimum capital amounts and ratios as of December 31, 2003 were as follows (doliars in thousands):

For Capital
Actual Adequacy Purposes
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
Total Capital (to Risk Weighted Assets) ....... $383,252 15.40% $199,095 8.0%
Tier 1 Capital (to Risk Weighted Assets) ....... 305,997 12.30% 99,547 4.0%
305,997 10.38% 117,883 4.0%

Tier 1 Capital (to Average Assets) ............

See Note 20 to the Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements for further discussion of regulatory

capital requirements.

37




FACTORS THAT MAY AFFECT FUTURE RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

In addition to the other information contained in this report, the following risks may affect us. If any
of these risks occurs, our business, financial condition or operating results could be adversely affected.

Our profitability depends significantly on local economic conditions.

Our success depends primarily on the general economic conditions of the Houston metropolitan area and, to
a lesser extent, that of the San Antonio and Dallas metropolitan areas. Unlike larger banks that are more
geographically diversified, we provide banking and financial services to customers primarily in these areas. The
local economic conditions of these areas have a significant impact on our commercial, real estate and
construction loans, the ability of the borrowers to repay these loans and the value of the collateral securing these
loans. A significant decline in general economic conditions, such as inflation, recession, acts of terrorism, an
outbreak of hostilities, unemployment and other factors beyond our control will impact these local economic
conditions and will negatively affect the financial results of our banking operations. In addition, Houston remains
largely dependent on the energy industry. A downturn in the energy industry and the energy-related business
could indirectly adversely affect our results of operations and financial condition

We rely on an owner-operated business market.

We target our business development and marketing strategy primarily to serve the banking and financial
needs of owner-operated businesses with credit needs of under $3 million. These owner-operated businesses
represent a major sector of the Houston and national economies. If general economic conditions negatively
impact this economic sector in the metropolitan areas in which we operate, our results of operations and financial
condition will be significantly affected.

If our allowance for credit losses is not sufficient to cover actual loan losses, our earnings could decrease.

Our loan customers may not repay their loans according to the terms of these loans and the collateral
securing the payment of these loans may be insufficient to assure repayment. We may experience significant
credit losses that could have a material adverse effect on our operating results. We make various assumptions and
judgments about the collectibility of our loan portfolio, including the creditworthiness of our borrowers and the
value of the real estate and other assets serving as collateral for the repayment of many of our loans. In
determining the size of the allowance, we rely on our experience and our evaluation of economic conditions. If
our assumptions prove to be incorrect, our current allowance may not be sufficient to cover future loan losses and
adjustments may be necessary to allow for different economic conditions or adverse developments in our loan
portfolio. Significant additions to our allowance would materially decrease our net income.

In addition, federal and state regulators periodically review our allowance for credit losses and may require
us to increase our provision for credit losses or recognize further loan charge-offs, based on judgments different
than those we make. Any increase in our allowance or charge-offs as required by these regulatory agencies could
have a negative affect on us.

Fluctuations in interest rates could reduce our profitability.

We realize income primarily from the difference between interest earned on loans and securities and the
interest paid on deposits and borrowings. We expect that we will periodically experience “gaps” in the interest
rate sensitivities of our assets and liabilities, meaning that either our interest-bearing liabilities will be more
sensitive to changes in market interest rates than our interest-earning assets, or vice versa. In either event, if
market interest rates should move contrary to our position, this “gap” will work against us, and our earnings may
be negatively affected.
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We are unable to predict fluctuations of market interest rates, which are affected by the following factors:
* inflation;

* recession;

* arise in unemployment;

* tightening money supply;

* international disorder and instability in domestic and foreign financial markets; and

*  instability in domestic and foreign financial markets.

Our asset liability management strategy, which is designed to mitigate the risk from changes in market
interest rates, may not be able to prevent changes in interest rates from having a material adverse effect on our
results of operation and financial condition.

Competition with other financial institutions could adversely affect our profitability.

We face vigorous competition from banks and other financial institutions, including savings institutions,
finance companies and credit unions. A number of these banks and other financial institutions have substantially
greater resources and lending limits, larger branch systems and a wider array of banking services. To a limited
extent, we also compete with other providers of financial services, such as money market mutual funds,
brokerage firms, consumer finance companies and insurance companies. This competition may reduce or limit
our margins on banking services, reduce our market share and adversely affect our results of operations and
financial condition.

We may not be able to maintain our historical growth rate which may adversely impact our results of
operations and financial condition.

To achieve our growth, we have initiated internal growth programs, completed various acquisitions and
opened additional branches in the past few years. We may not be able to sustain our historical rate of growth or
may not even be able to grow at all. We may not be able to obtain the financing necessary to fund additional
growth and may not be able to find suitable candidates for acquisition. Various factors, such as economic
conditions and competition, may impede or prohibit the opening of new branch offices. Further, our inability to
attract and retain experienced bankers may adversely affect our internal growth. A significant decrease in our
historical rate of growth may adversely impact our results of operation and financial condition.

We may be unable to complete acquisitions, and once complete, may not be able to integrate our
acquisitions successfully.

Our growth strategy includes our desire to acquire other financial institutions. We may not be able to
complete any future acquisitions and, if completed, we may not be able to successfully integrate the operations,
management, products and services of the entities we acquire. Following each acquisition, we must expend
substantial managerial, operating, financial and other resources to integrate these entities. In particular, we may
be required to install and standardize adequate operational and control systems, deploy or modify equipment,
implement marketing efforts in new as well as existing locations and employ and maintain qualified personnel.
Our failure to successfully integrate the entities we acquire into our existing operations may adversely affect our
financial condition and results of operations.

We operate in a highly regulated environment and may bhe adversely affected by changes in federal and
local laws and regulations.

We are subject to extensive regulation, supervision and examination by federal and state banking
authorities. Any change in applicable regulations or federal or state legislation could have a substantial impact on
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us and our operations. Additional legislation and regulations may be enacted or adopted in the future that could
significantly affect our powers, authority and operations, which could have a material adverse effect on our
financial condition and results of operations. Further, regulators have significant discretion and power to prevent
or remedy unsafe or unsound practices or violations of laws by banks and bank holding companies in the
performance of their supervisory and enforcement duties. The exercise of this regulatory discretion and power
may have a negative impact on us.

ITEM 7A—QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK.

For information regarding the market risk of our financial instruments, see “Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations— Financial Condition — Interest Rate Sensitivity and
Liquidity.” Our principal market risk exposure is to interest rates.

ITEM 8—FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

Refer to the index included on page 47 and the Consolidated Financial Statements that begin on page 49 of
this Form 10-K.

ITEM 9—CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None.

ITEM 9A—CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of disclosure controls and procedures — Based on their evaluation of the Company’s disclosure
controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this report, the Company’s Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Financial Officer have concluded that the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures are
effective in ensuring that the information required to be disclosed by us in the reports that we file or submit under
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods
specified in the Securities and Exchange Commission’s rules and forms.

Changes in internal control over financial reporting — There were noiéhéﬁgesv in our internal control over
financial reporting that occurred during the most recent fiscal quarter that have materially affected, or are
reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.

PART III

ITEM 10—DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

The information required by this Item as to the directors and executive officers is hereby incorporated by
reference from the information appearing under the captions “Election of Directors,” “Information About the
Board of Directors, Committees of the Board and Committees of the Bank,” “Executive Officers and Other
Significant Employees,” and “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance” in the Company’s
definitive proxy statement to be filed with the SEC pursuant to the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 within 120
days year end.

ITEM 11—EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this Item as to the management of the Company is hereby incorporated by
reference from the information appearing under the captions “Executive Compensation” in the Company’s
definitive proxy statement to be filed with the SEC pursuant to the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 within 120
days of year end. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in accordance with the instructions to Item 402 of Regulation
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S-K, the information contained in the Company’s proxy statement under the subheading “Human Resources
Programs Committee Report” and “Performance Graph” shall not be deemed to be filed as part of or incorporated
by reference into this Form 10-K.

ITEM 12—SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

The information required by this Item as to the ownership by management and others of securities of the
Company is hereby incorporated by reference from the information appearing under the caption “Security
Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management” in the Company’s definitive proxy statement to be
filed with the SEC pursuant to the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 within 120 days of year end.

ITEM 13—CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

The information required by this [tem as to certain business relationships and transactions with management
and other related parties of the Company is hereby incorporated by reference to such information appearing
under the captions “Certain Transactions” in the Company’s definitive proxy ro be filed with the SEC pursuant to
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 within 120 days of year end.

ITEM 14—PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this [tem as to disclosures regarding accounting fees and services is hereby
incorporated by reference to such information appearing under the caption “Independent Accountants’ Fees” in
the Company’s definitive proxy to be filed with the SEC pursuant to the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934
within 120 days of year end.

PART 1V

ITEM 15—EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES AND REPORTS ON FORM 8-K
(a)(1) List of documents filed as part of this report

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:
Balance Sheets
Statements of Income
Statements of Shareholders’ Equity
Statements of Cash Flows
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(a)(2) No financial statement schedules are required to be filed as a part of this report.
(a)(3) See Item 15(c) below.

(b)  During the fourth quarter of 2003 the Company filed the following current reports on Form 8-K:
(1) October 2, 2003 (reporting under Items 5 and 7 the Company’s disposition of Sterling Capital
Mortgage Corporation); (2) October 15, 2003 (reporting under Items 2 and 7 the Company’s disposition of
Sterling Capital Mortgage Company); and (3) October 21, 2003 (reporting under Items 7, 9 and 12 the
release of the Company’s third quarter 2003 financial results).
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4.1

Exhibits

Agreement and Plan of Merger dated as of February 24, 1999 among the Company, Sterling
Bancorporation, and B. O. A. Bancshares, Inc., as amended. [Incorporated by reference to the
Company’s Report on Form 8-K filed on June 2, 1999 (File No. 000-20750).]

Agreement and Plan of Merger dated as of October 23, 2000 among the Company, Sterling
Bancorporation, Inc. and CaminoReal Bancshares of Texas, Inc., as amended. [Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 2.5 of the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K (File No. 000-20750).]

Agreement and Plan of Merger dated as of March 1, 2001, by and between Sterling Bancshares, Inc.
and Lone Star Bancorporation, Inc., as amended. [Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2 of the
Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed on May 14, 2001 (File No. 000-20750).]

Agreement and Plan of Merger dated as of October 1, 2001 by and among Sterling Bancshares, Inc.,
Sterling Bancorporation, Inc. and Community Bancshares, Inc., as amended. [Incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 2.7 of the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K (File No. 000-20750).]

Agreement and Plan of Merger Among Sterling Bancshares, Inc., Sterling Bancorporation, Inc. and
ENB Bankshares Inc. dated as of May 22, 2002. [Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 of the
Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed on August 14, 2002 (File No. 000-20750).]

Purchase and Assumption Agreement dated July 12, 2002 between Sterling Bank Inc. and James
Wilson as amended by First Amendment to Purchase and Assumption Agreement dated as of August 2,
2002. [Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.2 of the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed
on August 13, 2002 (File No. 000-20750).]

Purchase and Assumption Agreement dated as of October 29, 2002 between Sterling Bank Inc. and
South Texas National Bank of Laredo. [Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.9 of the Company’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K (File No. 000-20750).}

Stock Purchase Agreement dated as of July 16, 2003 by and among Sterling Bancshares, Inc., Sterling
Bank, CMCR Holding Company and RBC Mortgage Company. {Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 2.1 to the Company’s Form 8-K filed on October 15, 2003 (File No. 000-20750).]

Amendment No. 1 to Stock Purchase Agreement dated as of September 30, 2003 by and among Sterling
Bancshares, Inc., Sterling Bank, CMCR Holding Company and RBC Mortgage Company.
[Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.2 to the Company’s Form 8-K filed on October 15, 2003 (File
No. 000-20750).]

Agreement and Plan of Merger dated August 18, 2003 by and among Sterling Bancshares, Inc.,
SB 2003, Inc. and South Texas Capital Group, Inc. [Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of the
Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed on November 14, 2003 (File No. 000-20750).]

Restated and Amended Articles of Incorporation of the Company, as amended. [Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Registration Statement on Form S-3 (File Nos. 333-55724,
333-55724-01, and 333-55724-02).]

Articles of Amendment to the Restated and Amended Articles of Incorporation of Sterling Bancshares,
Inc. [Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 of the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed
on August 13, 2002 (File No. 000-20750).]

Amended and Restated Bylaws of Sterling Bancshares, Inc. [Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.3 of
the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed on August 13, 2002 (File No. 000-20750).]

Preferred Securities Guarantee Agreement dated March 21, 2001. [Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4.2 of the Company’s Report on Form 8-K filed on March 21, 2001 (File No. 000-20750).]
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4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

4.11

4.12

10.15%**

10.2

10.3% %%

10.4%%x

10.5

10.6

Indenture dated March 21, 2001. [Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4 of the Company’s Report
on Form 8-X filed on March 21, 2001 (File No. 000-20750).]

First Supplemental Indenture dated March 21, 2001. [Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.5 of the
Company’s Report on Form 8-K filed on March 21, 2001 (File No. 000-20750).]

9.20% Subordinated Deferrable Interest Debenture due March 21, 2031. {Incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 4.7 of the Company’s Report on Form 8-K filed on March 21, 2001 (File No. 000-20750).]

Indenture dated August 30, 2002. [Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4 of the Company’s Report
on Form 8-K filed on September 12, 2002 (File No. 000-20750).]

Junior Subordinated Deferrable Interest Debenture due August 30, 2032. [Incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 4.6 of the Company’s Report on Form 8-K filed on September 12, 2002 (File No. 000-
20750).]

Guarantee Agreement dated August 30, 2002. [Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.6 of the
Company’s Report on Form 8-K filed on September 12, 2002 (File No. 000-20750).]

Preferred Securities Guarantee Agreement dated September 26, 2002. [Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4.2 of the Company’s Report on Form 8-K dated September 26, 2002 (File No. 000-20750).]

Second Supplemental Indenture dated September 26, 2002. [Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.9
of the Company’s Report on Form 8-K dated September 26, 2002 (File No. 000-20750).]

8.30% Junior Subordinated Deferrable Interest Debenture due September 26, 2032. [Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.8 of the Company’s Report on Form 8-K dated September 26, 2002 (File
No. 000-20750).]

Fiscal and Paying Agency Agreement dated April 10, 2003 between Sterling Bank and Deutsche
Bank Trust Company Americas. [Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of the Company’s Report
on Form 8-K filed April 15, 2003 (File No. 000-20750).]

Form of Global Certificate representing Sterling Bank’s 7.375% Subordinated Noted due 2013.
[Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 of the Company’s Report on Form 8-K filed April 15, 2003
(File No. 000-20750).]

1994 Incentive Stock Option Plan of the Company. [Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the
Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1994.]

1994 Employee Stock Purchase Plan of the Company. [Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of
the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1994.]

1984 Incentive Stock Option Plan of the Company. [Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the
Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1, effective October 22, 1992 (Registration
No. 33-51476).]

1995 Non-Employee Director Stock Compensation Plan. [Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 of
the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-8 (File No. 333-16719).]

Credit Agreement dated February 2, 2002 made by and between the Company and Wells Fargo Bank
Minnesota, National Association regarding a line of credit in the amount of $20,000,000.
[Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2001 (File No. 000-207501).]

First Amendment to Credit Agreement dated February 2, 2003 made by and between the Company
and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association regarding a line of credit in the amount of $20,000,000.
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10.7***

10.8%**

10.9%**

21%*
23.1*
31.1*

31.2%

32.1%*

32.2%*

Employment Agreement between Sterling Bancshares, Inc. and George Martinez executed on
October 31, 2001 and effective as of January 1, 2002. [Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.2 of
the Company’s Report on Form 8-K filed on October 14, 2001 (File No. 000-207500).]

Employment Agreement between Sterling Bancshares, Inc. and J. Downey Bridgwater executed on
October 31, 2001 and effective as of January 1, 2002. {Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.3 of
the Company’s Report on Form 8-K filed on October 14, 2001 (File No. 000-207500).}

Sterling Bancshares, Inc. 2003 Stock Incentive and Compensation Plan {Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4.4 of the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-8 (File No. 333-105307).]

Subsidiaries of the Company
Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP, Independent Auditors

Certification of J. Downey Bridgwater, President and Chief Executive Officer, as required pursuant
to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification of Stephen C. Raffaele, Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, as
required pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002.

*  As filed herewith.
**  As furnished herewith.

**%* Management Compensation Agreement




SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant
has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

STERLING BANCSHARES, INC.

DATE:. March 9, 2004 by /s/  J. DOWNEY BRIDGWATER

J. Downey Bridgwater
Chief Executive Officer and President

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Sterling Bancshares, Inc.
Houston, Texas

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Sterling Bancshares, Inc. and
subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of December 31, 2003 and 2002, and the related consolidated statements of
income, shareholders’ equity and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2003.
These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express
an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of Sterling Bancshares, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2003 and 2002,
and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December
31, 2003, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, in 2002 the Company adopted the
provisions of Statement of Accounting Standards No. 142 “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.”

Vbl Tocte LLF

Houston, Texas
March 3, 2004
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STERLING BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

DECEMBER 31, 2003 AND 2002
(In thousands, except share amounts)

ASSETS

Cashandcashequivalents ....... ... .. i i e e
Interest-bearing deposits in financial instittions . ............ .. v,
Trading @858S « . .ottt e
Available-for-sale securities, atfairvalue ........ ... ... . .. e
Held-to-maturity securities, at amortized COSt .. ... ... v ittt i e e
Loansheld forsale . ... ... ... i i e e

LOans, MEt . ...t .
Premises and €qUIPIMENT, DT . . . .. v .\t vttt i e e e e e e
Real estate acquired by forecloSure ........ ... e
GoodwWill L. e
Core depositintangibles ... ... . .
Accrued interest receivable . . . ... . e

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
LIABILITIES:
Deposits:
Noninterest-bearing demand . .. ......... . i
Interest-bearing demand ... ... .
Certificates and other time deposits ... ... ... o ittt et e

T TOtAl AEPOSIES L . ot e
Otherborrowed funds . ... ... oo
Notes payable . ... ...
Subordinated debt . . .. ... ... e
Accrued interest payable and other liabilities . . . ........... ... ... ... . L oo,
Liabilities related to discontinued operations ............c.c.oiviiiiiiiiie i,

Total Habilities .. ... e
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
COMPANY-OBLIGATED MANDATORILY REDEEMABLE TRUST PREFERRED
SECURITIES .. e e e e e e e e e

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Convertible preferred stock, $1 par value; 1,000,000 shares authorized, 20,000 and 59,000
issued and outstanding at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively ...................

Common stock, $1 par value; 100,000,000 shares authorized, 44,642,109 and 43,982,677
issued and outstanding at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively ...................

Capital SUIPIUS . ... e

Retain€d earnings . ... ...t i i e e e e

Accumulated other comprehensive income—net unrealized gain on available-for-sale
securities, Net Of tAX . ... .. ... e

Total shareholders’ equity .. ........ .. .. i i e
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY . ...........................

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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2003 2002
$ 136,764 § 147,000
1,358 1,302
172,825 142,803
522,936 251,165
42,157 61,889
26,308 701,301
2,130,731 1,943,561
2,157,039 2,644,862
(30,722) (27,248)
2,126,317 2,617,614
48,541 51,645
2,124 3,358
62,933 55,666
2,326 2,096
12,046 15,800
74,078 176,348
— 56,059
$3,204,405 $3,582,745
$ 834,313 $1,016,818
929,577 919,477
654,479 736,777
2,418,369 2,673,072
324,160 509,590
— 21,430
46,533 —
42,747 16,920
— 32,406
2,831,809 3,253,418
80,000 80,000
20 59
44,642 43,983
48,953 44,633
197,819 156,664
1,162 3,988
292,596 249,327
$3,204,405 $3,582,745




STERLING BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003, 2002, AND 2001

(In thousands except per share amounts)

Interest income:

Loans, including fees . ...... .. oot in i

Securities:

Taxable .. .o e
NOR-tAXABIE L .. e
Trading SSELS . . ...\ttt e

Federal funds sold and securities purchased under agreements to resell

Deposits in financial iNSHIULONS . ... ... o e

Total INterest INCOME . . . .ottt t i it ittt e it a e e r e e renaennnenes

Interest expense:

Demand and savings deposits . ... i
Certificates and other time deposits .. .........o ittt ittt
Other borrowed funds . . ... .. ...t e
Notes payable . ... ...t e
Subordinated debt ... ... .. e

Total INterest EXPENSE . . ... ...ttt it i

Nt INTEIEST ANCOITIE . . o\ttt sttt e ettt s et it e e e et et et et e,
Provision for Credit I0SSES . . ... ittt e e

Net interest income after provision for credit 10SSes . . ... ..o

Noninterest income:

CUStOmEr SEIVICE fEBS .. ...\ttt e
Net gain on the sale of banking offices . ....... ... ... .. i
Net gain on the sale 0f SECUMHIES ... .. .ttt
Net gain on the sale of trading assets . ........ ... ...ttt
L8 T U O

Total NONINEEIESt INCOME . . . . ot vttt sttt et e ettt ettt n ety

Noninterest expense:

Salaries and employee benefits .. ...... .. ... .. e
OCCUPANCY EXPEIISE . -+ o o ottt e ettt ettt ettt et
Technology ... e e
Professional fees . ...... ... .
Postage and delivery Charges . ... ...t e e

Minority interest expense-—company obligated mandatorily redeemable trust preferred

securities of subsidiary trust ............. e e e e e e e e
ACQUISTHON-TEIAIEA BXPEISES . . . v v eev on e v cvn e e e et e e i 6 e S
OHNET . . e

Total NONINIETEST EXPEMSE .« . .« ittt ittt ittt ettt ettt i i iasaatiinaaaaa i eneeeenen

Income from continuing operations before INCOME tAXES .. .. .o .t v it
Provision for inCOmMEe tAXES . ... it ittt

Income from continuing operations

Income from discontinued operations before income taxes
Pravision for income taxes

Income from discontinued operations

Nt IO . ..o it i e e e e e

Earnings per share from continuing operations

BaSIC it e e e s

Diluted . ..o e

Earnings per share

Basie .o e e e e e

Diluted . . e e

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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2003 2002 2001
$154358 $156,902 $146,184
10947 13957 16667
2266 2890 3304
3.567 4540 2787
176 463 3,578
69 106 79
171383 178,858 172,599
4752 8541 16915
14608 17,479 26,141
4921 4946 6861
585 797 135
1,903 — —
26769 31763 50,052
144,614 147,095 122,547
17,698 11,700 11,684
126916 135395 110,863
16214 16893 143834
3,517 — —
905 110 157
1186 1,018 298
11256 11,5900 9361
33,078 29611 24,650
65525 63430 55115
15364 15181 13964
5170 5046 5053
4624 4205 2966
2,173 2289 2,049
6188 5916 4716
66 - < 8227 BI8I
18493 19217 17,031
117,603 116,106 104,075
42391 48900 31438
14037 15717 10,130
28354 33,183 21,308
45820 5729 15373
25064 2361 6,280
20756 3368 9,093
$ 49,110 $ 36551 $ 30401
$ 064 $ 076 $ 051
$ 064 3 074 $ 050
$ 111 § 08 $ 072
$ 110 $ 082 $ 071




STERLING BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003, 2002, AND 2001
(In thousands)

Accumulated Other
Comprehensive
Income~—Net
Unrealized Gain on

Convertible A
Available-for-Sale
Preferred Stock _Common Stock Capital Retained Securities, Net of
Shares Amount Shares Amount Surplus Earnings Tax Total
BALANCE AT JANUARY 1,2001 ........ 51 $51 41,728 $41,728 $21,357 $102,652 $ 1,037 $166,825
Netincome ..........c.covuiivenn.. 30,401 30,401
Net change in unrealized gain on
available-for-sale securities, net of
BB « et s 2,853 2,853
Total comprehensive income ...... 33,254
Issuance of common stock ............ 2,025 2,025 21,174 23,199
Conversion of preferred stock ......... (12) (12) 17 17 (5) —
Cash dividendspaid . ................ (5,909) (5,909)
BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31,2001 ...... 39 39 43770 43,770 42,526 127,144 3,890 217,369
Netincome . ... .......cviiininnnann 36,551 36,551
Net change in unrealized gain on
available-for-sale securities, net of
BAX o et 98 98
Total comprehensive income . . .. .. 36,649
Issuance of commonstock ............ 213 213 1,885 2,098
Issuance of preferred stock . ........... 20 20 222 242
Cash dividends paid ................. (7,031) (7,031)
BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31,2002...... 59 59 43,983 43,983 44,633 156,664 3,088 249,327
Netincome ........................ 49,110 49,110
Net change in unrealized gain on
available-for-sale securities, net of
1% (2,826) (2,826)
Total comprehensive income . . .... 46,284
Issuance of common stock ............ 395 595 4,345 4,940
Conversion of preferred stock ......... (39) 39) 64 64 (25) —
Cash dividends paid ................. (7,955) (7,955)
BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31,2003 ...... 20 $20 44,642 344,642 $48,953 $197.819 $ 1,162 $292,596

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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STERLING BANCSHARES, INC. AND. SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2603, 2002, AND 2001

(In thousands)
2003 2002 2001
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Income from continuing Operations . .............c.c.ovevvveren.n. $ 28,354 $ 33,183 $ 21,308
Adjustments to reconcile income from continuing operations to net
cash provided by (used in) operating activities:
Amortization and accretion of premiums and discounts on
SECUIILIES, MEE . o\t i ittt e ettt e e e e 8,846 2,529 479
Provision for credit 1oSses . ... ... e 17,698 11,700 11,684
Deferred income tax €XPense ... .......ouuveernneennneen . 522 2,610 1,316
Gainonsaleofassets ........ ... .. i (3,347) (1,230) (334)
Net gainon the sale of offices ............................ (3,517 — —_
Depreciation and amortization ..............ccoveuvenin... 8,728 9,116 8,919
Write-down of real estate acquired by foreclosure ............ 219 594 94
Net loans originated or purchased for sale orresale ........... 674,993  (439,796) (122,357)
Purchases of trading @ssets . ..., (493,894) (529,176) (336,019)
Proceeds from sale and paydowns of trading assets ........... 465,405 505,903 217,806
Decrease (increase) in accrued interest receivable and other
ASSBES & ottt e e e e 110,250 (73,351)  (27,061)
Increase (decrease) in accrued interest payable and other
Habilities . .. ... e 18,252 3,855 (8,795)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities ........ 832,509  (474,063) (232,960)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Decrease in securities purchased under agreements toresell ........ — 12,313 25,550
Proceeds from maturities and principal paydowns of
held-to-maturity SECUTities ... ...... ..o iiuennnrneennnanen.. 19,580 16,306 12,275
Proceeds from sale of available-for-sale securities ................ 32,487 6,477 87,144
Proceeds from maturities and principal paydowns of
available-for-sale securities ......... ... 193,307 131,761 88,125
Purchases of available-for-sale securities ....................... (503,222) (140,361) (105,249
Netincrease in1oans . ...........ou it (178,418) (223,777) (99,121)
Purchase of bank-owned life insurance ......................... (2,010) (2,084) (2,049)
Proceeds from sale of real estate acquired by foreclosure ........... 6,796 2,969 1,881
Net (increase) decrease in interest-bearing deposits in financial
INSHULONS L .\ttt ettt ettt et e (74) 812 396
Purchase of CaminoReal Bancshares, Inc. {(net of acquired cash
and cashequivalents) ........... .. ... .. . i i — —_ (18,423)
Purchase of Community Bancshares, Inc. (net of acquired cash
andcashequivalents) ........... .. .. .. . .. i — — 3,979
Cash & cash equivalents related to sales of banking offices ......... (106,652) — —
Purchase of Plaza Bank (net of acquired cash and cash equivalents) .. (5,212) —_ —
Purchase of ENB Bankshares, Inc. (net of acquired cash
and cash equivalents) ........... ... i — (7,948) —
Proceeds from sale of premises and equipment ................... 2,886 4,768 8,370
Purchase of premises and equipment .. ........ ... ... ... ... (5,436) (10,449)  (16,458)
Net cash used in investing activities ................... (545,968) (209,213) (13,580)

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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2003 2002 2001
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Net (decrease) increase in deposit accounts ... .................... (171,755) 346,070 186,265
Net {decrease) increase in repurchase agreements and federal
funds purchased ............ .. .. (194,930) 322,292 35,720
Proceeds fromnotes payable .......... ... i — — 20,000
Repayments of notes payable ........... ... ... ... i (21,430) (602) (1,600)
Issuance of subordinated debt . ........ ... ... ... o i 49,944 — —
Issuance of trust preferred securities .......... ... ... .. ... . ... — 51,250 28,750
Redemption of trust preferred securities .. ........................ — (28,750) —_
Proceeds from issuance of common and preferred stock ............. 4,940 2,340 3,751
Payments of cash dividends ............ ... ... ... . . (7,955) (7,031) (5,909)
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities ......... (341,186) 685,569 266,977
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents from continuing
103 2153 14 Lo o - P (54,645) 2,293 20,437
Net cash provided by (used in) discontinued operations ................. 44,409 (3,588) 5,746
Cash and cash equivalents at beginningof year ........................ 147,000 148,295 122,112
Cash and cash equivalents atend of year ........ .. ... . ... ..o voa... $ 136,764 $147,000 $148,295
Supplemental information:
Income taxes paid ... ... oottt e 3 27,443 $ 14,173 $ 18,700
Interest paid . . .. ..ot e 27,246 27,423 50,896
Noncash investing and financing activities—
Acquisition of real estate through foreclosure of collateral ......... 4917 3,981 1,932

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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STERLING BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003, 2002 AND 2001

1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING
POLICIES

Organization — Sterling Bancshares, Inc. (the “Sterling Bancshares™ and together with its subsidiaries, the
“Company”), headquartered in Houston, Texas, is a bank holding company committed to serving small- to
mid-sized businesses. The Company provides commercial and consumer banking services in the greater
metropolitan areas of Houston, Dallas and San Antonio, Texas through the thirty-seven community banking
offices of Sterling Bank and Plaza Bank, banking associations chartered under the laws of the State of Texas
(collectively, the “Bank”).

On September 30, 2003, the Company sold its 80% interest in Sterling Capital Mortgage Company
(“SCMC”). SCMC provided mortgage-banking services to consumers through 110 production offices in Texas
and fifteen other states.

Summary of Significant Accounting and Reporting Policies — The accounting and reporting policies of the
Company conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and the prevailing
practices within the banking industry. A summary of significant accounting policies follows:

Basis of Presentation — The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Sterling Bancshares
and its subsidiaries. Intercompany transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. The consolidated financial
statements have been restated to present the combined financial information of acquisitions accounted for using
the pooling of interests method (see Note 2). Additionally, these consolidated financial statements present the
operations and net gain on sale of SCMC as discontinued operations for all periods presented. SCMC’s
operations were reported previously as the Company’s mortgage-banking segment.

Use of Estimates — The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts in the financial statements. Actual results could differ from those
estimates. Material estimates that are particularly susceptible to significant change in the near term relate to the
determination of the allowance for credit losses, and the valuation of foreclosed real estate, deferred tax assets,
goodwill and other intangibles and trading activities.

Trading Assets — Securities classified as trading assets are bought with the anticipation of sale in the near
term and are carried at fair market value. Generally, these assets are held up to 120 days. These securities consist
primarily of the government-guaranteed portion of SBA loans.

Securities — Securities classified as held-to-maturity are carried at cost, adjusted for the amortization of
premiums and the accretion of discounts. Management has the positive intent and the Company has the ability to
hold these assets until their maturities. Under certain circumstances (including the deterioration of the issuer’s
creditworthiness or a change in tax law or statutory or regulatory requirements), these securities may be sold or
transferred to another portfolio.

Securities classified as available-for-sale are carried at fair value. Unrealized gains and losses are excluded
from earnings and reported, net of tax, as accumulated comprehensive income until realized. Securities within the
available-for-sale portfolio may be used as part of the Company’s asset and liability management strategy and
may be sold in response to changes in interest rate risk, prepayment risk or other factors.

Premiums and discounts are amortized and accreted to operations using the level-yield method of
accounting, adjusted for prepayments as applicable. The specific identification method of accounting is used to
compute gains or losses on the sales of securities. Interest earned on these assets is included in interest income.
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STERLING BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

Loans Held for Sale — Loans held for sale are carried at the lower of aggregate cost or market value.
Premiums, discounts and loan fees (net of certain direct loan origination costs) on loans held for sale are deferred
until the related loans are sold or repaid. Gains or losses on loan sales are recognized at the time of sale and
determined using the specific identification method.

Loans Held for Investment — Loans held for investment are stated at the principal amount outstanding, net
of unedrned discount. Unearned discount relates principally to consumer installment loans. Interest income for
loans is recognized principally by the simple interest method.

A loan is defined as impaired when based on current information and events, it is probable that a creditor
will be unable to collect all amounts due, both interest and principal, according to the contractual terms of the
loan agreement. The allowance for credit losses related to impaired loans is determined based on the difference
between the carrying value of impaired loan and its fair value. The fair value is determined based on the present
value of expected cash flows discounted at the loan’s effective interest rate or, as a practical expedient, the loan’s
observable market price or the fair value of the collateral if the loan is collateral dependent.

Nonperforming Loans and Past-Due Loans — Nonperforming loans are loans which have been categorized
by management as nonaccrual because collection of interest is doubtful and lcans which have been restructured
to provide a reduction in the interest rate or a deferral of interest or principal payments.

When the payment of principal or interest on a loan is delinquent for 90 days, or earlier in some cases, the
loan is placed on nonaccrual status and classified as impaired unless the loan is in the process of collection and
the underlying collateral fully supports the carrying value of the loan. If the decision is made to continue
accruing interest on the loan, periodic reviews are made to evaluate the appropriateness of its accruing status.
When a loan is placed on nonaccrual status, all accrued but unpaid interest is charged to operations. Generally,
any paymernts received on nonaccrual loans are applied first to outstanding loan amounts and next to the recovery
of charged-off loan amounts. Any excess is treated as a recovery of lost interest.

Restructured loans are those loans for which concessions in terms have been granted because of a
borrower’s financial difficulty. Interest is generally accrued on such loans in accordance with the new terms.

Allowance for Credit Losses — The allowance for credit losses is a valuation allowance for losses incurred
on loans and binding loan commitments. All losses are charged to the allowance when the loss actually occurs or
when a determination is made that a loss is probable. Recoveries are credited to the allowance at the time of
recovery.

Throughout the year, management estimates the probable level of losses to determine whether the allowance
for credit losses is adequate to absorb losses in the existing portfolio. Based on these estimates, an amount is
charged to the provision for credit losses and credited to the allowance for credit losses in order to adjust the
allowance to a level determined to be adequate to absorb losses.

Management’s judgment as to the level of probable losses on existing loans involves the consideration of
current and anticipated economic conditions and their potential effects on specific borrowers; an evaluation of
the existing relationships among loans, potential credit losses and the present level of the allowance; results of
examinations of the loan portfolio by regulatory agencies; and management’s internal review of the loan
portfolio. In determining the collectibility of certain loans, management also considers the fair value of any
underlying collateral. The amount ultimately realized may differ from the carrying value of these assets because
of economic, operating or other conditions beyond the Company’s control.
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STERLING BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

Estimates of credit losses involve an exercise of judgment. While it is reasonably possible that in the near
term the Company may sustain losses which are substantial relative to the allowance for credit losses, it is the
judgment of management that the allowance for credit losses reflected in the consolidated balance sheets is
adequate to absorb probable losses that exist in the current loan portfolio.

Premises and Equipment — Land is carried at cost. Premises and equipment are carried at cost, less
accumulated depreciation and amortization. Depreciation expense is computed primarily using the straight-line
method over the estimated useful lives (ranging from three to forty years) of the assets. Leasehold improvements
are amortized using the straight-line method over the periods of the leases or the estimated useful lives,
whichever is shorter.

Goodwill and Other Intangibles — Amortization of goodwill ceased beginning January 1, 2002 upon the
adoption of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 142. Management performs an annual
evaluation of whether any impairment of the goodwill and other intangibles has occurred; if any such impairment
is determined, a writedown is recorded.

Real Estate Acquired by Foreclosure — The Company records real estate acquired by foreclosure at fair
value less estimated costs to sell. Adjustments are made to reflect declines in value subsequent to acquisition, if
any, below the recorded amounts. Required developmental costs associated with foreclosed property under
construction are capitalized and considered in determining the fair value of the property. Operating expenses of
such properties, net of related income, and gains and losses on their disposition are included in noninterest
expense.

Income Taxes — Sterling Bancshares files a consolidated federal income tax return with its subsidiaries.
Each computes income taxes as if it filed a separate return and remits to, or is reimbursed by Sterling Bancshares
based on the portion of taxes currently due or refundable.

Deferred income taxes are accounted for by applying statutory tax rates in effect at the balance sheet date-to
differences between the book basis and the tax basis of assets and liabilities. The resulting deferred tax assets and
liabilities are adjusted to reflect changes in enacted tax laws or rates.

Realization of net deferred tax assets is dependent on generating sufficient future taxable income. Although
realization is not assured, management believes it is more likely than not that all of the net deferred tax assets
will be realized.

Stock-based Compensation — The Company accounts for stock-based employee compensation plans using
the intrinsic value-based method of accounting, as permitted, and discloses pro forma information assuming the
fair value-based method as prescribed by accounting principles. Because the exercise price of the Company’s
employee stock options equals the market price of the underlying stock on the date of grant, no compensation
expense is recognized on options granted. Compensation expense for restricted stock awards is based on the
market price of the stock on the date of grant and is recognized ratably over the vesting period of the award.

If compensation cost for the Company’s stock-based compensation plan had been determined based on the
fair value method at the grant dates for awards, there would have been no material impact on the Company’s
reported net income or earnings per share. Pro forma information regarding net income and earnings per share is
required under accounting principles and has been determined as if the Company accounted for its employee
stock option plans under the fair value method. The fair value of options was estimated using a Black-Scholes
option pricing model. Option valuation models require use of highly subjective assumptions. Also, employee
stock options have characteristics that are significantly different from those of traded options, including vesting
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STERLING BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

provisions and trading limitations that impact their liquidity. Because employee stock options have differing
characteristics and changes in the subjective input assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimate, the
Black-Scholes valuation model does not necessarily provide a reliable measure of the fair value of employee
stock options. The following table shows information related to stock-based compensation in both the reported
and pro forma earnings per share amounts (dollars in thousands except for per share amounts):

2003 2002 2001
Netincome, as TePOTted ... .. .ottt ettt $49,110 $36,551 $30,401
Add: Stock-based employee compensation expense included in reported net
income, net of related taxes . ...t 177 170 172
Less: Total stock-based employee compensation expense determined under fair
value based method, net of related taxes .......... ... . (1,197)  (1,220) (1,288)
Proforma net income . ... ... i $48,090 $35,501 $29,285
Earnings pershare: .. ... . i e
Basic—as reported . ... ... e $ 111 $ 083 $ 072
Basic—pro forma . ... ... .ttt e $ 1.09 $ 081 $ 0.69
Diluted—as reported ... ... ... $ 1.10 $ 082 $ 071
Diluted—proforma ......... ... it $ 108 $ 079 § 068

The Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) is working on a project to-address issues related to
equity-based compensation. The objective of the project is to achieve convergence with international standards
setting bodies on one single, global accounting standard for equity-based compensation. In the project, the FASB
wishes to resolve whether compensation paid in the form of equity instruments should be recognized in the
financial statements and how this compensation should be measured.

The FASB has tentatively determined that all equity-based compensation should be recognized in the
financial statements beginning in 2005. Deliberations as to how equity-based compensation should be measured
are ongoing. The FASB is scheduled to issue an exposure draft in the first quarter of 2004 and has set a goal of
issuing a final accounting standard in the second half of 2004. Management is unable to determine the impact of
this project on the consolidated financial statements until more information is available.

Profit Sharing Plan — The Company has a profit sharing plan that covers substantially all employees.
Contributions are accrued and funded currently.

Statements of Cash Flows — Cash and cash equivalents includes cash, due from banks and federal funds
_sold. Generally, federal funds are invested for one-day periods.

Earnings Per Share — Earnings per share are presented under two formats: basic EPS and diluted EPS.
Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing net income (after deducting dividends on preferred stock) by
the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share is computed by
dividing net income by the weighted average number of shares outstanding adjusted for the incremental shares
issuable upon conversion of preferred stock and issuable upon exercise of outstanding stock options.

Comprehensive Income — Comprehensive income includes all changes in equity during the period presented

that result from transactions and other economic events other than transactions with shareholders. The Company
reports comprehensive income in the consolidated statements of shareholders’ equity.
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STERLING BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

Reclassifications — Certain reclassifications have been made to prior year amounts to conform to current
year presentation. All reclassifications have been applied consistently for the periods presented.

Recent Accounting Standards — In December 2003, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 46R, Consolidation
of Variable Interest Entities (“FIN 46R”). FIN 46R provides guidance on how to identify a variable interest
entity and determine when the assets, liabilities, noncontrolling interests and results of operations of a variable
interest entity need to be included in a company’s consolidated financial statements. A company that holds
variable interests in an entity will consolidate the entity if the company’s interest in the variable interest entity is
such that the company will absorb a majority of the variable interest entity’s expected losses and/or receive a
majority of the entity’s expected residual returns, if they occur. As of December 31, 2003, the Company had no
investments in variable interest entities requiring consolidation. FIN 46R will require that the trusts that issued
the Company’s outstanding company-obligated mandatorily redeemable trust preferred securities be
deconsolidated from the consolidated financial statements. The Company will adopt FIN 46R on January 1,
2004. After adoption, these trust preferred securities will no longer be shown in the consolidated financial
statements. Instead, the junior subordinated debentures issued by Sterling Bancshares to these trusts will be
shown ag liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets and interest expense associated with the junior
subordinated debentures will be shown in the consolidated statements of income.

In June 2003, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 45, Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure Requirements
for Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others—an Interpretation of FASB Statements
No. 5, 57 and 107 and Rescission of FASB Interpretation No. 34. FIN 45 expands required disclosures by a
guarantor about its obligations under certain guarantees that it has issued. It also clarifies that a guarantor is
required to recognize, at the inception of a guarantee, a liability for the fair value of the obligation undertaken in
issuing the guarantee. Implementation of FIN 45 on January 1, 2003 did not have a significant impact on the
Company’s consolidated financial statements. The Company considers the fees collected in connection with the
issuance of letters of credit to be representative of the fair value of its obligation undertaken in issuing the
guarantee.

In May 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 150, Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments with
Characteristics of both Liabilities and Equity. This statement establishes standards classifying and measuring
certain financial instruments with characteristics of both liabilities and equity. Many instruments affected by this
statement were previously classified as equity. Portions of SFAS No. 150 are under deferral by the FASB.
Implementation of this standard, as presently written, will not have a material impact on the Company’s
consolidated financial statements.

In April 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 149, Amendment of Statement 133 on Derivative Instruments and
Hedging Activities. This statement amends and clarifies financial accounting and reporting for derivative
instruments, including certain derivative instruments embedded in other contracts (collectively referred to as
derivatives) and for hedging activities under FASB Statement No. 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments
and Hedging Activities. This statement was adopted effective July 1, 2003 and had no effect on the consolidated
financial statements.

In December 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 148, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation—Transition
and Disclosure. SFAS 148 amends the disclosure requirements of earlier accounting guidance to require
prominent disclosures about the method of accounting for stock-based employee compensation and its affect on
reported results. The Company adopted SFAS 148 as of December 31, 2002 and continues to account for its
employee stock options using the intrinsic value-based method.
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2. ACQUISITIONS AND DIVESTITURES

Acquisitions. On October 31, 2003, the Company acquired South Texas Capital Group, Inc. of San Antonio
and its subsidiary bank, Plaza Bank for $16.0 miilion in cash and 125 thousand shares of Sterling Bancshares’
common stock. Plaza Bank operates four banking offices in San Antonio. The operational integration of Plaza
Bank and Sterling Bank was completed in January 2004. This acquisition was accounted for using the purchase
method of accounting. Goodwill of $12.6 million and core deposit intangible of $695 thousand was recorded in
this acquisition. The core deposit intangible is being amortized on an accelerated amortization method over a
10 year life.

On September 13, 2002, the Company acquired ENB Bankshares, Inc. of Dallas, for an aggregate cash
purchase price of $10.4 million. ENB Bankshares, Inc. operated one banking office in North Dallas and had total
assets of $70.8 million at acquisition. This acquisition was accounted for using the purchase method of
accounting. Goodwill of $5.7 and core deposit intangible of $486 thousand was recorded in this acquisition. The
core deposit intangible is being amortized on an accelerated amortization method over a 10 year life.

On December 17, 2001, the Company acquired Community Bancshares, Inc. for $14.6 million in cash and
1.44 million shares of Sterling Bancshares’ common stock. Community Bancshares operated two banking offices
in west Houston and had total assets of $155 million, loans of $80 million and deposits of $114 million at
acquisition. This acquisition was accounted for using the purchase method of accounting. Goodwill of
$28.7 million and core deposit intangible of $2.0 million was recorded in this acquisition. The core deposit
intangible is being amortized on an accelerated amortization method over a 10 year.

On August 23, 2001, the Company acquired Lone Star Bancorporation, Inc. in a stock-for-stock merger. The
Company issued 1.76 million shares of Sterling Bancshares’ common stock in this acquisition. All previously
reported amounts have been restated to reflect this transaction which was accounted for using the “pooling of
interests” method. Lone Star Bancorporation operated four banking offices in the Houston metropolitan area and
had total assets of $170 million, loans of $123 million and deposits of $154 million acquisition.

On March 22, 2001, the Company acquired CaminoReal Bancshares of Texas, Inc. for an aggregate cash
purchase price of $51.8 million. In this acquisition, the Company acquired eight banking offices and
approximately $150 million in loans and $249 million in deposits. This acquisition was accounted for using the
purchase method of accounting. Goodwill of $21.2 million was recorded in this acquisition.

Divestiture of SCMC. On September 30, 2003, the Company sold its 80% interest in SCMC to RBC
Mortgage Company, an indirect subsidiary of the Royal Bank of Canada. The sales price for SCMC was
$102 million resulting in a pre-tax gain of $47.8 million. The pre-tax gain was determined after subtracting
$6.2 million of goodwill allocated to SCMC. In the sale of SCMC, the Company made certain representations,
warranties and indemnifications having terms of up to six years. The Company has retained $2 million from the
sales proceeds otherwise available for distribution for possible future claims related thereto, and will continue to
hold such funds for four years. In a separate transaction, SCMC’s mortgage servicing portfolio was sold to other
parties. A pre-tax loss of $1.6 million was recorded on the sale of the mortgage servicing portfolio. SCMC’s
operations were reported previously as the Company’s mortgage-banking segment; which is now reported
together with the net gain on sale as discontinued operations.

The strategic divestiture of SCMC was made to better position the Company to serve small- and mid-sized
businesses. Net proceeds of the sale are available to support the Company’s ongoing internal growth and to make
strategic acquisitions.

Divestitures of Banking Offices. During 2003, the Company sold five of its banking offices in three
separate transactions resulting in a net pre-tax gain of $3.5 million. At the sales date, these banking offices had
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approximately $34.0 in loans and $150.9 million of deposits that were included in the sales transactions. The net
gain was determined based on the Company’s recorded investment in these offices including allocated goodwill

and intangibles.

These banking offices, located in rural areas, were sold because their operations and growth potential did
not align with the Company’s business banking strategy. These offices were acquired originally as part of

previous acquisitions.

3. SECURITIES

The amortized cost and fair value of securities are as follows (in thousands):

Available-for-Sale

Obligations of U.S. government agencies .................
Obligations of states and political subdivisions ............

Mortgage-backed securities and collateralized mortgage

obligations .......... ...
Other securities . .......... it it

Held-to-Maturity

Obligations of states and political subdivisions ............

Mortgage-backed securities and collateralized mortgage

ODHEAtIONS ... ..ot

Available-for-Sale

Obligations of U.S. government agencies . ................
Obligations of states and political subdivisions ............

Mortgage-backed securities and collateralized mortgage

obligations . ....... ... .. e
©OMher SeCUrities . ..t e e

Held-to-Maturity

Obligations of states and political subdivisions ............

Mortgage-backed securities and collateralized mortgage

obligations ........ .. ...

December 31, 2003

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized
Cost Gains Losses Fair Value

$ 86,006 $ 141 $ (39 $ 86,108
4,255 178 — 4,433

397,146 2,793 (1,165) 398,774
33,798 — a77) 33,621

$521,205  $3,112  $(1,381) $522,936

$ 38336 $2367 § — $ 40,703

3,821 41 4 3,858
$ 42,157 $2408 $§ (4) $ 44,561

December 31, 2002

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized
Cost Gains Losses Fair Value

$ 38608 $ 80 § (20) $ 39,388

4,506 189 — 4,695
178,638 5,272 (111) 183,799
23,277 6 T T TToTTasRey T

$245,029  $6,267 $ (131) $251,165

$ 56,128 $2,844 § (1) §$ 58971

5,761 96 (43) 5,814

$ 61,889 $2940 § (44) $ 64,785

Declines in the fair value of individual securities below their cost that are other than temporary would result
in write-downs, as a realized loss, of the individual securities to their fair value. Management believes that based
upon the credit quality of the securities, none of the unrealized loss on securities is considered other-than-

temporary at December 31, 2003.
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The carrying amount of securities at December 31, 2003, by contractual maturity, are shown below.

Expected maturities will differ from contractual maturities because borrowers may have the right to call or
prepay obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties. Dollar amounts are shown in thousands.

Due < 1 Year Due 1-5 Years Due 5-10 Years =~ Due > 10 Years
Amount Yield Amount Yield Amount  Yield Amount  Yield Total
Obligations of U.S.
government
agencies ........... $ 55,199 1.25% $ 30,909 2.22% $ — @— $ - — $ 86,108
Obligations of states and
political
subdivisions . ....... 5474 6.38% 26,373 6.62% 10,517 6.79% 405 8.02% 42,769
Mortgage-backed
securities and
collateralized
mortgage
obligations . ........ 9,973 1.72% 222,127 3.01% 78,632 439% 91,863 4.22% 402,595
Other securities ....... 33,621 4.36% — — — — — 33,621

$104,267 2.57% $279,409 3.26% $89,149 4.67% $92,268 4.24% $565,093

Proceeds from sales of available for sale securities were $32.5 million, $6.5 million and $87.1 million
during 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. Gross gains of $907 thousand, $122 thousand and $267 thousand and
gross losses of $2 thousand, $12 thousand and $110 thousand were realized on these sales in 2003, 2002 and
2001, respectively.

The Company does not own any securities of any one issuer (other than the U.S. government and its
agencies) of which aggregate adjusted cost exceeds 10% of the consolidated shareholders’ equity at
December 31, 2003.

Securities with carrying values totaling $504.0 million and fair values totaling $504.9 million at
December 31, 2003 were pledged to secure public deposits and Federal Home Loan Bank advances.
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4. LOANS

The loan portfolio consists of various types of loans made principally to borrowers located in the Houston,
Dallas and San Antonio metropolitan areas, and is classified by major type as follows (in thousands):

2003 2002
Loans held for sale
Commercial, financial and industrial ................ ... ..... $ 3,010 % 2,624
Real estate—commercial .......... .. i e 5,303 3,062
Real estate—mMmOTtZAZE . ... vrtn et 17,987 695,615
Real estate—CONStrUCton . ... .o iir it 8 —
Totalloansheld forsale .......... ... ... ..., 26,308 701,301
Loans held for investment
Domestic
Commercial, financial and industrial ..................... 658,881 585,685
Real estate—commercial ............civiiiiiininnn. 755,658 624,535
Real estate—mortgage ............c.co. i 201,279 200,755
Real estate—COonStruCtON .. oot vt i et e e e e 401,505 370,360
CONSUMET, NEt . .o ittt e e e e e 104,944 149,793
Foreign
Commercial and industrial ......... ... ... ... ... .. ..., 7,886 7,207
Other 10ams . ..o e e e e 578 5,226
Total loans held forinvestment . .............. ... ... ... 2,130,731 1,943,561
Total IOANS . . . o\ttt $2,157,039  $2,644,862

The recorded investment in impaired loans is approximately $100.4 million and $81.8 million, at
December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. Such impaired loans required an allowance for credit losses of

approximately $17.6 million and $14.0 million, respectively.

The average recorded investment in impaired loans for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001

was $92.8 million, $72.2 million and $56.4 million, respectively.

Loan maturities and rate sensitivity of the total loan portfolio, excluding real estate—mortgage and

consumer loans, at December 31, 2003 are as follows (in thousands):

Due After
One Year
Due in One Through Due After
Year or Less Five Years Five Years Total
Commercial, financial and industrial .................... $ 528,713 $126,259 $ 6,919 $ 661,891
Real estate—commercial . ........... .. ... . ... 507,676 221,294 31,991 760,961
Real estate—construction ............. ... o ... 332,502 57,702 11,309 401,513
Foreignloans .......... .. .. o i 5,027 2,860 577 8,464
Total ... $1,373,918 $408,115 $50,796 $1,832,829
Loans with a fixed interestrate ......................... $ 205,583 $396,139 $49,858 §$ 651,580
Loans with a floating interestrate ....................... 1,168,335 11,976 938 1,181,249
Total .. e e e $1,373,918 $408,115 $50,796 $1,832,829




STERLING BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)
As of December 31, 2003 and 2002, loans from Sterling Bank outstanding to directors, officers and their
affiliates were approximately $11.9 million and $11.5 million, respectively. In the opinion of management, all

transactions entered into between Sterling Bank and such related parties have been and are, in the ordinary course
of business, made on the same terms and conditions as similar transactions with unaffiliated persons.

An analysis of activity with respect to these related-party loans is as follows (in thousands):

Year Ended
December 31,
2003 2002
Beginnming balance ... .....ov ittt e $11,514  $13,148
New loans and reclassified related loans .......... ... . . ... 2,286 869
Loans to insiders/directors who resigned ............................... — (428)
REPaymMents . . .. ...ttt (1,859) (2,075)
Ending balance ........... oot $11,941  $11,514

5. NONPERFORMING AND PAST-DUE LOANS

The following table presents information relating to nonperforming and past-due loans (in thousands):

December 31,
2003 2002
Nonperforming loans—nonaccrual .. ........oveirn e $33,887  $19,654
Loans 90 days or more past due, notonnonaccrual ....................... 35 984

The Company did not have any restructured loans as December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001. For the years
ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, interest foregone on nonaccrual loans was approximately $1.2 million,
$1.1 million and $766 thousand, respectively.

6. ALLOWANCE FOR CREDIT LOSSES

An analysis of activity in the allowance for credit losses is as follows (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,
. 2003 2002 2001
Balance at beginningof year ......... ... ... ... $27,248  $22927 $16,862
Provision for creditlosses ........ ... i, 17,698 11,700 11,684
Loanschargedoff ............ ... ... ... ... ... .. ... 16,673 9,755 9,823
Loan recoveries . ...........etenit i i (1,947) (1,720) (1,446)
Netloans charged off ............................. 14,726 8,035 8,377
- Allowance for credit losses associated with acquired
INSHEULIONS .« ottt ettt et e ettt e e 855 656 2,758
Allowance for credit losses associated with divested offices .. (353) — —
Balanceatendofyear .......... ... ... .. .. i $30,722  $27,248  $22,927
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7. PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT

Premises and equipment are summarized as follows (in thousands):

December 31,

2003 2002
Land ... e $ 14,173 §$ 12,585
Buildings and improvements ............ ... i i i 39,773 40,024
Furniture, fixtures and equipment .............. ... oo, 40,071 40,894

94,017 93,503
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization . ....... ... ... .o (45,476) (41,858)
Total ... $ 48541  § 51,645

8. GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLES

The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill by reporting unit for the year ended December 31, 2002 and
2003 are as follows (in thousands):

San South
Houston Antonio Dallas Texas Total

Balance, January 1,2002 ......... ... 0., $29,641 $15,079 $ — $5312 $50,032

Final purchase price adjustment .................... (28) — — — (28)

ENB Bankshares, Inc. acquisition .................. —_ — 5,662 — 5,662
Balance, December 31,2002 .............. ... iin... 29,613 15,079 5,662 5,312 55,666

Sale of the South Texasoffices..................... — — — (5,312) (5,312)

South Texas Capital Group, Inc. acquisition .......... — 12,579 — — 12,579
Balance, December 31,2003 ......... . .. $29,613 $27,658 $5,662 $ —  $62,933

The changes in the carrying amounts of the core deposit intangibles for the years ended December 31, 2003
and 2002 are as follows (in thousands):

Core Deposit
Intangibles
Balance, January 1, 2002 . . . ... $2,036
AMOTHZAtION EXPENSE . . v v i it ittt ie el e - 426y -
ENB Bankshares, Inc. acquiSition . .. ........oviin i 486
Balance, December 31, 2002 . ..o o e 2,096
AmOrtization €XPENSE . ... vttt et ettt (465)
South Texas Capital Group, Inc. acquisition ............. ... ... ... .. oo.n. 695
Balance, December 31, 2003 . . ... ottt e $2,326
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The weighted average amortization period for core deposit intangibles is 8.5 years at December 31, 2003.
The projected amortization for the core deposit intangible as of December 31, 2003 is as follows (in thousands):

; Core Deposit

- ‘ Antangibles
2004 o e $ 485
2005 . 399
2000 ... 330
2007 . e e e 278
2008 . e e 235
Thereafter . ... ... . 599
Total .o e e $2,326

9. DEPOSITS

Included in certificates and other time deposits are individual amounts of $100,000 or more. The remaining
maturities of these deposits are summarized as of December 31, 2003 as follows (in thousands):

2003
Three Months OF 18SS . oottt e et e e e e e e e e e e e e $236,344
Over three through six months .. .. .. .. ..o 90,088
Over six through twelve months ... ... . .. i i i e 57,889
Thereal T . . .o e 57,359
TOtal .. e e $441,680

Interest expense for certificates of deposit in excess of $100,000 was approximately $9.8 million, $11.0
million, and $15.0 million for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

At December 31, 2003, the Bank has $54.7 million in brokered deposits. Brokered deposits of $28.8 million
will mature in the first quarter of 2004 and the remaining balance of $25.9 million will mature in the second
quarter of 2004,

There are no major concentrations of deposits.

10. OTHER BORROWED FUNDS

Other borrowed funds are summarized as follows (in thousands):

December 31,

2003 2002
Federal Home Loan Bank advances ......................... $311,735  $490,790
Federal funds purchased ............ ... ... .. ... ... ... ... 12,425 18,800
Ol o $324,160  $509,590

The Company has an available line of credit with the Federal Home Loan Bank of Dallas, which allows the
Company to borrow on a collateralized basis. At December 31, 2003, borrowings under this line of credit totaled
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$311.7 million and had maturities between two days up to eleven months. The average interest rate on these
borrowings was 1.06% at December 31, 2003. These borrowings are collateralized by single family residential
mortgage loans and a pledge of certain securities. The Company utilizes these borrowings to meet liquidity
needs. Maturing advances are replaced with either additional borrowings or through increased customer deposits.

The Bank has available lines for federal funds purchased at correspondent banks. As of December 31, 2003,
federal funds outstanding with correspondent banks was.$12.4 million. These-borrowings matured-in-January
2004 and were repaid.

11. NOTES PAYABLE

As of December 31, 2002, Sterling Bancshares had outstanding borrowings totaling $20 million with Wells
Fargo Bank. Other notes totaling $1.4 million, assumed in acquisitions, were outstanding at December 31, 2002.
All outstanding notes payable were fully repaid during 2003.

12. SUBORDINATED DEBT

During April 2003, the Bank raised approximately $50 million through a private offering of subordinated
unsecured notes. These subordinated notes bear interest at a fixed rate of 7.375% and mature on April 15, 2013.
Interest payments are due semi-annually. The subordinated notes may not be redeemed or called prior to their
maturity. Debt issuance costs of approximately $1.0 million are being amortized over the ten-year term of the
notes on a straight-line basis.

In June 2003, the Bank entered into an interest rate swap agreement in which the Bank swapped the fixed
rate to a floating rate. Under the terms of the swap agreement, the Bank receives a fixed coupon rate of 7.375%
and pays a variable interest rate equal to the three-month LIBOR that is reset on a quarterly basis, plus 3.62%.
This swap is designated as a fair-value hedge. Changes in the fair value of both the interest rate swap and the
hedged subordinated debt are recorded in the statements of income. However, the impact of these fully offset
because of the hedge’s effectiveness. The swap’s floating rate on December 31, 2003 was 4.77%.

The Company’s credit exposure on the interest rate swap is limited to its net favorable fair value, if any, and
the interest payment receivable from the counterparty.

13. TRUST PREFERRED SECURITIES

As of December 31, 2003, the Company had the following issues of trust preferred securities outstanding
(dollars in thousands):

Trust Junior
Preferred Subordinated
Securities Debt Owed
Description Issuance Date Outstanding Interest Rate To Trusts Final Maturity Date
Capital Trust IIT . .. .. September 26, 2002  $31,250 8.30% Fixed $32,217  September 26, 2032
Statutory Trust One .. August 30, 2002 20,000 3-month 20,619  August 30, 2032
LIBOR plus
3.45%
Capital TrustIl ... ... March 21, 2001 28,750 9.20% Fixed 29,639 March 21, 2031
Total .............. $80,000 $82,475
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Each of the trusts is a statutory business trust organized for the sole purpose of issuing trust securities and
investing the proceeds thereof in junior subordinated debentures of Sterling Bancshares, the sole asset of each
trust. The preferred trust securities of each trust represent preferred beneficial interests in the assets of the
respective trusts and are subject to mandatory redemption upon payment of the junior subordinated debentures
held by the trust. The common securities of each trust are wholly-owned by Sterling Bancshares. Each trust’s
ability to pay amounts due on the trust preferred securities is selely dependent upon Sterling Bancshares making
payment on the related junior subordinated debentures. Sterling Bancshares’ obligations under the junior
subordinated debentures and other relevant trust agreements, in aggregate, constitute a full and unconditional
guarantee by Sterling Bancshares of each respective trust’s obligations under the trust securities issued by each
respective trust.

Each issuance of trust preferred securities outstanding is mandatorily redeemable 30 years after issuance and
is callable beginning five years after issuance if certain conditions are met (including the receipt of appropriate
regulatory approvals). The trust preferred securities may be prepaid earlier upon the occurrence and continuation
of certain events including a change in their tax status or regulatory capital treatment. In each case, the
redemption price is equal to 100% of the face amount of the trust preferred securities, plus the accrued and
unpaid distributions thereon through the redemption date.

The trust preferred securities issued under Statutory Trust One were privately placed. The interest on these
securities is a floating rate that resets quarterly. Until August 30, 2007, there is a ceiling on the three-month
LIBOR of 8.50% resulting in a ceiling on the floating rate of 11.95% during this period. As of December 31,
2003, the floating rate was 4.61% on these securities.

After completing the latest issuance of trust preferred securities in 2002, the proceeds were used to prepay
the 9.28% Junior Subordinated Debentures issued in June 1997. Upon the prepayment, the 9.28% Trust Preferred
Securities outstanding were mandatorily redeemed. This effectively lowered the Company’s overall borrowing
costs. The Company recorded a $1.4 million non-cash charge associated with the early redemption of these
~ securities during 2002. ‘

14. INCOME TAXES

The components of the provision for income taxes follow (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,
2003 2002 2001
CUITENL . o ottt e e e e e e $13,515 $13,107 $ 8,814
Deferred . ... e 522 2,610 1,316
Income tax expense from continuing operation . .............. ... . 14,037 15,717 10,130
Income tax expense related to discontinued operations . ..................... 25,064 2,361 6,280
Total .. $39,101 $18,078 $16,410
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The provision for income taxes differs from the amount computed by applying the federal income tax
statutory rate of 35% to income from continuing operations as follows (in thousands):

Year Ended f)ecember 31,
2003 2002 2001

Taxes calculated at StatUtOry rate ... ... ovei e $14,837 $17,115 $11,003
Increase (decrease) resulting from: . ......... ... .. .. i i

Tax-exempt INLETESLINCOIME .« . oo vttt ittt ne e 859) (1,011) (1,104)

Tax-exempt income from bank-owned life insurance ................... (703) (729) (717)

Other, net ... e 762 342 948
Income tax expense from continuing operations ........................... $14,037 $15,717 $10,130

Significant deferred tax assets and liabilities at December 31, 2003 and 2002, were as follows (in
thousands): '

December 31,

2003 2002
Deferred tax assets:
Real estate acquired by foreclosure . .. ... ... § 176 $ 82
Allowance for credit 10SSES . . .o vt it e 9,025 9,396
Net operating loss carryforward . ......... ... ... . . i 438 479
Deferred COMPENSation . ... .....ui ittt ettt et 1,056 1,148
111 T=> (O PP 1,138 —
Total deferred taX @SSeS . . ..o\ttt ettt e e 11,833 11,105
Deferred tax liabilities:
Net unrealized gains on available-for-sale securities ................... ... ...... 567 2,147
Depreciable assets . . ...t e e 431 1,051
Federal Home Loan Bank stock dividends . ......... ... i, 1,230 1,028
187147 O 794 171
Total deferred tax liabilities . ... .. it e e e 3,022 4,397
Net deferred tax assets before valuation allowance .......... ... .o .. 8,811 6,708
Valuation alloWance ... ... ...ttt e (262) (262)
Net deferred tax @SSt . . .o v ittt et et e $ 8,549 $ 6,446

15. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Profit sharing plan — The Company’s profit sharing plan includes substantially all employees.
Contributions to the plan are made at the discretion of the Board of Directors but generally equal up to 10% of
the Company’s pre-tax net income, subject to IRS limitations. Employee contributions to 401(k) plan accounts
are optional. The Company matches 50 percent of the employee’s 401(k) plan account contribution, up to 6
percent of the employee’s base pay. The Company’s profit sharing and matching contributions are accrued and
funded currently. Total profit sharing and matching contribution expense for 2003, 2002 and 2001 was
approximately $4.5 million, $5.1 million, and $3.9 million, respectively.

Stock-based compensation — On April 28, 2003, Company shareholders approved the “2003 Stock
Incentive and Compensation Plan” (the “2003 Stock Plan”). The 2003 Stock Plan provides for the issuance of a
maximum of 2,150,000 shares of the Company’s common stock. Options are granted to officers and employees
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at exercise prices determined by the Human Resources Programs Committee of the Board of Directors. These
options generally have exercise prices equal to the fair market value of the common stock at the date of grant and
vest ratably over a four-year period. Options granted under the plan must be exercised not later than ten years

from the date of grant,

Stock grant awards may also be made under the 2003 Stock Plan. A total of 20,710, 19,685, and 20,264
stock grants were awarded during 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. Compensation expense of $272 thousand, $
261 thousand, and $ 265 thousand was recorded during 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively, for the stock grant

awards.

A summary of changes in outstanding options, as restated for stock splits, is as foliows (shares in

thousands):

Shares under option, beginning of year
Shares granted
Shares canceled/expired
Shares exercised

Shares under option, end of year

Shares exercisable, end of year

Weighted average fair value of options granted
during the year

Remaining authorized shares under approved plans,
end of year

Year Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average
Exercise Exercise Exercise

Shares Price Shares Price Shares Price
2270 $9.07 2301 $ 863 1,800 $ 645
350 12.13 221 12.23 880 12.28
(105) 1246 (88) 11.85 (122) 9.48
(434) 543 (164 575 (257)  5.40
2,081 $10.03 2270 $ 9.07 2,301 $ 8.63
1,221 $ 863 1,222 $ 7.07 935 § 5.54
$ 3.01 $ 3.35 $ 3.64

1,892 408 635

The-fair value of options-at date of grant was estimated using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with

the following weighted-average assumptions:

2003

2002

2001

Expected life (years) . . ... ... oo e

Risk free interest rate

VOlatility . . ot

Dividend yield
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4.33

2.93%
29.27%

1.50%

4.52

2.55%
29.29%

1.47%

4.82

4.22%
29.35%

1.28%
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The following table presents information relating to the Company’s stock options outstanding at

December 31, 2003 (share data in thousands):

Range of Exercise Prices
$1.57—8$313 ..........
$3.14—-%469 ..........
$470—$626 ..........
$627—$782 ..........
$7.83—$939 ..........
$9.40—3%1095 .........
$10.96—%12.51 .........
$12.52—%14.08 .........
$14.09—%15.64 .........

Options Outstanding

Options Exercisable

Number

Weighted-Average

Weighted-Average
Remaining Life

Number

Weighted-Average

Outstanding Exercise Price (Years) Exercisable Exercise Price

89 2.34 1.1 89 2.34

63 3.87 2.2 63 3.87
64 5.91 4.0 58 5.89
388 7.13 4.9 354 7.17
258 8.75 4.8 252 8.74
101 10.12 5.8 80 10.10
653 11.83 8.0 155 11.72
306 13.09 7.6 102 13.00
159 15.26 z_é 68 15.39
2,081 $10.03 6.2 1,221 $ 8.63

Stock purchase plan — The Company offers the 1994 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the “Purchase Plan™),
which is a compensatory benefit plan, to all employees who are employed for more than 20 hours per week and
meet minimum length-of-service requirements of three months. The Purchase Plan provides for an aggregate of
675,000 shares of the Company’s common stock to be issued under the Plan with no more than 67,500 shares
available during any year. The purchase price for shares available under the Purchase Plan is equal to the fair
market value on the annual enrollment date. During 2003 and 2002, 12,326 and 13,016 shares, respectively, were
subscribed for through payroll deduction for a maximum of two years. Shares are issued upon full payment. In
2003, 1,925 shares were purchased under the Purchase Plan.
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i16. SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Preferred stock — The Board of Directors has approved the sale of convertible preferred stock in series
pursuant to confidential private placement memoranda upon the opening of various banking offices. The shares
are sold’to investors who may assist in the business development efforts of the opening office and are convertible
to common shares dependent on that banking office meeting certain performance and deposit growth goals. On
March 7, 2002, the Company completed a private placement of 20,000 shares of the Company’s Series I
Convertible Preferred Stock. Shares of the Series I Preferred Stock will convert into a maximum of 22,000 shares
of the Company’s common stock based upon performance goals for the Dallas banking office in 2004. Each
share of Series I Preferred Stock will automatically convert into one share of common stock if performance goals
are not met within the required timeframe.

During 2003, 39,000 outstanding shares of Series H preferred stock issued in the year 2000 were converted
into 64,350 common shares. The conversion into common stock was made based on the attainment of
performance goals by the Bellaire office.

17. EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARE

Earnings per common share was computed based on the following (in thousands, except per share data):

20603 2002 2001
Income from continuing operations . ...............cooun.... $28,354  $33,183  $21,308
Income from discontinued operations ........................ 20,756 3,368 9,093
NEtINCOME . ..ottt e e e e $49,110  $36,551  $30,401
Basic:
Weighted average shares outstanding .................... 44,180 43872 42,180
Diluted:
Add incremental shares for:
Assumed exercise of outstanding options ............. 439 790 803
Assumed conversion of preferred stock ............... 29 94 61
Total ... 44,648 44,756 43,044
Earnings per share
BasiC ..t e $ 1.11 $ 083 $ 072
Diluted ............ P $ 110 $ 082 $§ 071
Earnings per share from continuing operations
Basic . ... $ 064 $ 076 $ 0.51
Diluted . ... ... . $ 064 S 074 § 050

The incremental shares for the assumed exercise of the outstanding options were determined by application
of the treasury stock method. The incremental shares for the conversion of the preferred stock were determined
assuming applicable performance goals had been met. The calculation of diluted earnings per share excludes 1.7
million, 1.5 million and 1.5 million options outstanding during 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively, that were anti-
dilutive.
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18. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Leases — A summary as of December 31, 2003, of noncancelable future operating lease commitments
follows (in thousands):

2004 . $ 3.987
2005 e e e e e 3,132
2006 .. e e e 2,132
200 e e e e 1,993
2008 ..... . e en s 1,900
TRETEATIET . . o . v e ettt e e e e e e e 5,649
o3 721 $18,793

Rent expense under all noncancelable operating lease obligations, net of income from noncancelable
subleases aggregated, was approximatety $3.5 million, $3.9 million, and $3.3 million for the years ended
December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

Litigation — The Company has been named as a defendant in various legal actions arising in the normal
course of business. In the opinion of management, after reviewing such claims with outside counsel, resolution of
these matters will not have a material adverse impact on the consolidated financial statements.

19. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS WITH OFF-BALANCE SHEET RISK

The Company is a party to various financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk in the normal course of
business to meet the financial needs of its customers. These financial instruments include commitments to extend
credit and standby letters of credit. These instruments involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit and interest
rate risk in excess of the amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheets. The Company’s exposure to
credit loss in the event of nonperformance by the other party to the financial instrument for commitments to
extend credit is represented by the contractual or notional amount of these instruments. The Company uses the
same credit policies in making these commitments and conditional obligations as it does for on-balance sheet
instruments.

The following is a summary of the various financial instruments entered into by the Company (in
thousands):

December 31,
2003 2002
Commitments to extend credit .............. ... ... L. $483,046  $465,402
Standby letters of credit .......... .. ... i 24,455 18,296
Mortgages sold withrecourse . ........ ... ... ... ... ... — 851,061

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no violation of any
condition established in the contract. Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination
clauses and may require payment of a fee. Since many of the commitments are expected to expire without being
fully drawn upon, the total commitment amounts disclosed above do not necessarily represent future cash
requirements.

The Company evaluates each customer’s creditworthiness on a case-by-case basis. The amount of collateral
obtained, if considered necessary by the Company, upon extension of credit, is based on management’s credit
evaluation of the customer.
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Standby letters of credit are conditional commitments issued by the Company to guarantee the performance
of a customer to a third party. The credit risk to the Company in issuing letters of credit is essentially the same as
that involved in extending loan facilities to its customers.

While a subsidiary of the Company, SCMC sold mortgages in the secondary market either to dealers or
investors. A portion of these loans were sold with recourse for a period generally not exceeding one year.

20. REGULATORY MATTERS

Capital requirements — The Company is subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by
the state and federal banking agencies. Any institution that fails to meet its minimum capital requirements is
subject to actions by regulators that could have a direct material effect on its financial statements. Under the
capital adequacy guidelines and the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action, the Bank must meet
specific capital guidelines based on the Bank’s assets, liabilities, and certain off-balance sheet items as calculated
under regulatory accounting practices. The Company’s capital amount and classification under the regulatory
framework for prompt corrective action are also subject to qualitative judgments by the regulators.

To meet the capital adequacy requirements, Sterling Bancshares and the Bank must maintain minimum

capital amounts and ratios as defined in the regulations. Management believes, as of December 31, 2003 and
2002, that Sterling Bancshares and the Bank met all capital adequacy requirements to which they are subject.
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As.of December 31, 2003, the most recent notification from the regulatory banking agencies categorized
Sterling Bank as “well capitalized” under the regulatory capital framework for prompt corrective action and there
have been no events since that notification that management believes have changed the Bank’s category. As of
December 31, 2003, the most recent notification from the regulatory banking agencies categorized Plaza Bank as
“adequately capitalized” under the regulatory capital framework for prompt corrective action.

To Be Well
Capitalized Under
For Capital Prompt Corrective
Actual Adegquacy Purposes Action Provisions
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
(In thousands, except percentage amounts)
CONSOLIDATED:
As of December 31, 2003:
Total capital (to risk weighted assets) .......... $383,252  15.4% $199,095 8.0% N/A  N/A
Tier 1 capital (to risk weighted assets) ......... 305,997 12.3% 99,547 4.0% N/A N/A
Tier 1 capital (to average assets) .............. 305,997 104% 117,883  4.0% N/A  N/A
As of December 31, 2002:
Total capital (to risk weighted assets) .......... $292,010 9.3% $251,521 8.0% N/A N/A
Tier 1 capital (to risk weighted assets) ......... 264,387 84% 125,761 4.0% N/A N/A
Tier 1 capital (to average assets) .............. 264,387 7.8% 135,358 4.0% N/A N/A
STERLING BANK:
As of December 31, 2003:
Total capital (to risk weighted assets) .......... $372,563 15.4% $193,441 8.0% $241,802 10.0%
Tier 1 capital (to risk weighted assets) ......... 296,147  12.3% 96,721 4.0% 145,081 6.0%
Tier 1 capital (to average assets) .............. 296,147 103% 115,542 4.0% 144,427 5.0%
As of December 31, 2002:
Total capital (to risk weighted assets) .......... $308,426 9.8% $251,221 8.0% $314,027 10.0%
Tier 1 capital (to risk weighted assets) ......... 280,803 8.9% 125,611 4.0% 188,416 6.0%
Tier 1 capital (to average assets) .............. 280,803 8.3% 135,244 40% 169,055 5.0%
PLAZA BANK:
As of December 31,2003: ...................
Total capital (to risk weighted assets) .......... $ 6,506 8.1% $§ 6,443 80% $ 8,054 10.0%
Tier 1 capital (to risk weighted assets) ......... 5,668 7.0% 3,221 4.0% 4,832 6.0%
Tier 1 capital (to average assets) .............. 5,668 8.0% 2,844 4.0% 3,555 5.0%

As discussed in Note 1, the Company will adopt FIN 46R on January 1, 2004. FIN 46R requires that trust
preferred securities be deconsolidated from the Company’s consolidated financial statements. Trust preferred
securities are considered currently in calculating Tier 1 capital ratios. However, this practice may be disallowed
by the federal banking agencies. It is unclear whether existing issuances of trust preferred securities will be
“grandfathered” (permitting their continued inclusion in the calculation of Tier 1 capital) or not. If the
Company’s trust preferred securities are disallowed in calculating regulatory capital ratios, the Company’s
consolidated capital ratios at December 31, 2003 would have been:

Pro forma Ratio:

Total capital (to risk weightedassets) .............. ... ... 122%
T 7 Tier 1 capital (to risk weighted assets) . ... ............ B N 17
Tier 1 capital (t0 aVETage @SSES) . ... v v vttt ittt ettt can e 7.7%
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Dividend restrictions — Dividends paid by the Bank and Sterling Bancshares are subject to certain
restrictions imposed by regulatory agencies. Under these restrictions there was an aggregate of approximately
$45.3 million and $95.4 million available for payment of dividends at December 31, 2003, by the Bank and
Sterling Bancshares, respectively.

21. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

As discussed in Note 2, the Company sold its 80% interest in SCMC on September 30, 2003 to RBC
Mortgage Company, an indirect subsidiary of the Royal Bank of Canada. SCMC’s operations were reported
previously as the Company’s mortgage banking segment; which is now reported together with the net gain on
sale as discontinued operations. As such the results of operations and cash flows of SCMC have been removed
from the Company’s results of continuing operations for all periods presented. The results of SCMC presented as
discontinued operations in the statement of income are as follows (in thousands, except per share):

For the Year Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001
Net interest income after provision for creditlosses ....................... $ (4407) $(2318) $ —
Noninterest income:
Gain on the sale of mortgageloans ................ ... ... .. oo 34,621 32,385 24,206
Mortgage origination inCoOME . .. ..o ittt et 23,823 23,641 10,392
Gain on the sale of Sterling Capital Mortgage Company ............... 47,783 — —
07117 S PP 8,064 10,987 7,377
Total noninterest iNCOME . . .. oot it e e e 114,291 67,013 41,975
Noninterest expense:
Salaries and employee benefits ....... ... .. ... L. 24,246 26,814 13916
Occupancy EXPENSE . ...ttt s 9,420 8,663 4,320
Technology . ... .ot e 878 676 288
Professional fees . .. .. ..o it 773 536 237
Postage and delivery charges .......... ... ... . i 1,231 1,119 528
Mortgage servicing rights amortization and impairment ................ 16,615 13,150 1,154
Minority interest expense for SCMC ............. ... .. ... .. . 40 842 2,273
Other . oL e - 10,861 7,166 3,886
Total NONIMEEIeSt EXPENSE .« . o vttt ii e et i ie e 64,064 58,966 26,602
Income from discontinued operations before income taxes .. ................ 45,820 5,729 15,373
Provision for inCOME taXES . . .. . oot v ittt e e e e e 25,064 2,361 6,280
Income from discontinued operations .. ............ ... ... $ 20,756 % 3,368 $ 9,093
Earnings per share from discontinued operations:
BaSIC « oot $ 047 $ 008 $ 022
Diluted . ... o e $ 046 $§ 008 § 021
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All assets and liabilities of SCMC were sold as of September 30, 2003. Thus these assets and liabilities are

not included in the December 31, 2003 consolidated balance sheet. The major asset and liability categories of
discontinued operations as of December 31, 2002 are as follows (in thousands):

December 31,
2002
Premises and equipment, NEt ... ... .ttt e $ 5,059
Mortgage servicing rights . ... .. . e 26,467
GoodWill, Net .o e e 5,618
Oher @SSELS . . .o\ttt e e e e 18,915
Assets related to discontinued operations . . ... ... o i i $56,059
Other Habilities . .. ..ot ottt e e e e $27.332
Minority interest in Sterling Capital Mortgage Company ......................... 5,074
Liabilities related to discontinued operations .. .......... ... ..o viiiiiiin... $32,406

22. DISCLOSURES ABOUT FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The estimated fair values of financial instruments were determined by management as of December 31,
2003 and 2002, and required considerable judgment. Accordingly, the estimates presented herein are not
necessarily indicative of the amounts the Company could realize in a current market exchange. The use of
different market assumptions and/or estimation methodologies may have a material effect on the estimated fair
values presented.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of cash and of financial
instruments for which it is practicable to estimate that value:

Cash and Short-term investments — For cash and short-term investments, the carrying amount is a
reasonable estimate of fair value.

Securities — For securities, fair value equals quoted market prices, if available. If a quoted market price is

not available, fair value is estimated using quoted market prices for similar securities. ‘

i

Trading Assets — Securities bought with the anticipation of sale in the near term are carried at fair market
value which equals quoted market prices.

Loans Held for Sale — For loans held for sale, fair value equals quoted market prices, if available. If a
quoted market price is not available, the fair value is estimated by discounting the future cash flows using the
current rates at which similar loans would be made to borrowers with similar credit ratings and for the same
remaining maturities.

Loans Held for Investment — The fair value of fixed-rate loans is estimated by discounting the future cash
flows using the current rates at which similar loans would be made to borrowers with similar credit ratings and
for the same remaining maturities.

Deposit Liabilities — The fair value of demand deposits, savings accounts and certain money market

deposits is the amount payable on demand at the reporting date. The fair value of certificates of deposit is
estimated using the rates currently offered for deposits of similar remaining maturities.
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Notes Payable — Rates currently available to the Company for debt with similar terms and remaining
maturities as used to estimate the fair value of existing debt.

Subordinated Debt — The subordinated debt is carried at fair value because this borrowing is hedged fully
by an interest rate swap that reprices at market rates on a quarterly basis.

Other Borrowed Funds — The subordinated debt is carried at fair value because these borrowings reprice at
market rates generally within ninety days.

Off-Balance Sheet Financial Instruments ~ The fair value of commitments is estimated using the fees
currently charged to enter into similar agreements, taking into account the remaining terms of the agreements and
the present creditworthiness of the counterparties. For fixed-rate loan commitments, fair value also considers the
difference between current levels of interest rates and the committed rates. The fair value of guarantees and
letters of credit is based on fees currently charged for similar agreements or on the estimated cost to terminate
them or otherwise settle the obligations with the counterparties at the reporting date. These amounts were not
significant at the reporting dates

The estimated fair values of the Company’s financial instruments are as follows (in thousands):

December 31,
2003 2002
Carrying Estimated Carrying Estimated
Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value

Financial assets:

Cash and short-term investments . ............... $ 138,122 $ 138,122 $ 148,302 $ 148,302

Trading @ssets . ........c.ovviniinennnennennen. 172,825 172,825 142,803 142,803

Available-for-sale securities .................... 522,936 522,936 251,165 251,165

Held-to-maturity securities ..................... 42,157 44,561 61,889 64,785

Loansheldforsale ........................... 26,308 26,308 701,301 701,301

Loans held forinvestment ...................... 2,130,731 2,257,296 1,943,561 1,681,843

Less allowance for creditlosses ................. (30,722) (30,722) (27,248) (27,248)
Total ... e $3,002,357 $3,131,326 $3,221,773 $2,962,951
Financial liabilities:

Deposits .. ..o e $2,418,369 $2,384,270 $2,673,072 $2,275,987

Notespayable ............c.coiiiiineiiennnn. — — 21,430 21,430

Subordinated debt .............. ... .. ... ..., 46,533 46,533 — —

INterest rate SWap . .« oo v vveereiiearer e 3,411 3,411 — —

Other borrowedfunds ......................... 324,160 324,160 509,590 509,590
Total ... e $2,792,473 $2,758,374 $3,204,092 $2,807,007
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23. SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITED)

The table below sets forth unaudited financial information for each quarter of the last two years (in

thousands, except per share amounts):

Interestincome .........................
Interestexpense ..............c.occiinn.

Net interest income ..................
Provision for creditlosses .................

Net interest income after provision for credit
losses ...t

Income from continuing operations before
INCOME LAXES .. .o 'vvvreeenenrnennns
Provision for income taxes ............

Income from continuing operations .........

Income (loss) from discontinued operations
before income taxes ....................
Provision (benefit) for income taxes .........

Income (loss) from discontinued operations . . .

Netincome ........c.vvereviiineninnn.

Earnings pershare: ......................
Basic ...

Diluted . ... it

Earnings per share from continuing operations:
Basic ......... oo

Diluted ............... ...,

Weighted average shares:
Basic .......... o o i

Diluted ........... ... ... il

2003 2002

Fourth Third Second First Fourth Third Second First
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
$38,175 $43,988  $44,805 $44,325  $49,075 846,297 $42,714  $40,772
5,340 6,665 7,564 7,200 8,391 7,995 7,556 7,821
32,835 37,323 37,331 37,125 40,684 38,302 35,158 32,951
3,000 4,150 6,098 4,450 2,550 3,439 3,088 2,623
29,835 33,173 31,233 32,675 38,134 34,863 32,070 30,328
7,381 7,430 7,039 11,228 7,989 7,311 7,458 6,853
29,436 29,471 29,053 29,643 31,872 29,946 27,899 26,389
7,780 11,132 9,219 14,260 14,251 12,228 11,629 10,792
2,583 3,707 3,028 4,719 4,619 4,034 3,709 3,355
5,197 7,425 6,191 9,541 9,632 8,194 7,920 7,437
1,101 44,426 (2,534) 2,827 1,211 597 2,459 1,462
407 24510 (984) 1,131 491 273 996 601
694 19,916 (1,550) 1,696 720 324 1,463 861

$ 5891 $27341 $ 4641 $11,237 $10,352 $ 8,518 $ 9,383 $ 8,298
$ 013 § 062 $ 011 % 026 $ 024 $ 019 $ 021 % 019
$°013 § 061 $ 010 $ 025 $ 023 $ 019 $ 021 $ 0.19
$ 012 $ 017 $ 014 $ 022 $ 022 $% 018 $ 018 $ 0.17
$ 012 $ 017 $ 014 % 021 § 022 $ 018 $ 018 $ 0.17
44,425 44,202 44,101 43,987 43,940 43917 43,849 43,779
44,889 44,852 44,744 44,727 44,687 44,872 44,797 44,658

Earnings per common share are computed independently for each of the quarters presented and therefore

may not sum to the totals for the year.
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24. PARENT-ONLY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

STERLING BANCSHARES, INC.
(Parent Company Only)
BALANCE SHEETS
DECEMBER 31, 2003 AND 2002
(In thousands)
December 31,
2003 2002
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents . ... .........etrr it e $ 383 § 79
Accrued interest receivable and otherassets .. ........ ... .. .. i i 3,942 5,188
GoodWill ... e 527 527
Investment in bank subsidiaries .. .......... .t 367,892 345,216
Investment in Sterling Bancshares Capital Trusts ........... .. ..o it 2,475 2,475
TOT AL ASSE TS . . e e e e $375,219 $353,485
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
LIABILITIES:
Accrued interest payable and other liabilities . ............ ... .. ... o oL $§ 148 $ 253
Notespayable ... ... . e — 21,430
Junior subordinated debentures . . ... ... .. e e 82,475 82,475
Total Habilities ... ... e 82,623 104,158
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY:
Convertible preferred stock .. ... ... 20 59
COMIMION SEOCK .« o oottt et e e e e e e e e e 44,642 43,983
Capital SUTPIUS . . oot e e 48,953 44,633
Retained €arnings . ........o. it e 197,819 156,664
Accumulated other comprehensive income—net unrealized gain on available-for-sale
SECUIITIES, NEL OF 18X . . v vttt e et e e e e e e e 1,162 3,988
Total shareholders’ eqUity . ... ..ottt e e eie e I 292,596 249,327
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY ..................... $375,219 $353,485
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STERLING BANCSHARES, INC.

(Parent Company Only)
STATEMENTS OF INCOME
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003, 2002 AND 2001
(In thousands)
2603 2002 2001
REVENUES:
Dividends received from bank subsidiaries ........................... $47,589 $12,650 $26,200
(011015 o Toe) 141 P — 150 —
Total TEVEIMUES . ..ot e e e 47,589 12,800 26,200
EXPENSES:
Interest expense:
Notes payable . ... ... i 585 797 135
Junior subordinated debentures . ......... .o 6,188 5,916 4716
Goodwill amortization .. ...... ..ttt e — — 28
General and adminisStrative .. ... ..ttt 1,731 2,809 1,171
Total EXPenses .. ....c.oiuiit i e 8,504 9,522 6,050
Income before equity in undistributed earnings of subsidiaries and
INCOMIE TAXES &+ & ottt vt et e et e et e e et e e e 39,085 3,278 20,150
Equity in undistributed earnings of subsidiaries ............... ... ... ..... 7,084 30,021 8,162
Income before income tax benefit . ...ttt e 46,169 33,299 28,312
Incometax benefit .. ... ... e 2,941 3,252 2,089
NEUINCOME . ottt et et et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e $49,110 $36,551 $30,401
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STERLING BANCSHARES, INC.
(Parent Company Only)
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003, 2002 AND 2001

(In thousands)
2003 2002 2001
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Nt iNCOMIE vttt ittt et et e e $ 49,110 $ 36,551 $ 30,401
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating
activities:
Amortizationof goodwill . ... ... ... .. o — — 28
Equity in undistributed earnings of subsidiary ................... (7,084) (30,021)  (8,162)
Change in operating assets and liabilities: ......................
___ Accrued interest receivable and other assets ................ 1,246 (1,565)  (1,471)
- . —...Accrued interest payable and other liabilities ............... - (194) (263) 59
' Net cash provided by operating activities .............. 43,078 4,702 20,855
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of PlazaBank . ....... ... ... . i, (18,329) — —
Purchase of CaminoReal Bancshares, Inc. .......................... — — (51,698)
Purchase of Community Bancshares, Inc. .......................... —_ —_— (14,462)
Purchase of ENB Bankshares, Inc. ... .......... ... it un. — (10,376) —
Capital contribution to Sterling Bancshares Capital Trust Il ............ — — (889)
Capital contribution to Sterling Bancshares Capital Trust I ........... —_ (967) —
Capital contribution to Sterling Bancshares Statutory TrustOne ........ — (619) —
Redemption of investment in Sterling Bancshares Capital TrustI ....... — 889 —
Capital investment in subsidiary banks .............. ... ... ... ... — (12,000) (10,750)
Net cash used in investing activities .................. (18,329) (23,073) (77,799
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Repayments of notes payable . .......... ... ... ... .. i i, (21,430) (602) (1,600)
Proceeds from notes payable .......... ... .. ... it — — 20,000
Proceeds from issuance of common stock ....... ... . ... 4,940 2,098 3,751
Proceeds from issuance of preferred stock .. ........ ... .. .. L — 242 —
Payments of cashdividends . .......................... R (7,955) (7,031) (5,909)
Proceeds from issuance of junior subordinated debentures ............. — 52,836 29,639
Redemption of junior subordinated debentures ...................... —_ (29,639) —_
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities . . . ... . (24,445) 17,904 45,881
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS . .. e e e 304 (467) (11,063)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR ....... 79 546 11,609
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ATENDOF YEAR .............. $ 383 § 79 $ 546
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